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Hospitality 
Demonstrates our response to the desire to be welcomed, 
to feel wanted and to belong. it is our responsibility to 
extend this to all who come into contact with our services 
by promoting connectedness and listening and responding 
openly. 

Healing 
Demonstrates our desire to respond to the whole person 
by caring for their spiritual, psychological and physical 
well being. it is our responsibility to value and consider 
the whole person and to promote healing through 
reconnecting, reconciling and building relationships.

Stewardship 
recognises that as individuals and as a community all we 
have has been given to us as a gift. it is our responsibility 
to manage these precious resources effectively for the 
future. we are responsible for: striving for excellence, 
developing personal talents, material possessions, our 
environment, and handing on the mission of the sisters of 
the little Company of Mary. 

Respect 
recognises the value and dignity of every person who is 
associated with our services. it is our responsibility to care 
for all with whom we come into contact with justice and 
compassion no matter what the circumstances, and we are 
prepared to stand up for what we believe and challenge 
behaviour which is contrary to our values.

We strive to excel in the spirit of ‘being for others’
our mission identifies why we exist; to bring the healing  

ministry of Jesus to those who are sick,  
dying and in need through ‘being for others’:

in the spirit of Mary standing by her son on Calvary 

through the provision of quality, responsive and 
compassionate health, community and aged care services 

based on Gospel values, and 

in celebration of the rich heritage and story of  
the sisters of the little Company of Mary. 

Our vision identifies what we are  
striving to become 

to be, and to be recognised as, a leader in strengthening 
and developing Catholic health at regional and national levels 

through the creation of integrated models of care where 
excellence and leadership are pursued by all to meet best the 

needs of the people and communities we serve.

Our values are visible in how we  
act and treat others 

as stewards of the rich heritage of care and compassion of  
the little Company of Mary, we are guided by our values.

The Spirit of Calvary
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Hospital Management 
Committee
Greg Flint Chief executive officer

Alison Lee assistant Director of Clinical services (Medical)

Ailsa Hawkins Director of Clinical services (Nursing)

Lynne O’Brien assistant Director of Clinical services (Nursing)

Wayne Wells Director of finance

Kevin Mulligan Director of Mission

Heather Alexander Health information Manager
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Richard Anicich
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Kay Fordham appointed March 2012
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Lee Shearer

Cathy Tate

Steven Tipper appointed March 2012

Greg Flint Chief executive officer
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Brenda Ainsworth National Director 
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Many of the hospital’s supporters 
have left a bequest to us in their will.  
your bequest helps us to continue our 
work to provide care for patients.

this is done in general medicine, 
oncology, research, alcohol and 
drug services, palliative care and 
to assist with the promotion of 
positive community attitudes toward 
the necessity and desire of quality 
health care.  your contribution will 
go on helping us through the 21st 
century.  your contribution can be a 
fixed amount or a percentage of your 
estate.  you can nominate to assist in 
the general provision of our services 
or your bequest can be directed 
toward a specific unit, project or type 
of service.

How to Make a Bequest
to assist in the preparation of a 
bequest may we advise the following 
wording:

i, (name), given ($amount) free of all 
duties and testamentary expense 
to Calvary Mater Newcastle for the 
purpose of patient care/service 
development, and i direct that the 
receipt of the Chief executive officer 
shall be sufficient discharge of my 
executors for this bequest.

if you would like more information 
about services provided at our 
hospital and how best your intended 
bequest could be used, please do 
not hesitate to contact our Chief 
executive officer. 

Chief Executive Officer
Calvary Mater Newcastle
Locked Bag 7
Hunter Region Mail Centre  
NSW 2310
Telephone 4014 4700

Bequests

Calvary Mater Newcastle Auxiliary Member, Melita Cole.
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Report from the  
Chief Executive Officer

it has been an extremely busy and 
successful year for Calvary Mater 
Newcastle in delivering health care 
services in conjunction with our role 
delineation and the targets and key 
performance indicators set by our 
funder, the New south wales Ministry 
of Health through the Hunter New 
england local Health District.  

as part of the health reforms across 
New south wales, a formal service 
agreement between Calvary Mater 
Newcastle and the local Health 
District was agreed to and signed 
which articulates the levels of service 
activity, targets and goals that 
Calvary Mater Newcastle is required 
to achieve within the allocated 
budget.  

the organisation underwent an 
accreditation review by the australian 
Council on Healthcare standards 
(aCHs) in November, 2011 and 
was awarded ongoing accreditation 
which recognises that Calvary Mater 
Newcastle meets the corporate, 
clinical and quality standards set 
by the aCHs.  this is a significant 
achievement for our organisation and 
demonstrates our commitment to 
providing excellence in care.

the Medical oncology review 
was completed and Calvary Mater 
Newcastle has worked with the 
local Health District to develop a 
five year action plan for the roll out 
of the recommendations.  an initial 
enhancement was funding and 
commissioning of four additional 
chemotherapy chairs which has 
assisted in reducing waiting times.  
the port waratah Coal services and 
supporters of Cancer has generously 
funded a Nurse practitioner position 

in Medical oncology which is a 
unique concept in service delivery 
and an extremely valuable role at 
Calvary Mater Newcastle in delivering 
medical oncology services.

the Community advisory Board 
(CaB) recruited four additional new 
community members this year which 
now gives the CaB a broad cross 
section of skills and abilities.  the 
CaB will be actively involved in a 
number of Calvary Mater Newcastle 
functions and involvement in a 
number of the hospital committees.  

an exciting development for Calvary 
Mater Newcastle is the proposed 
development of the Hunter water 
land adjacent to the hospital.  the 
land has been purchased by the 
local Health District and plans are 
underway to develop the site as a 
health precinct through a consortium 
arrangement involving little Company 
of Mary Health Care, the Hunter New 
england local Health District, Hunter 
Medical research institute and the 
University of Newcastle.  the steering 
Committee has developed tender 
documents which will be advertised 
to appoint a project director to 
progress a Master plan for the site 
and at the same time, develop a 
Clinical services plan for Calvary 
Mater Newcastle.

we are pleased to announce that 
an appointment has been made to 
the position of Director of Medical 
services at Calvary Mater Newcastle.  
Dr rosemary aldrich will bring with 
her significant hospital experience 
and expertise in the areas of medical 
administration, public health, clinical 
governance, quality, safety and risk 
and more recent experience working 

with the Hunter New england local 
Health District Clinical Governance 
Unit.  Dr aldrich will commence in 
august, 2012

a significant milestone was reached 
in January, 2012 with one of our long 
serving staff members, anne Grainger, 
reaching a record fifty years of service.  
this is an extraordinary achievement 
and a function was held at Calvary 
Mater Newcastle to acknowledge 
and celebrate anne’s dedicated and 
significant service to the hospital.

the hospital continues to receive 
valuable support and advice from little 
Company of Mary Health Care Board, 
National office, and the local Health 
District in continuing the hospital’s 
role as a major cancer care facility as 
well as significant community support.  

this review contains many highlights 
which reflect the achievements and 
commitment of our hospital staff of 
whom i am very proud to serve.  i 
would also like to take this opportunity 
to thank the very hardworking and 
dedicated auxiliary and volunteers 
for their generous contribution of 
their time in assisting Calvary Mater 
Newcastle staff to deliver high level, 
compassionate and quality care to our 
community.  our staff, auxiliary and 
volunteers exemplify the values under 
which we operate.  

i hope that you enjoy reading an 
overview of the year at Calvary Mater 
Newcastle.

Greg Flint 
Chief Executive Officer
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Department Reports 

General Internal 
Medicine 

the department saw 3,200 inpatients 
which is similar to the previous year.  
Congratulations to our staff for their 
consistent efforts in meeting the 
challenges presented throughout the 
year.

a total of 2,014 outpatient occasions 
of service were provided at the 
department’s outpatient clinics.  in 
addition, the external clinics continued 
to be operated at tomaree polyclinic 
and tamworth Hospital.  these 
clinics provide a real service to those 
communities as well as provide 
excellent training for our advanced 
trainees in medicine.  

Mater to Mungindi
this programme had its busiest year 
ever despite the fact that two trips 
could not be completed because of 
the Queensland/Northern Nsw floods 
and on one occasion the team had to 
have a patient evacuated by helicopter 
to see them.  Nonetheless, there were 
a total of 186 occasions of service 
provided.  

Dr foy has completed an audit of the 
remote service which is very pleasing 
in that it shows considerable growth 
over time, a spread of patients across 
all three of the different settings, 
namely Mungindi general practice, 
pius X aboriginal medical service 
and the Moree clinic.  overall, in the 
six years of the programme, 33% 
of patients have been indigenous, 
whilst the Bureau of statistics lists the 
population of that area as being 22% 
indigenous.  some other useful clinical 
data has also come from the audit.

the need for both gastroscopy and 
bronchoscopy for the department and 
those referring to us has increased 
this year.  with some increased 
arrangements and the co-operation 
of theatre staff, we have actually 
been able to double the amount of 
gastrointestinal endoscopy which was 
performed in the first half of 2012.  
the amount of palliative endoscopy 
has also increased and the 
department has now inserted more 

palliative stents, than the department 
of gastroenterology at John Hunter 
Hospital.  well done to all involved.

the department was very pleased to 
welcome Dr annalise philcox, General 
physician and endocrinologist to the 
department this year.  annalise has 
made a substantial contribution to 
the coverage of our patients’ needs.  
in addition she will be conducting 
endocrine clinics for severe diabetics 
at Moree.

senior registrar numbers have 
been good this year with the three 
positions in advanced training in 
general medicine being held by Drs 
withanage, sellathurai and oo, with a 
4th advanced trainee to join us from 
sri lanka soon.  

in addition, we have Dr sudeshi 
wijethilaka who is an advanced 
trainee in geriatric medicine and Dr 
Magnus Halland who is an advanced 
trainee in gastroenterology, giving us 
a total group of five, increasing to six 
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Calvary Mater Newcastle (CMN) 
has an acute aged care team and 
a very active aged care advisory 
committee with multidisciplinary 
representation from the acute care 
areas, emergency department, 
geriatric medicine, allied health and 
mental health. the members have 
been proactive in supporting and 
implementing an enablement model 
of care for older people during their 
acute phase of care with the aim 
of addressing the five enablement 
domains (mobility, continence, 

cognition, nutrition and hydration 
and self-care and skin integrity). 

this model of care has realised 
improved care outcomes for patients 
with delirium over the past two 
years with the introduction of the 
Confusion assessment Method 
(CaM) sticker, the enablement care 
plan, patient specialling criteria and 
ongoing staff education.

the team continues to progress 
a number of projects including 
the management of aggression in 
older persons, review of delirium 

management guidelines, pain 
assessment for people with dementia 
and the development of an agitation 
scale.

a one day education program was 
facilitated by the acute to age 
related Care service, Clinical Nurse 
specialist, sue southgate, and the 
Discharge facilitator, sharon lewis. 
the day was hosted by CMN in 
March this year with 70 attendees 
from acute care, aged care, 
community and specialist palliative 
care services.

in the new financial year.  

this year the department embraced 
its biggest challenge yet in hosting 
the royal australiasian College 
of physicians (raCp) Clinical 
examinations for 12 candidates.  
whilst the number of candidates may 
not seem large, this was an enormous 
undertaking, involving recruitment 
of approximately 40 patients to 
participate in the exam and the 
very substantial infrastructure, 
administrative work and supervision 
required.  raCp was most 
complimentary about our work.  we 

Acute Aged Care

would also like to thank the hospital’s 
volunteers who greatly assist us on 
this day each year.

the department’s research activities 
have now reached a level which is 
more consistent with our status as a 
teaching hospital in general medicine.

Dr scott twaddell presented a 
poster at the recent world Congress 
for Bronchology and interventional 
pulmonology and all three advanced 
trainees will be presenting papers at 
the internal Medicine society meeting 
in Queenstown, New Zealand later 

this year.  Dr foy will be presenting 
the results of his audit of our remote 
programme and Dr susan Miles will 
present an audit of her work with 
mental health patients.    

this has been a challenging, very 
busy and very productive year for 
the Department of General internal 
Medicine. 
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During the last year the 
Coronary Care Unit continued 
to have a high patient 
numbers admitting an average 
of 57 patients per month for 
the year. patients admitted 
with myocardial infarction 
represented about 27% of 
the total admissions. those 
patients requiring Coronary 
angiography are stabilised 
and then transferred to the 
John Hunter Hospital or 
discharged to the private 
sector for further investigation 
and management.

in addition to the traditional 
coronary care management, 
the unit provides service 
to the other units of 
Calvary Mater Newcastle 
performing cardioversions, 
transoesophageal 
echocardiography, 
pericardiocentesis and 
insertion of temporary pacing 
wires.  

the peter Curteis education 
Grant continues to provide 
support for further education 
of junior medical and nursing 
staff and this year was 
awarded to rN ruth shaw 
from Coronary Care Unit.  
ruth utilised the award to 
attend the 2012 Cardiac 
society of australia and New 
Zealand annual Conference 
which was held in Brisbane in 
august 2012.

the Cardiology Department 
continues to provide inpatient 
and outpatient support 
services in eCG, exercise 
testing, echocardiography 
and trans-oesophageal 
echocardiography.

the emergency Department continues 
to increase its activity with 32,095 
patients being treated an additional 
1,466 patients from last financial year. 
admissions have also increased by 
over 1,100 to 10,416.

the emergency short stay Unit had 
4,087 admissions, averaging 340 
patients per month, an increase of 
1,616 admissions for this financial year.

with the enhancement of the 
emergency short stay Unit, the units 
now have a full time clinical nurse 
unit manager, part time pharmacist, 
full time ward person, full time 
physiotherapist and enhancement of 
patient service clerk hours.

the emergency Department continues 
to implement quality projects 
throughout 2011/2012.  these 
included sepsis Kills, DeteCt, 

resus4kids. Neat (National emergency 
access target) which commenced in 
april and our department is continually 
striving towards the Neat targets set 
by federal Government.

New equipment for the emergency 
Department also assisted in enhancing 
care for our paediatric patients. Money 
was donated by the auxiliary which 
enabled us to buy a Neopuff, Broselow 
paediatric packs, overhead paediatric 
heater and a compartmental pressure 
monitor for adults. these pieces of 
equipment will enable the department 
to ensure current and best practice for 
all of our patients.

the emergency Department and 
emergency short stay Unit continues 
to have high staff retention, we 
commend our staff for their continued 
commitment to our service.

Emergency DepartmentCoronary Care
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the alcohol and Drug Unit provides 
assessment and compassionate 
treatment to people with alcohol and 
drug problems and their families. 
the multi-disciplinary unit functions 
with six clinical staff to provide 
medical, nursing, psychology and 
counselling services. this includes 
comprehensive outpatient services, 
consultation-liaison to inpatients of 
the hospital and inpatient withdrawal 
treatment for the most complex 
patients.

the activity is high for a small 
unit with outpatient occasions of 
service between 350-500/month 
and inpatient consultations of             
80-130/month. with the introduction 
of activity based funding it has 
become a challenge to record all 
activity. it has become apparent that 
many telephone, case review and 
non-nursing C/l activities were not 
counted and systems for improving 
this are being implemented.

Non clinical activities included 

education for lMos and health 
professionals, school education 
sessions, traffic offenders community 
program, nursing, psychology 
and medical student placements. 
University related teaching (via 
conjoint appointments) to nursing 
and medical undergraduates and 
the postgraduate alcohol and Drug 
diploma/masters course continues. 

staff have been involved with 
collaborative work with Drug and 
alcohol Clinical services (DaCs) 
HNelHD and the Ministry of Health.  
this includes monthly clinical review, 
morbidity and mortality meetings, 
Quality in treatment Committee, 
clinical supervision, staff recruitment 
and research. 

the clinical research has included 
being one of the sites for a trial of an 
alcohol and Drug treatment outcome 
tool, with the aim of it eventually 
being implemented throughout Nsw 
Health, alcohol and Drug services. 
the unit has also been involved 

Alcohol and Drug Clinical Services Unit

in a clinical audit of treatment 
outcomes for prescribed opioid 
dependence. Medical staff  have 
also been involved with the trial of a 
cannabinoid buccal spray (sativex®) 
for cannabis withdrawal with the 
National Cannabis prevention and 
information Centre.

with the generosity of the 
physiotherapy Department an 
additional staff member will assist 
with administrative services at the 
reception.

Next year the focus will be on 
activity based funding, consistency 
with elective admission access and 
continuing to improve our services 
to assist emergency Department 
and other areas of the hospital 
with alcohol and Drug treatment 
pathways for patients.
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During 2011/2012, the Department 
of Consultation-liaison psychiatry 
consulted on 891 individual 
inpatients, delivering over 1,876 
occasions of service. Main referral 
groups were: Department of 
Clinical toxicology (517 referrals), 
General Medicine (109), emergency 
Department (124 referrals), oncology 
(58 referrals) palliative Care (57 
referrals) and surgery (18 referrals).

the psycho-oncology service 
accepted referrals of over 320 
individual patients and delivered 
nearly 1,000 occasions of service 
to outpatients through the psycho-
oncology Clinic. the psycho-
oncology service provided input 
to the following oncology multi-
disciplinary teams: haematology, 
head and neck cancer, lung cancer 
and breast cancer. 

the QUiCatoUCH program was used 
for screening oncology outpatients for 
distress and pain and for monitoring 
progress (symptom scores) of 
patients attending the psycho-
oncology service. QUiCatoUCH 
operated for over four years however, 
it was closed at the end of December 
2011 due to funding cessation. 
During the last six months of 2011 
this service provided 5,157 occasions 
of screening to 1,090 patients. the 
department was extremely active 
in clinical, research, teaching and 
community education. we commend 
all who ran this worthwhile service 
namely project Manager, Dr K 
rogers, Ms K Gleeson and Ms K 
Harris.

a new appointment of one part-
time clinical psychologist, Karen 
Matthews, to the adolescent and 

young adult (aya) service as part of 
the Hunter and Northern Nsw youth 
Cancer service, provides clinical 
services to oncology outpatients and 
inpatients aged 15-25 years.

the Department also operates a 
suicide prevention program, a 
clinical research unit funded from the 
Burdekin initiative and administered 
by research Manager, sarah Hiles, 
through the Hunter New england 
Mental Health service.

Student Placements

the Clinical psychology program: 
professional Doctorate level, Gillian 
Maddock. 

school of psychology: research 
Higher Degree (phD), Dr tharaka 
Dassanayake.

Department of Consultation-Liaison Psychiatry 

Service Number of Patients Seen Occasions of Service

Consultation-liaison psychiatry inpatients 891 1876

palliative Care inpatients 57 57

psycho-oncology outpatients 322 974
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the Department of Clinical 
toxicology and pharmacology 
provides an inpatient service for 
the management of patients with 
deliberate, recreational, accidental 
or other self-poisoning and 
envenomation. 

for the management of deliberate 
self-poisoning, the department 
combines with the Department of 
Clinical liaison psychiatry as the 
Hunter area toxicology service. 
Clinicians in the department also 
manage patients with adverse drug 
reactions and complex medication 
issues and provide a consultative 
service to the Hunter New england 
local Health District in Clinical 
pharmacology. 

professor ian whyte serves on the 
Quality Use of Medicines Committee 
of the John Hunter Hospital and is 
chairman of both the area Quality 
Use of Medicines Committee and 
the Clinical trials subcommittee 
of the Hunter New england Human 
research ethics Committee. 

associate professor Geoff isbister 
provides expertise to the ethics 
Committee of the New Children’s 
Hospital, westmead. as well as 
these activities, there is a substantial 
commitment to undergraduate and 
post graduate teaching and an 
ongoing active research program. 

Members of the department 
published 21 articles in refereed 
journals in 2011/12 and were 
successful in grants worth more than 
$1.2 million. the clinicians in the 
department also contribute to the 
National poisons information Centre 
roster and support the Hunter Drug 
information service which is part of 
the department.

in 2011/12 there were 825 
admissions to the Hunter area 
toxicology service. the average age 
of patients at admission was 35.9 
years and the proportion who were 
female was 61.09%. there were 

716 individual patient admissions, of 
whom 515 were new to the service. 

sixty-five patients had more than 
one admission during the financial 
year. of the admissions, 733 
were for deliberate self-harm. in 
addition, there were 20 spider and 
snake bites, 46 recreational drug 
overdoses, 9 iatrogenic poisonings, 
and 14 accidental overdoses. 

the majority of the patients (98.06%) 
were admitted via the emergency 
Department. almost all (86.79%) 
were discharged from the emergency 
short stay Unit (essU) and only 
9.70% were discharged from the 
toxicology ward. for those whose 
whole hospital stay was in the eD or 
essU, the median length of stay was 
13.8 hours. 5.21% were admitted to 
the intensive Care Unit with a median 
length of stay of 34.2 hours. 

of the deliberate self-harm 
patients, 92.5% received timely and 
appropriate psychiatric assessment. 
58.91% of patients were discharged 
directly home, while 36.24% were 
transferred to a psychiatric hospital 
and there were three deaths (0.36%). 
the average number of admissions 
per day was 2.25 and the median 
length of stay for the deliberate self-
harm patients was 14.9 hours. this 
length of stay is substantially less 
than the length of stay for poisoning 
at other hospitals in Nsw and 
australia.

Dr Colin page continues to give the 
department his time by being on-call 
every Monday night from Brisbane. 

the department has set up and runs 
a website at http://www.wikitox.org. 
this is an international collaboration 
of toxicological information and 
teaching resources. through this 
site the department runs a Diploma 
of Clinical toxicology degree course 
which is internationally subscribed.

the Hunter Drug information 
service (HDis) is the primary drug 
information resource for health 
professionals within the Hunter 
New england local Health District 
providing current, clinically relevant 
and unbiased medicines and 
therapeutic information.

andrew ward resigned in November 
2011 and tiffany Bichard joined 
the service in January. the service 
received 541 enquiries throughout 
2011/12. adverse drug reactions 
remained the most common question 
and most (64%) of questions 
were patient related with 80% of 
responders using the information 
provided in patient management. 
the department continues to train 
pharmacy and medical students and 
other pharmacists from within the 
local Health District.

HDis contracted with the 
pharmaceutical society of australia 
to produce Non-Prescription 
Medicines in the Pharmacy - A 
guide to advice and treatment. the 
therapeutic drug monitoring service 
for aminoglycosides has increased 
to a district wide service but is still 
restricted to aminoglycosides only. 

Clinical Toxicology and 
Pharmacology 
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Medical Oncology 
the most significant event for 
the unit was the release of the 
external review of medical oncology 
services in february 2012. of the 24 
recommendations made, 21 were 
accepted. the most significant being 
recommendations no.1 – that the 
Hunter New england lHD plan for 
recruitment of medical oncologists 
across the region according to 
benchmarks set by the australian 
Medical oncologist workforce 
study conducted by the Medical 
oncology Group of australia and 
recommendation no.19 – increase the 
number of funded chemotherapy chairs 
at Calvary Mater Newcastle from the 
current 12 to 16. 

other recommendations related to 
currently unfunded positions and 
improvement in internal processes 
that were already underway. the 
immediate funding of approximately 
$1 million dollars through the Hunter 
New england local Health District has 
allowed the appointment of a Medical 
oncologist at Manning rural Hospital 
in taree (Dr ted livshin who started in 

Oncology 
March 2012) and the opening of four 
extra chemotherapy chairs at Calvary 
Mater Newcastle with Kelly randall 
as the new Nursing Unit Manager. 
attempts to obtain extra funding for 
medical oncologists is still under 
consideration. 

from a workload perspective we are 
still very busy having seen 1,288 new 
patients and 22,347 occasions of 
service in the 2011/2012 financial year. 
we continue to address waiting time 
benchmarks. four of our advanced 
trainees will complete their training 
at the end of 2012 (Drs lindy turner, 
Nick Zdenkowski, Maria aslam and 
Nazeer Upanal). we wish them well in 
their careers. as from this year medical 
oncology trainees will be interviewed 
statewide. 

the Medical oncology Clinical trial 
Unit continues to expand. the unit 
now employs six full time and three 
part time clinical trial co-ordinators 
and a part time administrative 
officer. the recruitment of a clinical 
trials pharmacist to assist in trials 
management at pharmacy level for our 
unit and for other trials units within the 
hospital has proved a valuable addition 

to the team and is critical in assisting 
us to comply with the ever increasing 
complexity of clinical research. 

we welcome to our unit leanna 
pugliese. Currently we have 14 actively 
recruiting clinical trials covering a 
range of cancers and cancer stages 
including early and metastatic breast 
cancer, a variety of gastrointestinal 
cancers, brain, prostate, head and 
neck and gynaecological cancers. in 
addition, we have patients in 37 studies 
in the follow up phase and have five 
studies in various stages of ethics and 
governance review. these studies will 
activate by the end of the year or early 
in the new year.

the outsourcing of compounding 
chemotherapy drugs has been very 
successful. we will be looking at further 
improvements in educating, supervising 
and safely delivering oral chemotherapy 
drugs to our cancer patients. 

persisting challenges include meeting 
demand with existing workforce, 
financial support from the Cancer 
institute of Nsw for data managers 
and rural registrars, and the continued 
challenges in trying to meet waiting 
time benchmarks. 
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Radiation Oncology

as a five linear accelerator 
department, Calvary Mater 
Newcastle continues to be one of the 
largest and most efficient radiation 
oncology departments in Nsw. we 
saw over 1,900 new patients with a 
17% increase in referrals from 2010 
to 2011 and we performed the most 
new treatment courses in Nsw.  

this steady increase in service 
demand was particularly challenging 
over the past year as an ageing 
linear accelerator was replaced. 
waiting lists for both chemotherapy 
and radiotherapy remained 
suboptimal and staffing deficits 
persisted.  we also faced the 
challenge to provide our patients 
with access to more complex, 
precise and diverse radiotherapy 
treatments.   

Many patients were referred to 
other centres to receive complex 
treatment in a more timely fashion 
or referred for treatments that the 
hospital does not currently offer 
such as stereotactic cranial and 
extra-cranial radiotherapy, prostate 
brachytherapy and paediatric 
treatment under general anaesthesia. 
thus the priority of the coming year 
is to implement new technology, 
paramount to maintaining excellence 
in patient care, research and 
education. 

the removal of one linear 
accelerator and the installation and 
commissioning of a new updated 
version was a labour intensive and 
multi-disciplinary team effort. the 
process took over five months and 
was completed by the end of June 
2012. significant measures, such 
as employment of extra staff, two 
extended-hour shifts and extra-
ordinary overtime were required 
to treat patients on fewer linear 
accelerators. our waiting list for 
treatment did increase over this 
period but this is now improving as 
the new machine became operational 
and we continued on with an 
extended hours shift.  

Closer collaboration between 
the departments of Diagnostic 
imaging and radiation oncology 
has continued over the last year. 
in 2011, the 3.0t Mri scanner was 
installed at the hospital and close 
proximity of the scanner to our 
department streamlines the planning 
process for our patients and allows 
for service improvements. for 
example to improve setup accuracy, 
we have acquired a flat Mri table top 
for simulation, installed radiotherapy 
setup lasers in the Mri room and 
are currently commissioning Mri 
coil mounts for head and neck and 
prostate treatments.  

High-dose rate brachytherapy 
for gynaecological cancers now 
integrates Mri into 3-D volume-
based planning for better soft-tissue 
definition. the Mri installation was 
a significant milestone event for our 
department not only by enhancing 
treatment planning but also by 
fostering new proposals for multi-
disciplinary cancer research.

over the last year, the scope and 
complexity of intensity Modulated 
radiotherapy treatment (iMrt) has 
been expanded to include head 
and neck, prostate, cental nervous 
system, soft tissue sarcomas and 
pelvic cancers.

iMrt is a complex form of highly 
conformal dose delivery. for 
patients, this may translate into less 
side-effects and improved tumour 
control. for our staff, this entails 
increased workload in contouring 
anatomical structures, planning 
complex dose distributions, ensuring 
precise treatment delivery and 
performing quality assurance (Qa) 
procedures.  

we are now treating 15-20 patients 
per month with iMrt and focusing 
the efficiency of the patient specific 
quality assurance processes to 
increase the number of treatments 
to commence each week. rapid 
arc is another new form of 
complex conformal treatment using 
dynamically collimated radiation 
beams rotating around the patient. 
this is currently being implemented 
and should be applied clinically by 
the end of the year. rapid arc has 
the potential to be more efficient 
than iMrt as it allows for faster 
delivery and increased patient 
throughput.

ensuring the accuracy of dose 
delivery during treatment of these 
highly conformal techniques has 
led to the rapid evolution of image-
guided radiotherapy (iGrt). as 
well as electronic portal imaging 
dosimetry (epiD), we have 
commissioned and implemented 
newer imaging modalities on the 
linear accelerators to ensure daily 
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setup accuracy such as kv on-board 
imaging and cone beam Ct scans. 

increasing precision of radiation 
delivery by on-treatment imaging is 
time-consuming and best practice 
is still under investigation. over 
the past year, our iGrt process in 
treating localised prostate cancer 
has consolidated with most patients 
having gold seeds implanted in 
the prostate to guide treatment 
precision. 

the priorities for implementation of 
new technology during 2012 have 
included rapid arc, 4-dimensional 
Ct simulation accounting for 
respiratory motion, and stereotactic 
cranial and spinal irradiation.  the 
following year we hope to see 
the development of extra-cranial 
stereotactic radiotherapy for lung 
nodules and liver metastases, 
respiratory gating and a prostate 
HDr brachytherapy program.

in July 2012, Dr anne Capp 
completed her term as Director 
of the Department and Dr Jane 
ludbrook has since been appointed 
to the Director’s position. Dr Capp 
must be commended for her hard 
work and commitment to this role, 
providing leadership in striving 
for the implementation of new 
technology and in the planning of the 
new department in tamworth.  

we also welcomed a new radiation 
oncologist this year, Dr Jared 
Martin who will be sub-specialising 
in genito-urinary and gastro-
intestinal tumour sites, and who 
has keen interest in research thus 
strengthening the department’s 
research culture. 

the numbers of radiation therapists 
(rts) are increasing to provide 
extended hours on the linear 
accelerator to implement new 
technology. However, there is a 
need to recruit more rts and indeed 
physicists, oncologists, nurses and 
allied health staff in the near future 
to continue this strategy. 

sadly, we said goodbye to Karl 
stansfield, biomedical engineer, who 

has worked at the hospital for over 
26 years, Karl’s contribution has 
been very much appreciated within 
the department. 

expansion of training commitments 
has continued. of note, medical 
student attachments in oncology 
at the hospital are longer and more 
numerous reflecting the doubling 
of the numbers of 5th year medical 
students from the University of 
Newcastle. the number of radiation 
oncology registrar trainees also 
expanded to six with an additional 
advanced trainee from medical 
oncology or palliative care. Dr 
Geetha Govindarajulu is completing 
her clinical fellowship focussing on 
gynaecological cancers and palliative 
care. 

Medical Physics
Medical physics has continued 
to strengthen its links with the 
University of Newcastle. the 
department has hosted five 
undergraduate students who are 
undertaking research projects as 
part of their course work or as 
a result of vacation scholarships 
provided by the Commonwealth 
Government. two physics registrar 
positions continue.  

Congratulations to radiation 
oncology registrars, Drs Katherine 
Neville and ekaterine Moseshvili who 
passed their phase 1 examinations 
in 2011 and to medical physicist, 
Michael Barnes who obtained his 
aCpseM accreditation. Dr Mahsheed 
sabet was awarded her phD 
under the supervision of associate 
professor peter Greer in medical 
physics and joined the clinical team 
as a scientific assistant.  

the years 2011/2012 has seen 
steady growth in research 
activity in radiation oncology. we 
participated in 23 open clinical trials 
and we remain one of the largest 
contributors of patients to radiation 
oncology clinical trials in australia. 

in-house studies are progressing, 

particularly focusing on Mri based 
radiotherapy and iGrt. we had 30 
publications last year. associate 
professor Jim Denham continues 
to lead his prostate research group 
with multi-centre clinical trials troG 
96.01 and raDar, consolidating 
long-term results in prestigious 
publications. we continue our close 
association with clinical trials group 
troG (trans-tasman radiation 
oncology Group) who are onsite 
at Calvary Mater Newcastle.  we 
welcomed Helen Nguyen who joined 
our group of three departmental 
research co-ordinators.

the medical physics research 
continues to grow in strength both 
in publications and grant success 
under the guidance of associate 
professor peter Greer for projects 
in iGrt, epiD dosimetry and Mri-
linear accelerator projects. peter 
Greer is collaborating with varian 
in switzerland to develop a new 
epiD imaging product. this year, Dr 
Brian King finished his 3 year post-
doctoral research on epiD dosimetry. 
Dr Henry woodruff joined the group 
as a post-doctoral researcher from 
the University of sydney working in 
epiD real-time dosimetry. Jidi sun 
is a new phD student working on 
Mri-based planning. a/prof peter 
stanwell joined the group as a Mri 
physicist with the aim to foster 
research in Mri-based radiotherapy 
and is linked to the University of 
Newcastle.

over the past year, some of our 
senior staff have committed much 
of their time to provide expert 
advice on the establishment of the 
new linear accelerator department 
in tamworth, which should be 
operational in 2013.  we must 
thank the significant contribution 
of Chief Medical physicist, Dr Kim 
Nitschke, Chief radiation therapist, 
Dr Karen Jovanovic, radiation 
therapist, annette skov, information 
technology ray sheather and  
Dr anne Capp.
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the Hunter Haematology unit has 
had a busy year as the number of 
newly referred patients increases 
each year.  in 2011/2012 over 900 
new patients were reviewed and 
provided with treatment by the unit’s 
3.9 Haematology staff specialists. 
Unfortunately this has resulted in 
an 11 week average new patient 
appointment waiting time. this is 
despite the clinical staff using a 
triage process that determines which 
patients should be treated first based 
on their clinical need. patients with a 
non- threatening illness can wait up 
to 10 months for an appointment.

the demand on inpatient beds for 
high dose chemotherapy and stem 
cell transplant has increased in 
the past year.  Under Nursing Unit 
Managers (NUM), wendy Johnson 
and Debbie Carr’s leadership, the 
staff in wards 5C (inpatient) and 5D 
(Day ward) increased the throughput 
by co-ordination of patients by 
pre-admission, early discharge 
procedures and outpatient follow 
up.  the occupation of inpatient beds 
is often in excess of 100%.  Many 
treatments that other units administer 
as inpatients are administered as 
outpatient therapy at Calvary Mater 
Newcastle, to avoid treatment delays. 

New national standards required 
extensive review and revision of 
stem cell apheresis, cryopreservation 
and transplant facilities and work 
practices.  after many weeks 
preparation Calvary Mater Newcastle 
(CMN) was fully accredited for these 
services by the National association 
for testing and accreditation. Cathie 
Milton CNC (apheresis co-ordinator) 
and Geordie Zaunders (stem Cell 
laboratory Manager) provided the 
leadership to achieve the required 
goals in a relatively short period of 
time.

Dr arno enno led the initiative to 
develop a centralised “Haematology 
portal” on the CMN intranet. via the 
“links” section on the CMN home 
page, the haematology portal brings 
together treatment protocols, safe 

Haematology

work practices, and a pathway to 
the external link of evi-Q, the state 
based treatment guidelines of the 
Nsw Cancer institute. the “portal” 
provides convenience and document 
control and has greatly facilitated 
patient treatment and safety.

a number of our haematology staff 
play an indispensable role for the 
wider Hunter New england local 
Health District (HNelHD) by providing 
their expertise for service planning 
and delivery. these include:

HNelHD transfusion Committee: Dr 
sandra Deveridge. 

HNelHD Cancer Network leadership 
Committee: wendy Johnson, NUM 
and professor philip rowlings, 
Director

HNelHD Haematology stream is 
chaired by professor philip rowlings 
and co-ordinated by wendy Johnson

at a state level staff have participated 
in:

Nsw BMt Network of the agency 
for Clinical innovation (aCi): louisa 
Brown CNC, transplant co-ordinator 
is co-Chair

Nsw BMt Nsw, autologous 
Committee: professor philip rowlings

Nsw Haemophilia Network: Dr 
Michael seldon

Medical students from both the 
University of Newcastle and University 
of New england are taught in both 
the inpatient and outpatient setting, 
as well as by provision of lectures 
and tutorials at the University of 
Newcastle Callaghan Campus.

Nursing and allied Health 
undergraduate students from 
University of Newcastle are trained in 
the inpatient ward.

the staff specialists contribute 
to Medical registrar training and 
preparation for the royal australasian 
College of physicians exams. 

By senior staff reducing their hours to 
fractional appointments, Dr sam yuen 
was able to be employed permanently 
in august 2011, as 0.8 fte staff 
specialist to assist in managing the 
department’s large clinical load.  His 
appointment is part of succession 
planning and unfortunately does 
not contribute a significant staffing 
increase.

the Mater auxiliary provided funding 
for two new treatment chairs for the 
stem cell apheresis area. the ron 
poetscha fund enabled the purchase 
of several electric recliner chairs 
for patient and carer comfort in the 
haematology ward.



16 •  Calvary Mater NewCastle  •  review of operatioNs  • 2011/2012 

Palliative Care

the activity of the Department of 
palliative Care continues to grow. 
over the last 24 months, there has 
significant increase in referrals. 
as a result, the department is 
experiencing high occupancy 
rates of dedicated palliative care 
beds and increased numbers of 
people admitted under palliative 
care services within the general 
wards of the hospital. like many 
other palliative care services, the 
majority of people treated have 
cancer. However, the Calvary Mater 
Newcastle palliative Care service is 
also seeing increasing numbers of 
people with non-malignant disease. 
recent statistics reveal that the 
service is remarkable for seeing the 
most respiratory patients of any 
palliative care service in australia.  

some notable clinical projects 
undertaken within the department 
are highlighted. the common theme 
that underpins these is adoption 
and incorporation of the use of 
national palliative care indicators 
and quality measures. this was 
highlighted by the development and 
installation of palliative Care aria 
system. incorporating evidenced-
based systematic assessment 
tools into aria allows ease of 
communication amongst the multi-
disciplinary palliative care team and 
allows for easy extraction of activity 
data that will be used to inform the 
department’s funding. 

other projects adopting the use 
of standardised tools include a 
redesign project undertaken under 
the auspices of the Nsw Ministry of 
Health to develop and trial a referral 
tool to assist referrers understand 
and assess the specific needs of 
palliative care patients. a separate 
project was the development of an 
evidence-based algorithm to improve 
the palliation of dyspnoea. 

over the last year, the fig tree 
program initiated a redesign project. 
this included a review which has 
informed the development of an 
alternative model which is based 
on a four-week education program 
aiming to target the learning needs of 
palliative care patients and families 
around common but problematic 
symptoms. this will be trialled in the 

latter half of 2012.  

providing care for the bereaved 
is an important part of the clinical 
activity of the palliative care service. 
like all areas of palliative care, 
this part of the service continues 
to experience increasing activity.  
an important innovation in the last 
12 months has been to hold four 
annual remembrance services in the 
hospital chapel. this has improved 
attendance and participation in the 
morning tea that follows.

together with clinical activity, an 
important responsibility of palliative 
care services is to engage in 
teaching, educational and research 
activities.  the department is 
actively engaged in teaching at 
undergraduate, post-graduate 
levels, maintenance of professional 
standards and community forums.  
two such initiatives include the 
development of a spaced education 
program to improve exposure of 5th 
year medical students to the notion 
of a palliative approach and courses 
aimed at nurses working in acute 
care whilst caring for the dying.   

lastly, the research activity of the 
department continues to grow. 
there are now two research nurses 
funded by the successful attraction 
of competitive grant funding. the 
work undertaken by the department 
is focusing on improving the  
evidence-base from which palliative 
care is practised from, the 
identification of people with palliative 
care needs and the approach offered 
to all dying australians.        

Grants and donations for year  
2011/2012:

Cancer institute of Nsw primary 
Health Care Grant $40,000

Cancer institute of Nsw funding for 
a research nurse $100,000

Margaret Mitchell Grant $10,000

lions Club of Jesmond donation 
$5,000

Ko surf classic donation $11,000

the 2011/2012 financial year has 
seen numerous changes within the 
Department of palliative Care.

2011 saw us welcome Kathryn 

the Department of surgical 
oncology and the australia and New 
Zealand Breast Cancer trials Group 
(aNZBCtG) co-ordinate national 
and international collaboration in 
randomised clinical trials for women 
diagnosed with or at risk for breast 
cancer. this national activity is 
an important resource for Calvary 
Mater Newcastle. the Department 
of surgical oncology and the trials 
Co-ordination Department of the 
aNZBCtG are located in the NBN 
telethon Mater institute on the 
Mater Campus. professor forbes 
is Director, Department of surgical 
oncology, and Director of research 
for the aNZBCtG.

Current clinical trials encompass 
prevention and treatment of all stages 
of breast cancer. this collaboration 
involves more than 600 researchers, 
80 institutions and 60 unique clinical 
trials in australia and New Zealand. 
with more than 1,000 investigators 
internationally through international 
Breast Cancer intervention studies 
(iBis, Cancer research UK) london 
UK; Breast international Group (BiG) 
Brussels, Belgium; international 
Breast Cancer study Group (iBCsG) 
Bern, switzerland and amhurst, Usa; 
and the National surgical Breast and 
Bowel project (NsaBp, pittsburgh, 
Usa). the aNZBCtG has launched 
a new trial, apHiNity, to test a new 
targeted agent called pertuzumab. 
other trials are investigating local 
treatment and new systemic 
approaches for all stages of breast 
cancer. the large international 
prevention trial, iBis ii, completed its 
recruitment phase in December 2011 
and results are anticipated in late 
2013.

the aNZBCtG supports the joint 
appointment of a postgraduate 
fellow in Breast Cancer Clinical 
research, and recently a new fellow 
was appointed to commence in early 
2013.

in the 2012 australia Day Honours, 
professor forbes was awarded a 
Member of the order of australia 
(aM), being recognised for service to 
medicine in the field of breast cancer 
research, to the development of 
improved clinical practice standards 
and service to the community.

Surgical Oncology
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Bensley as the aboriginal Health 
education officer in palliative care, 
this is a significant milestone, as 
her position is the first ever in Nsw. 
Kathryn’s role is to inform Non-
aboriginal staff about aboriginal 
culture and what death and dying 
means to them. Kathryn also 
provides support to dying people of 
aboriginal descent and their families.

through Kathryn’s contacts, we 
were fortunate enough to procure 
the services of local aboriginal artist 
Colin wightman, who produced 
a number of paintings for display 
within the department.

throughout 2011/2012 we bid 
farewell to many long-serving 
palliative care staff members 
including Clinical Nurse Consultant, 
yvonne rohr, registered Nurse 
(rN) lynne stewart who retired. rN 
Megan Kauter has relocated to the 
Medical Centre, rN Cheryl pavey has 
moved to the radiotherapy oncology 
clinic, rN paul Collins has relocated 
to Darwin and rN robyn Cutcliffe 
has moved rurally for a lifestyle 
change.

Both yvonne and lynne commenced 

work at the hospice when it first 
opened in 1994. Megan, Cheryl, 
paul and robyn have worked in 
the hospice, intermittentley, for the 
past ten years. their professional 
contribution to palliative care has 
been greatly appreciated over the 
years and we wish them well in their 
new endeavours.

in May, the aria database for 
palliative care was introduced. this 
included the rollout of the outreach 
nursing staff using laptops when 
visiting patients in their home.

the research unit within the 
department remains involved in a 
number of clinical trials with the 
palliative Care Clinical studies 
Collaborative (paCCsC), Queensland 
University of technology, 
Queensland iMet and more recently 
with GW Pharmaceuticals, as well as 
some smaller investigator initiated 
studies.

we were open to recruitment for a 
total of 11 studies throughout the 
financial year. the Methylphenidate 
for fatigue study ran by Queensland 
iMet was completed in february 
2012 and the second of the paCCsC 

studies (octreotide for Bowel 
obstruction) was completed in May 
2012.

this year, a total of 116 patients 
agreed to receive information about 
clinical trial participation, 25 patients 
gave consent and went on to 
participate in a clinical trial.

the department remains actively 
involved in quality improvement 
projects, reviews and education, 
including:

• research and statistics working 
party

• falls working party

• Medication Management working 
party

• National standards assessment 
program (Nsap)

• palliative Care review Committee

Day Hospice Programme
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Hunter and Northern NSW Youth Cancer Service

Calvary Mater Newcastle has a new 
service dedicated to adolescent 
and young adults (aya) aged 
between 15-25 years who have been 
diagnosed with cancer. 

the Hunter and Northern Nsw 
youth Cancer service (yCs) is 
based at Calvary Mater Newcastle. 
this service is the latest yCs 
established within Nsw/aCt as 
part of the youth Cancer Network 
project. the team comprises of four 
health professionals with extensive 
experience working with paediatric, 
adolescent and young adult cancer 
patients. the yCs has a clinical 
nurse consultant, social worker and 
clinical psychologist based at Calvary 
Mater Newcastle and an adolescent 
oncologist located at John Hunter 

Children’s Hospital. the service 
provides consultation, advice and 
support to young patients, treated 
either as public patients or in the 
private sector fostering collaboration 
between adult and paediatric cancer 
services. 

this team has proactively built 
strong relationships with medical 
oncology, haematology, radiation 
oncology, surgery, palliative care 
and rural cancer services as well 
as the other yCs within Nsw and 
aCt to maximise co-ordination of 
care, psychosocial support, increase 
health literacy and provide access to 
financial assistance. 

Quality care for adolescent and 
young adult cancer patients requires 
a dedicated multi-disciplinary 

team of health professionals, 
knowledgeable about cancer care 
and adolescent health. the clinical 
nurse consultant, social worker 
and clinical psychologist are all 
introduced to the patient and utilise 
the aya psycho-social screening 
tool to provide a proactive rather 
than reactive health care service 
delivery model. 

Being an adolescent or young adult 
is not easy at the best of times and 
a cancer diagnosis can be very 
difficult for a young person to deal 
with as they transition through this 
vulnerable time in their development. 
our team provides highly specialised, 
nursing, medical and psychological 
support to young people who need 
it.
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activity in the intensive Care Unit 
continues to be high with 384 
admissions, of which 57% were 
ventilated. average occupancy 
for the unit was 83% and average 
length of stay was 4.3 days. iCU 
continues to provide hospital 
wide services which include the 
emergency medical response, 
central line insertion and nutritional 
support for patients requiring tpN 
(in conjunction with the Dietetics 
Department). 

the biggest impact on the iCU 
this year has again been our role 
on the rapid response team 
which provides the response to 
clinical emergencies throughout 
the hospital. there were 628 rapid 
response team calls this year, with 
the 90 calls in June being twice the 
monthly average.

the iCU continues to be an active 
member of the aNZiCs Clinical 
trials Group participating in several 
multicentre, international research 
projects. 

the 5th point prevalence study 
Day has been completed; this trial 
provides data that further trials can 
then be based on. the multicentre 
trials CHest (comparing saline 
to starch for fluid resuscitation) 
is now complete and we are 
awaiting publication of the results. 
Nephro-protect (determining if 
supplemental protein protects 
kidney function) continues and we 
are about to commence aDreNal 
(hydrocortisone in septic shock) 
and transfuse trials. 

the research co-ordinators for 
these trials, suzanna vale and 
irene Bailey, have again been 
complimented by the trial Co-
ordinators on the exemplary 
manner they have managed these 
projects at the hospital. 

in addition, we would like to 
welcome senior intensivists Drs 
peter saul and Ursula Beckmann to 
our team.

Intensive Care UnitOncology Nurse Practitioner

McGrath Breast Care Nurse

the last 12 months have shown 
a significant change to patient 
review with the introduction of on 
treatment review and long term 
follow up clinics by the oncology 
Nurse practitioner, Gillian Blanchard. 
776 occasions of service have been 
undertaken for the period august 
2011 – June 2012. 

the change to the way patients have 
been reviewed has now become 
an accepted part of the oncology 
service at Calvary Mater Newcastle.  
this change seems to be very 
acceptable to patients who are 
undergoing care. a quality activity 
involving a patient satisfaction survey 
was undertaken of the patients seen 
in the Day treatment review Clinic in 
august- september 2011. the survey 
response rate was positive with a 
participation rate of 67.5%.

the preliminary results indicated 
that patients were strongly satisfied 

with the new service provided by 
the oncology Nurse practitioner in 
all categories including satisfaction 
with time spent with them to 
discuss treatment and any issues 
concerning their care, knowledge 
of the oncology Nurse practitioner, 
communication, and overall 
satisfaction and preference. Many 
patients also provided additional 
information and feedback indicating 
their overall satisfaction with the 
service. 

we would like to make 
acknowledgement to the supporters 
of Cancer and port waratah Coal 
services for their valuable support 
and contribution to establishing the 
oncology Nurse practitioner service 
at Calvary Mater Newcastle. this 
service is highly valued by all who 
use it and is a great asset to the 
medical oncology service provided 
by Calvary Mater Newcastle.

this year has been challenging and 
rewarding seeing 270 new patients 
as well as providing ongoing contact 
for previous patients, providing 
much needed physical and emotional 
support to women and their families.

whilst providing care and support to 
patients is my main focus, another 
significant role is promoting breast 
awareness within the community 
encouraging greater awareness of 
the importance of early detection. 
throughout the year i have given 
talks to the community regarding 
breast awareness and also continued 
to work closely with the aboriginal 
cancer project officers based at 
waratah.

in october 2011 we celebrated Mini 
fields of women Day in the hospital 
foyer. a display featuring local 
services for patients and families was 
a wonderful success with a morning 
tea sponsored by our long-time 
partner, Bakers Delight, waratah.

i have taken a committee position 
on the Hunter Breast Cancer Nurses 
Group, sponsored by the annual 
lawler partners Charity Breakfast 
held at wests each october. we 
provide complimentary education 
days for Hunter Nurses working with 
breast cancer patients. 

we also provided nurses two 
educational scholarships for the 
Breast Care Nurse Course. this year 
we have provided sponsorships for 
20 nurses to attend conferences and 
180 nurses attended education days.

realising the community need  
for further support, Debra Cook, 
Breast Cancer Coordinator, social 
worker, emma sturgess and myself 
have developed an education and 
well-being program commencing 
in february next year. the twelve 
week program is a partnership with 
the hospital and the Hunter Breast 
Cancer foundation. a productive 
year indeed.
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it has been another busy year in 
the Melanoma Unit with a variety 
of challenges to face.  we sadly 
said farewell to professor peter 
Hersey who has been a valued 
member of the Melanoma Unit for 
the last 28 years.  He has worked 
as a clinician, seeing patients with 
high risk melanoma and patients 
with metastatic melanoma as well 
as having his own laboratory as a 
translational researcher. 

professor Hersey has taken up 
an appointment as professor of 
Melanoma Biology at the University 
of sydney.  He has been a tireless 
worker for the benefit of melanoma 
patients and a world leader in 
melanoma research. He will be greatly 
missed by all. 

we welcome Dr andre van der 
westhuizen to the Melanoma Unit. 
Dr van der westhuizen comes from 
south africa and has been working 
in medical oncology at Calvary Mater 
Newcastle for two years and has now 
joined the team of the Melanoma Unit. 

Dr van der westhuizen sees 
melanoma patients with high 
risk melanoma and patients with 
metastatic melanoma. Dr van 
der westhuizen’s experience as 
a medical oncologist, as well as 
a geneticist brings great medical 
skill and is very welcome. we are 
fortunate to also have Dr Megan 

lyle, advanced trainee, working 
with Dr van der westhuizen. they 
both have shown a great interest 
in melanoma management and 
treatment of melanoma patients. they 
have been able to attend a number 
of conferences and workshops on 
the new treatments for melanoma as 
well as the Multi-Disciplinary team 
meeting at the Melanoma institute of 
australia. 

the Hunter Melanoma foundation 
continues to support the Melanoma 
Unit and is of great benefit to the 
people of the Hunter region. the 
foundation has a new campaign 
called Check Mate. this campaign 
is aimed at getting men over 50 to 
check their own skin and to listen to 
their wives in the hope of detecting 
melanoma early in this target 
population. 

More than 50% of melanoma 
deaths are in men aged over 50. 
the message still needs to spread 
that there is a 97% cure rate when 
melanoma is picked up early and 
the best way of detection is self skin 
examination and regular check-ups 
with Gps by everyone.

the medical treatment of melanoma 
has shown great promise. this 
year has seen the registering of 
two new drugs for the treatment 
of metastatic melanoma with the 
therapeutic Goods administration. 

we also continue to see patients for 
consideration of new clinical trials.

surgical management continues to 
be the main treatment modality for 
melanoma patients. a diathermy 
machine has been purchased by the 
unit and will be used to enable us to 
attend to excisional biopsies and wide 
excision of thin melanoma. these 
procedures are attended under local 
anaesthetic here in the unit every 
two weeks by Dr Mike reid. this 
service continues to free up some of 
the surgeons theatre time for wide 
excision of thicker primary melanoma 
or more involved surgery.

the Newcastle permanent Charitable 
foundation has donated an 
ultrasound machine to the unit. this 
is a useful machine for the doctors 
and nurses and has been used to 
view lymph nodes pre-op’ or seroma 
post operatively. 

the nursing staff have attended 
several conferences about melanoma 
as well as conferences focussing 
on wound care. also beneficial are 
the workshops about new emerging 
treatment drugs for melanoma with 
international speakers. these have all 
been useful and most informative for 
all in the Melanoma Unit.

altogether it has been an interesting 
and busy year and we look forward to 
the year ahead.

Melanoma Unit 
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the 29 bed surgical Unit provides 
a service for general and surgical 
oncology patients. 

the surgical Unit provides care for 
general and oncological surgical 
patients. the stomal therapy wound 
Management, acute pain service 
and the McGrath Breast Care Nurse 
are managed from the surgical 
Unit and all are very successful and 
useful services bettering our patient 
outcomes across the board.

we were most fortunate to be one 
of the first units in the hospital to 
implement the award changes Nurse 
Hours per patient Day (NHppD) in 
November 2011. recruitment of 
additional full time equivalent nurses 
has allowed review of our model of 
care.

as a Catholic hospital Calvary 
Mater Newcastle (CMN) adheres to 
the philosophy of Catholic social 
teaching. Clinical practice at CMN is 
underpinned by the Code of ethical 
standards for Catholic Health and 
aged Care facilities in australia by 
Catholic Health australia (CHa). the 
relationship between the Hospital’s 
Clinical ethics Committee and Hunter 
New england Human research 
and ethics Committee (HNeHreC) 
continues to be productive and 
beneficial for both organisations. 
Close co-operation and monitoring 
of the application and approval 
regime for research at CMN has been 
maintained and has ensured that 
the process remains very efficient 
with minimum delays in the approval 
process.

the Clinical ethics Committee 
received approval for a reproductive 
risk statement to be included in the 
participant information and Consent 
form (piCf) in all applications 
for research involving human 

Surgical Unit 

The Clinical Ethics Committee

essentials of Care (eoC) has been 
successfully utilised for many 
projects in our unit but most 
recently changes regarding NHppD 
were put into operation using eoC 
methodology. eoC is a practice 
development approach that allows 
nurses to celebrate the good care 
they provide as well as identify 
opportunities to improve care even 
further. the eoC program evaluates 
the person-centred nature of the care 
environment and is clinician driven 
with management support.

we received a substantial donation 
from the Newcastle Buses from its 
annual fundraiser the “santa Bus”, 
which allowed the unit to purchase an 
entonox Machine for use on patients 
to provide pain relief during dressing 
changes. 

participants. the wording is similar to 
wording that is used by all Catholic 
Hospitals throughout australia, where 
specific research is undertaken which 
may impact on the life of an unborn 
child. 

During 2011/2012 four ethics forums 
were organised for CMN staff:

organ Donation after Cardiac Death - 
Dr peter saul and Ms Jennette lacey

Dying with Dignity – fr Kevin 
McGovern

advance Care planning – Dr 
Bernadette tobin

life Before Death – Documentary on 
availability of pain relief at end of life

CMN developed a policy about 
organ Donation after Cardiac Death 
in line with Nsw Ministry of Health 
Guidelines. this policy has been 
approved by little Company of Mary 
Health Care (lCMHC) for use on a 
national basis.

Mrs alison lee acting Director of 

Medical services Calvary Mater 

Newcastle (CMN) as acting 

Chairperson.

Mr Kevin Mulligan, Director of 

Mission, CMN.

Dr aidan foy, associate professor, 

General Medicine, CMN and 

Chairman, Medical staff Council 

CMN.

Dr tim stanley, staff specialist, 

iCU, CMN; executive member 

Medical staff Council CMN.

Dr John Cavenagh, staff specialist, 

palliative Care, CMN. 

Ms elizabeth Milligan, Deputy 

Director of social work, CMN.

Ms Maria McDonald, Nursing 

representative, CNs, Haematology, 

CMN.

Ms Mary ringstad, pastoral Care 

Manager, CMN.

fr Barry tunks Chaplain, CMN, 

vicar General, Catholic Diocese of 

Maitland Newcastle.

Mr wayne Dever lawyer, MrM 

lawyers, Mayfield.  

Mr Dennis Carroll theologian, and 

ethicist, school of theology and 

religious studies, University of 

Newcastle.

Mrs paula watts, Community 

representative.

the appointment of Dr rosemary 

aldrich to the position of Director of 

Clinical services (Medical) in august 

2012 means that alison lee will 

vacate the position of Chairperson 

in favour of Dr aldrich.  

the Clinical ethics Committee 

meets on the third tuesday of each 

month.

Clinical Ethics Committee 
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Continued improvements have 
been made to the hospital’s staff 
recruitment processes. with 
assistance from the it Department, 
Convenors of selection Committees 
can now view and manage electronic 
applications, expediting the 
selection process, minimising paper 
consumption and eliminating the risk 
of lost and misplaced applications 
and files. 

also, with direction from the  
seeK.com account manager, 
filtering questions have been placed 
in all online advertisements. the 
filtering questions direct applicants 
to the hospital’s website for full 
instructions on how to lodge 
applications that comply with the 
minimum requirements. the result 
has been a drastic reduction in poor 
quality applications and unnecessary 
correspondence with candidates 
during the selection process. we 
welcome this change.

1 July 2012 will signal the beginning 
of the new quinnquenium (the 
five-year period for which staff 
specialists and visiting Medical 
officers (vMos) are credentialled 
for specific responsibilities. the 
Human resources Department, 
in collaboration with the Medical 
administration Department, drafted 
and processed approximately 85 new 
contracts and over 200 extension 
of privilege letters to specialists 
and vMos in the lead up to 
commencement.

Human Resources as a result of changes to the Nurses’ 
enterprise agreement, nursing hours 
per patient day (NHppD) ratios now 
determine the number of nurses 
required to provide direct clinical 
care to patients. this has resulted in 
the need to increase the number of 
nurses employed in wards throughout 
the hospital. 

a number of strategies have 
been implemented to ensure the 
requirement for more nurses is met, 
including the direct recruitment of 
qualified nurses from overseas. the 
Hr Department interviewed many 
overseas nurses by telephone and 
assessed their suitability for work at 
Calvary Mater Newcastle. 

after liaison with the Department 
of immigration and Citizenship 
and aHpra (the australian Health 
practitioner regulation agency), 
the hospital has so far recruited 
five registered Nurses from the 
United Kingdom and ireland. the 
nurses have fitted in very well at the 
hospital and their experience and 
skills have been warmly welcomed 
by existing staff members. staff 
and management have supported 
and assisted the nurses with their 
applications for permanent residency, 
with one application already granted 
and others pending.

there has been a significant increase 
in the number of overseas recruits 
appointed under sponsorship 
arrangements, 457 temporary 
visas and permanent residency 
applications. 

this has occurred due to:

• a direct overseas recruitment drive 
for nursing staff and registrar/
Medical officers (as mentioned 
above);

• appropriately qualified candidates 
applying for positions vacant online 
at seeK.com; and

• recommendations from recruitment 
agencies specialising in Health 
professionals.

Much work has been achieved to 
progress the implementation of the 
new Chris 21 payroll system which 
is being rolled out across little 
Company of Mary Health Care. with 
staff covered by conditions equivalent 
to those of Nsw public sector 
health employees, Calvary Mater 
Newcastle operates in one of the 
most complex payroll environments 
in australia. significant attention 
to detail has been applied to each 
step of the implementation process 
in order to avoid potential under/
over payment errors. with parallel 
test runs expected soon to test the 
reliability of the system, Chris 21 will 
be operational within the coming 
months. well done to all staff involved 
in this pursuit.

there were 12 lost time injuries 
(ltis) in 2011/2012. this is a 
reduction in the number of ltis that 
occurred in 2010/2011 and less than 
half the number of ltis that occurred 
just five years ago. this result reflects 
equally pleasing results achieved in 
this year’s workplace Health, safety 
& injury Management (wHs&iM) audit 
which saw significant improvements 
in wHs&iM compliance across all 
“standards”. 
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the public affairs and 
Communications Unit has had 
an interesting and busy year with 
involvement in a vast range of 
hospital and community projects and 
events. the 2012 communications 
plan has encouraged the exploration 
of public relations opportunities 
both with staff and with our 
community. this process provided 
us with the opportunity to conduct 
a swot analysis to gauge potential 
opportunities and to further 
consolidate the positioning of Calvary 
Mater Newcastle within the hospital 
and community. 

our current involvement in many 
internal health care projects, 
assistance with education/marketing 
tools and promotional events, has 
seen the unit have an exceptionally 
busy year.

we are pleased to have had the 
opportunity to be involved and 
provide input to a number of hospital 
activities and projects throughout 
the year. we have provided expertise 
to many departments assisting with 
creative strategies, compliance to 
hospital brand and assistance with 
co-ordination to deadline.  

we have enjoyed our involvement with 
staff and departments throughout the 
year and the opportunity to assist in 
achieving successful outcomes for 
their projects and promotions. we are 
pleased to have been involved in the 
following hospital activities:

• assistance with the development 
of sponsorship and community 
fundraising opportunities with the 
hospital auxiliary

• organisation of the Hair Ball 2011 
– marking ten years of fundraising 
with an end result of raising over 
$750,000 during the lifespan of this 
event

• organisation and co-ordination of 
wig week 2011, The Musical

• production of the hospital’s 
monthly newsletter Mater Matters 
and proactive co-ordination of 
information inserts

• Conducted a community focus 
group on hand hygiene 

• Hospital Hand Hygiene launch – 
Clean Hands poster

• Clean Hands? tattoo campaign 
promoting hand washing to help 
reduce hospital acquired infections

• research, editing and co-ordination 
of six published articles in Hunter 
lifestyle Magazine 

• involvement in the Heritage 
Committee to re-establish hospital 
artefacts to their original locations 
and compiled a work plan for future 
room naming

• Co-ordination of Hospice 
Community arts program

• assistance with the organisation 
of the 2011 Celebration of service 
awards

• Co-ordination and involvement 
of hospital events – international 
Nurses Day, world’s Greatest 
shave, Dry July 2011, Multi-Cultural 
Health week, Mini-fields of women, 
look in our Backyard photography 
exhibition and auxiliary aGM.

• Management of all hospital media 
and promotional press releases

• attended six guest speaking 
engagements and ten cheque 
handovers

• Managed the onsite logistics for 
two aBC four Corners reports/
productions - ‘the Miracles of 
Mary McKillop’ and the ‘forced 
adoptions’ issue. and, filming for a 
national television commercial ‘what 
Matters’ for Xstrata Coal. 

• Managed publicity for the 
announcement of the new oncology 
Nurse practitioner in conjunction 
with port waratah Coal services 
and supporters of Cancer

• Co-ordinated four Department 
Managers’ forums 2011/12 

the public affairs and 
Communications Manager was 
appointed to the Community advisory 
Board in september 2011 and will 
be part of driving new initiatives 
in community engagement to 
consolidate partnerships with the 
wider community.  

the wig service is a free volunteer 
run service for hospital patients 
who lose their hair during cancer 
treatment. the service looked after 
approximately 220 patients this year 
providing each patient with a new wig 
and professional fitting. 

the service has a high standard of 
care and an outstanding reputation 
within the community and has 
inspired some private hospitals to 
found their own service for privately 
insured patients. 

the wig service is ably run by 
volunteers Kim rossi and Margaret 
Bottrill who were proud finalists in this 
year’s Hunter New england Health 
achievement awards. we thank both 
Kim and Margaret for their continued 
support of this service, without 
their time this service would not be 
possible. 

the service is further supported by 
the friendly reception and booking 
staff, Judy young and Denise 
ashman, who co-ordinate the 
bookings for this important service. 

this year staff dressed up to the 
theme of “Mater, the Musical” with 
many departments giving outstanding 
performances in dressing up and 
singing for patients and staff. 

Public Affairs and Communications 
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Quality
Calvary Mater Newcastle (CMN) 
staff are committed to ensuring that 
patients receive the best possible 
care by striving to continually improve 
patient safety and the processes 
associated with care delivery. to 
ensure that patients receive the best 
possible level of care we continue 
to monitor, report and benchmark 
a number of indicators that flag the 
effectiveness of the care systems. 
During 2011/12 CMN reported the 
performance of over 59 clinical 
indicators to the australian Council 
on Healthcare standards (aCHs) 
and 50 indicators were reported as 

performing within or better than the 
aCHs rate.

CMN hosted a three day site visit by 
three aCHs surveyors from the 1-3 
November 2011. the survey team 
was impressed with the number of 
strategies that are in place to provide 
effective and efficient services and 
maximise the services offered within 
the available resources. 

the surveyors reported that there 
is a strong commitment to the 
delivery of quality care and services 
throughout CMN and quality 
improvement is embedded in the 
values and practices. the eight 
recommendations from organisation 
wide survey (aug 2009) were 

closed and seven new actions were 
recommended.  

the Clinical education and training 
institute accreditation survey was 
conducted on the 8 March 2012. 
CMN was awarded three years 
accreditation for Junior Medical 
officer training. During 2011 we were 
also awarded five years accreditation 
for Basic physician training by the 
royal australian College of physicians 
and five years accreditation for 
advanced training in medical 
oncology. the australasian College 
of emergency Medicine, the royal 
australian and New Zealand College 
of radiologists and the australasian 
and New Zealand College of 

it was a significant occasion for the 
final Hair Ball marking ten years 
of community fundraising and 
awareness with over 320 guests in 
attendance at the Civic theatre, 
Newcastle. 

the theme was venetian Carnivale 
and it raised $65,000 for cancer 
patient care, comfort and research. 
the proceeds of the ball went to 
assisting the fundraising effort in 
providing new ‘up-to-the minute’ 
needed endoscopic and sterilising 
equipment and a cancer research 
grant. 

we thank the Hair Ball Committee 
and sponsors past and present. the 
Junction Hotel, the Jewellery affair, 
Domayne Kotara, southern Cross 
ten, Glen Geary and the Good Guys 
Kotara, Gallerie fine Jewellery and 
all of our community supporters who 
each year have sponsored and made 
this event possible, enabling us to 
buy important hospital equipment to 
make life easier for cancer patients. 
a proud investment is also the grants 
awarded from ball proceeds to our 
Mater cancer researchers.

fundraising and community donations 
continue to be consistent for the 
hospital especially in the areas of 
oncology and research. we thank 
the community and the following 
donors for their significant donations, 
kindness and support.

Donors 
the Kahibah Bowling Club and 
travelling Bowlers

Heffron employees and families

lake Macquarie soccer Club

Newcastle Buses and the state 
transit authority

Beresfield lioness Club

the Ko surf Classic 

Charlestown Bowling Club

supporters of Cancer

port waratah Coal services

renee spice and the lambton park 
Hotel

Mater Graduate Nurses

Jesmond lions Club

Hexham Bowling Club and Hexham 
social Golf

adamstown rosebud Junior football 
Club

Cessnock City Council

longriders Motorcycle Club

renae perry Dance

UMfa Northern District Branch

waratah Mayfield rsl sub Branch

Hollie Davis

Chelle van photography

the Harvey family Bubble and Bling

the spinning Knitwits

the hospital sincerely thanks Calvary 
Mater Newcastle auxiliary members 
for their ongoing dedication and 
support of our hospital. their support 
enables us to buy hospital equipment 
for patient care and comfort and 
for this we are most grateful to the 
members. 

Calvary Mater Newcastle auxiliary 
members are appreciated by all 
hospital staff and we see their 
fundraising work as being at the core 
of our values and at the provision of 
health care services at Calvary Mater 
Newcastle. we thank each and every 
member for their tireless work which 
is indeed outstanding.  

we take this opportunity to thank 
volunteer, Maggie sulman, for her 
committed work within the public 
affairs and Communications Unit. 
Maggie is a volunteer of 20 years and 
has a valuable all round knowledge of 
the hospital, its staff and community. 
Maggie gives two days each week 
to the unit and we thank her for her 
ongoing commitment. Maggie adds 
value to the service we provide.
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Calvary Mater Newcastle Auxiliary ‘Cancer Carers’ 

‘The heart of a volunteer is not 
measured in size but by the 
depth of commitment to make a 
difference in the life of others’.

the auxiliary has well and truly 
made that commitment this year 
through the values of hospitality, 
healing, stewardship and respect.

it is with much pleasure that i present 
the treasurer’s report for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2012.

this year we entered into a 
$300,000.00 partnership with 
Xstrata Coal Nsw to purchase 
vital equipment for our operating 
theatres expediting surgery 
procedures for patients. Both 
parties contributed $150,000.00.

we are most grateful to Xstrata Coal 
Nsw for their commitment as part of 
their Corporate social involvement 
program “what Matters”. like our 
auxiliary, “people Matter to Xstrata”.

During the year we have purchased 
vital equipment for the care and 
comfort of cancer patients. our 
total expenditure on equipment 
for the year is $392,182.00, 
with a further commitment of 
$166,980.00 for equipment 
orders that have been placed.

i would like to add a special thanks to 
Jo pritchard for her tireless effort as 
the assistant treasurer.

fundraising success is the result 
of working as a team. these 
results would not have been 
possible without the assistance 
of the following people:

• public affairs and Communications 
Department 
ingrid Grenell and amber Dale

• finance Department  
lynda evans and Katrina thornton

• David Millington’s team 
peter, peter and peter

• Calvary Mater Newcastle staff

• Mental Health staff

• Kay woods

• Hospital volunteers 

• our lolly packing friends who assist 
with the packaging of lollies (known 
as quality control experts for their 
self sacrifice in product testing)

• Continued support from the Bowling 
Clubs, Muree Golf Club, our 
families, friends and members of the 
community

activities this year included:

• Catering at Bowls Days

• special occasion lunches

• fashion parades

• Coach trips

• trivia Night

• Manning the photo exhibition at 
Charlestown square

• Golf Day

• trading stalls at the hospital

• packing 4,679 kilos of lollies

we are so fortunate to have such 
great auxiliary members, who 
enjoy what we do, what we are 
about and each others company.

the financial result for the year 
ending 30th June 2012 is:

Gross iNCoMe  
for tHe year: $506,168.78

eXpeNses: $60,484.80

Net proCeeDs  
for tHe year:     $445,683.98

Well done team members. What a 
great result!

to our Ceo Greg flint, we assure you 
that we will continue with our best 
effort for the next financial year with 
the same spirit as always “being for 
others”.

anaesthetists also accredited relevant 
specialist training programs.

CMN strongly supports continuous 
improvement methodology and 
has participated in various Nsw 
Ministry of Health initiatives, 
including, the Nsw Health Quality 
systems assessment, the ongoing 
Between the flags DeteCt program, 
improving the detection of the 
deteriorating patient, the reaCH 
family/carer communication project, 
the Quality systems self-assessment, 
the emergency Department sepsis 
Kills program and the Hand Hygiene 
program. CMN is also actively 
participating in the lCMHC palliative 
and end of life Care project and has 

initiated a number of local projects 
including best practice mouth hygiene 
of iCU patients and tracheostomy 
care, a hospital wide approach.

promotion of a patient safety culture 
and participation in the broader 
reporting and benchmarking activities 
of the little Company of Mary Health 
Care faculties continues. five root 
Cause analysis (rCa) investigations 
were commissioned during 2011/12 
to investigate significant adverse 
events and the 12 recommendations 
have been implemented. 

CMN continues to recognise that 
prompt response to customer 
feedback is important. the little 
Company of Mary Healthcare and 

Nsw Ministry of Health benchmarks 
demonstrate that the hospital 
acknowledged and resolved 
complaints in a more timely manner 
when compared with other facilities.

to ensure CMN remains responsive 
to community and patient needs, we 
continue to actively seek customer 
feedback by participating in the Nsw 
Health inpatients, day-only inpatients, 
emergency non-admitted patients 
and outpatient services satisfaction 
surveys. overall these patients scored 
our hospital care higher than the state 
average across all aspects of care. a 
good result indeed.
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Health Information Services  
and Information Technology
incorporating the following 
departments and functions: Health 
information, Clinical Coding, 
information technology, patient 
services (which includes emergency 
reception, admission office, waiting 
list Management, Main reception, 
switchboard services), Clinical 
information (Medical records), and 
the Medical Centre (outpatient) front 
office/reception.

all areas have been extremely busy 
this year supporting the growing 
complexity of services and systems 
across the hospital.  Continuing 
high patient activity levels, and the 
ongoing development of electronic 
health record systems, have resulted 
in a number of significant challenges 
for staff, many of which will continue 
for some years to come in varying 
ways and degrees. 

the skill sets and dedication of staff 
in all areas is to be commended.  
Covering priority aspects of multiple 
roles at times, being asked to 
take on new ways of doing things, 
and adapting to an ever changing 
environment, have become nearly 
second nature to many of our staff.   

New computer systems implemented 
during the year have included the 
provation endoscopy information 
system introduced into the theatres 

March 2012, much to the delight of 
our surgeons, and the aria system 
introduced into palliative Care 
services, May 2012, as an extension 
of the already existing aria Medical 
oncology/Haematology information 
system.  

information technology (it) Disaster 
recovery planning (and ability) has 
been an increased focus as the 
hospital relies more and more on 
it systems and integrity of data 
to support nearly every aspect of 
the business.  Maintaining an it 
infrastructure which can support the 
growing demand for storage of data 
and connectivity with wider services 
will remain a challenge for this tightly 
budgeted service.

another significant area of change 
and increased focus for our services 
has been and will continue to be in 
the area of patient activity reporting, 
due to the Nsw Ministry of Health 
implementation of activity Based 
funding (aBf) models.  if Calvary 
Mater Newcastle is to receive its fair 
share of the available health budget 
it must be as well aligned as possible 
to submit high quality data for all 
aspects of activity.

the increased focus on non-inpatient 
data collection and reporting has 
required the development and 

presentation of information sessions 
to clinical and administrative staff. 
this outlines the details of newer 
requirements for data items, but also 
to discuss what ‘approved’ systems 
the various activity can be reported 
via to meet external reporting 
requirements and determining how to 
achieve this.

Clinical Coding has also come into 
higher focus this year as the DrG 
data derived from the inpatient 
coding process is increasingly used 
to assist aBf discussions, and as a 
unit of measure for reporting hospital 
performance.  it is imperative that 
we continue to attract and retain a 
skilled coding workforce, and that 
across the board the quality of clinical 
documentation which underpins the 
coding function continues to improve.

patient services has been involved in 
devolving further administrative tasks 
related to patient movements in the 
ipM system to some wards, such as 
the transfer and discharge functions, 
aimed at improving the timeliness of 
bed availability data, which in turns 
assists patient flow.  a number of 
data capture and reporting processes 
have been reviewed and made more 
efficient, as well as changes to some 
roles, which have enabled the most 
effective rosters possible within 
resources across services. 

the frontline services have continued 
to welcome staff, patients and visitors 
alike, albeit in an increasingly busy 
environment. our staff take great 
pride in their frontline work with our 
patients and visitors.

in the Clinical information Department 
increased workloads have also 
been well accommodated.  priority 
workloads have continued to flow 
well generally, due to a dedicated and 
flexible team approach by those staff 
to their daily work. a high priority area 
for management of this service is to 
continue to work through the dilemma 
of how to move the hospital to overall 
reliance on electronic documentation 
and results, rather than requiring the 
paper copies as well. the transitory 
environment of electronic health 
records (eHr) development, which 
is incremental and taking overall 
a number of years, has certainly 
increased the complexity of access to 
clinical information. 
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throughout 2011/12 the Calvary 
Mater Newcastle pharmacy retained 
its patient focus through quality 
activities aimed at both improving 
patient outcomes and contributing 
to the most cost effective use of 
resources.  this result is achieved 
through the commitment and 
teamwork demonstrated by all 
members of the pharmacy.

the pharmacists are involved in:

• Counselling patients/patient carers 
about medications 

• working with clinicians to ensure 
the quality use of medicines within 
the hospital 

• Delivering medication-oriented talks 
to specialist interest groups within 
the community

staff members actively participate 
in hospital, area wide and national 
committees, specialist clinical teams 
and numerous clinical trials.  

the pharmacy maintains its 
involvement in the National 

Medication safety initiatives and 
participates in the periodic audits 
associated with the National 
Medication Chart.  

in 2011/12, Calvary Mater Newcastle 
pharmacy has collaborated on a 
number of projects with the University 
of Newcastle and Nsw taG.  these 
projects include:

1. education of Junior Medical 
officers with respect to how to 
maximise the use of the admission 
medication history form with the view 
of optimising patient care 

2. participation in a pilot project 
aimed at improving prescription 
writing. pharmacists conduct regular 
tutorials with final year medical 
students on a ‘one on one’ basis.  
the aim of this project is to determine 
the resources required to maintain 
this educational component on an 
ongoing basis.

the pharmacy continued its role in 
student education by supervising 

postgraduate students from University 
of Newcastle.  the introduction of 
the University of Newcastle’s Masters 
in pharmacy course has generated 
a large teaching commitment for all 
pharmacists and we are responsible 
for supervising students from both 
years on a rotating basis.  in addition, 
the pharmacy accepted student 
pharmacists from the University of 
sydney and Queensland University 
this year.

the outsourcing of targeted 
chemotherapy commenced in august, 
2011.  its introduction, whilst freeing 
up some pharmacy compounding 
time, has resulted in an increased 
workload with respect to clinical 
pharmacists’ management of the 
chemotherapy prescription writing 
process.  

the oncology and haematology 
pharmacy staff continue to 
work with Hunter New england 
information technology support and 
Development Department on the 

Pharmacy

providing nutrition support for 
patients at nutrition risk is core 
business for dietetics. in 2011/2012 
the dietetics service was involved 
in the care of over 2,350 inpatients 
and 2,100 oncology outpatients, with 
nearly 8,300 occasions of service 
combined. each day there are 
40-55 hospitalised patients whose 
nutrition care is managed under a 
dietician. the most common nutrition 
diagnoses being inadequate oral 
intake (27%) and malnutrition (24%). 

the Nsw Nutrition Care policy was 
released in December 2012 with the 
main objective to identify and support 
patients at risk of malnutrition. a 
strategic approach to provide a team 
base approach to nutrition care is 
being put in place and co-ordinated 
through the Calvary Mater Newcastle 

Nutrition Care Committee.  to date 
activities such as observational audits 
of the meal time environment, audits 
of nutrition screening and assessment 
practices and evaluation of the 
hospital menu have been undertaken.

with the support of University 
of Newcastle dietetic students, 
the department has been able to 
undertake needs assessments where 
service gaps have been identified. 
projects such as ‘continuing care 
for head and neck cancer patients 
following radiation or chemo-radiation 
(2011)’ and ‘an evaluation of current 
dietetic services in the chemotherapy 
overnight treatment unit (2012)’ give 
us much needed information.

our staff continues to do a great 
job advocating for patients whom 

rely on a feeding tube for nutrition 
support. Meeting the costs is a 
challenge for patients and we are 
thankful to the port waratah Coal 
services for donating $2,000 from its 
employee donations program to aid 
those experiencing financial hardship 
during illness. ongoing support from 
the hospital through the co-payment 
model remains a much valued part of 
the support we offer these patients.

the department is active in research 
and quality activities; an example 
being the collaboration with the 
Department of psychiatry in the eat 
project, an NHMrC funded clinical 
psychology research study looking 
at enhancing the counselling skills of 
dietitians in providing nutrition advice 
for head and neck cancer patients to 
achieve better outcomes.

Nutrition and Dietetics
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the last year has been a particularly 
busy one, with unprecedented 
numbers of inpatient referrals as 
well as some staff changes. the 
Calvary Mater Newcastle/University of 
Newcastle speech pathology student 
Unit continues to function well, with 
funding apparently continuing over 
the next few years.

Current evidence is an important 
focus for our department, and has 
been well supported by participation 
in the Nsw speech pathology 
evidence Based practice Group. 
our department was responsible 
for organising the teleconference 
to enable local speech pathologists 
to participate in the end of year 
summation for this statewide group. 
we are very grateful to the lHD 
library service which helps us to 
quickly source articles for this group’s 
activities.

in a recent initiative with medical 
imaging, the department has now 
been able to record Modified Barium 
swallow reports on Cap. this means 
that results are more readily available 
to other clinicians to allow improved 
quality of care. another important 

project this year has looked at the 
referral process to speech pathology, 
resulting in more appropriate and 
accurate referrals, and improved 
workflow. we have also participated 
in the organisation of the HNelHD 
speech pathology stroke education 
Day.

revision of the speech pathology 
tracheostomy Management policy, 
as well as the development of 
some safe working practices, has 
underpinned our involvement in the 
multidisciplinary tracheostomy team. 
the department has been heavily 
involved in the activity of this group, 
looking at tracheostomy education 
and management across the hospital.  

over the coming year, the department 
is looking forward to developing 
a service to improve swallowing 
outcomes for radiation oncology 
patients, as well as continued 
involvement in the Head and Neck 
Cancer support Group. we also 
hope to improve consistency of 
diet textures for dysphagic patients 
through further education of catering 
staff.

the physiotherapy Department 
has been conducting a review of 
lymphoedema services across Hunter 
New england local Network and 
provided a report to the area Cancer 
Network on the strategies needed 
to improve services for all clients 
needing lymphoedema management. 
a priority list has now been developed 
to be utilised, should funds become 
available. Calvary Mater Newcastle 
physiotherapy service continues to 
provide lymphoedema services to 

clients throughout the local Health 
District and support to therapists 
throughout the region.

Calvary Mater Newcastle in 
conjunction with the University of 
Newcastle has established a full time 
student education unit in acute care 
with funds made available by the 
federal Government (Hwa program). 
funding has been approved for two 
years and the unit has improved 
patient care and timeliness of 
services at the hospital.

the physiotherapy Department 
is continuing to promote cancer 
services through presentation 
of lectures and tutorials to 
physiotherapy students at the 
University of Newcastle on the role of 
‘physiotherapy in cancer care’. 

the department continues to support 
education within the hospital and to 
patient support groups with assisting 
in programs such as the leukaemia 
foundation lymphoma Day and the 
Breast Centre support Group.

Speech Pathology

Physiotherapy

electronic chemotherapy chart (the 

aria project).  the aria system 

is proving beneficial to all users 

(doctors, nurses, pharmacists, 

clerical and administrative staff) 

and is being rolled out into other 

hospital departments.

four Calvary Mater Newcastle 

Hospital pharmacy technicians 

are currently undertaking a 

Certificate 3 course in Hospital/

Health services pharmacy 

support.  Grants from Nsw state 

training authority were allocated 

to the technicians to facilitate this 

undertaking.

Calvary Mater Newcastle 

pharmacists attended a number 

of sHpa courses this year to 

consolidate their knowledge in a 

range of pharmacy practice areas 

and which they are able to apply to 

their clinical practice at the Calvary 

Mater Newcastle.

the pharmacy remains committed 

in its support for medical research 

and is actively involved in more 

than 50 trials.  a Clinical trials 

pharmacist position was approved 

and successfully recruited in early 

2012.  this person has already 

made a positive impact on the 

management of clinical trials from 

a pharmacy perspective.
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Occupational Therapy

throughout the year, the 
occupational therapy Department 
has continued to provide a range of 
services across the hospital as well 
as participating in quality activities 
and student supervision.  

the oncology loan pool has provided 
aids for daily living to many hospital 
patients to help them and their 
families manage serious illnesses 
in their own home environment.  
expansion of this service continues 
to be a goal of the occupational 
therapy staff, especially in the area of 
pressure care management.

the auxiliary has been very 
supportive of the loan pool and 
in June 2012 paid for six new 
wheelchairs.  this equipment 
donation is appreciated by patients 

and feedback is very positive.

the ‘Meditation Group’, for oncology 
patients and their carers has 
continued to meet weekly and has 
constantly received positive feedback 
from all those who have participated.  
this group is facilitated jointly by 
occupational therapy and social work 
and has been meeting weekly for 
about 14 years,  a long term resource 
for our patients which has been of 
great value to many.

staff have continued their 
professional development throughout 
the year with attendance at 
conferences, in-services and local 
education days. occupational 
therapy delegates attended both the 
australasian allied Health and Nursing 
smartstrokes conference held at the 

Gold Coast in august 2011, and the 
whole Body National symposium held 
in sydney during March 2012.

as a profession, occupational therapy 
has now achieved full national aHpra 
registration status. this came into 
effect on 1 July 2012.

several undergraduate students 
completed clinical placements in the 
occupational therapy Department 
throughout the year, and our staff 
have been participating in developing 
learning modules for the occupational 
therapy program at the University of 
Newcastle.

occupational therapy week was 
celebrated in october 2011 with an 
early morning breakfast and health 
promotion in the hospital foyer.
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the last 12 months have presented 
the pastoral Care Department with 
many and varied opportunities to 
engage the wider community in 
conversation about our work as 
health care professionals in caring 
for people who are ill. this has been 
both challenging and satisfying 
and has resulted in our work being 
acknowledged as being at the 
forefront of pastoral care.

staff have been involved in specific 
education programmes such as:

• Clinical pastoral education 
(introductory and Basic Units) 
-supervisor and presenter

• rN Certificate in palliative Care - 
presenter

• Cert iv in the  palliative approach - 
presenter

• pepa education days - presenter

• New Graduate Nurses education 
CMN - presenter

• University of Newcastle Medical 
students (yrs1-5) - specific units 
palliative care

• University of Newcastle 
occupational therapy students  
(yr 4) - palliative Care Unit

Presentations in Educational 
forums. Workshops/seminars:

• Medical oncology forum psycho/
spiritual/social needs of patients/
families

• radiation oncology presentation on 
pastoral care services

• presentation to the emergency 
Department - end of life Care in 
eD; self Care for nursing staff

• CUeHl ethics forum - end of life 
Care

• palliative Care volunteers, Nsw 
Conference – presentation loss and 
Grief

• Maitland palliative Care volunteers 
education session - spiritual Care at 
end of life

• Catholic Diocese of Maitland-
Newcastle secondary school 
teachers’ professional Development 
Day – presentation pastoral Care in 
the context of australian spirituality

• Catholic Health australia 
Conference - presenter: fewer 
Clergy – pastoral Care for the 
future

• Diversity, Harmony and respect 
public forum, palliative Care week 
MC and presentation ‘Dying at 
Home’ – the story of an elderly 
Chinese australian

Guest Speaker:

• Nsw leukemia foundation annual 
remembrance service

a highlight of this year was the 
inaugural pastoral Care week dinner, 
organised and sponsored by the 
local branch of our professional 
association spiritual Care australia, 
in which we hold two executive 
positions. the celebratory dinner 
was attended by 80 people from the 
pastoral care and wider community, 
with guest speaker Mr peter Mitchell, 
author of ‘Compassionate Bastard’. 
the focus of the presentation was 
peter’s reflections on the needs and 
experience of refugees, the personal 
and professional choices in a 
constantly changing political context.

of recent concern has been our 
capacity as a department to provide 
a service to the many hundreds of 
outpatients who receive treatment at 
the hospital each year. in september 
2011 we initiated a monthly morning 
tea in the NBN telethon villa Units 
for residents to meet one another, 
to have the opportunity to build a 
sense of community and to access 
the support and care of pastoral care. 
these morning teas have quickly 
established themselves as a vital part 
of the residents feeling settled and 
connected as they begin and endure 
often long and at times difficult 
radiation therapy treatments, a long 
way from home. 

an invitation to past participants of 
bereavement support groups (five 
groups held from July 2010) to a 
gathering to reconnect, resulted in 
stories of healing and transformation, 
of new and varied challenges as their 
experience of life and grief continues. 
Deep gratitude was expressed by 
many for the invaluable support the 
original group, of which they were 
members, provided. 

Media:

•‘Behind the Curtain’ article in Hunter 
lifestyle magazine

•Catholic Health australia webcast 
series: Mission in focus - ‘pastoral 
Care as expression of Mission’

Pastoral Care
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Social Work

the members of the social work 
Department continue to provide a 
comprehensive social work service 
to patients and their families/carers 
across all clinical areas. funding for 
an adolescent and young adult (aya) 
cancer service enabled us to recruit 
an additional social worker to work 
as part of this team. 

social work staff work with the 
medical, nursing, allied health 
and support staff of the hospital 
to provide a multidisciplinary 
approach for patient care. social 
workers in particular are responsible 
for attending to emotional and 
psychosocial needs of patients and 
carers/families. social work staff 
provide assessment, individual and 
group programmes and services. 
these may include direct counselling 
related to dealing with adjustment 
issues, trauma, grief and loss, the 
provision of specialised meditation 
and support group programs, 
discharge planning, social support 
services, advocacy with government 

and other agencies to access 
services.

social work staff have continued 
to provide representation of the 
department, allied health and the 
hospital on a range of committees 
both within the hospital and with a 
range of community groups including: 
social work in aged Care, social 
workers in emergency, HNe stroke 
interest Group, Newcastle Domestic 
violence Committee, Haemophilia 
social workers and Counsellors 
group, Clinical oncology National 
oncology group, Cosa Neuro 
oncology Group and Cancer Council 
regional advisory Committee.

staff have also contributed to a 
range of workshops and forums, by 
participating in organising committees 
and presenting papers. staff have 
been active in the development and 
updating of resources including: 
input in the development of patient 
resources for those living with 
malignant brain tumours, paediatric 
guidelines in radiotherapy, resources 
to assist in the care of patients who 
have suffered strokes, resources for 
patients who have a dementia, and 

bereavement resources in all clinical 
areas of the hospital.

social work staff continue to provide 
assistance to the Nsw Cancer 
Council in the training of volunteers 
working in the Nsw Cancer Council 
information Centre.

social workers are actively 
involved in facilitating a range 
of group programmes within the 
hospital including: Cancer support 
Group, Head and Neck Cancer 
support Group, Meditation Group, 
Bereavement walking Group and 
the falls Management programme. 
support is also offered to the 
Newcastle Mater prostate Cancer 
support and education Group and 
the Brain tumour support Group.

the Head and Neck Cancer support 
Group, a joint initiative of social 
work, speech pathology and dietetics 
commenced in october 2010. 
the group would like to gratefully 
acknowledge the donation received 
from the family of stephen raw to be 
used for educational resources for 
this group.
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our mission is to bring the healing 
ministry of Jesus to all those who 
are sick, dying and in need through 
‘being for others’. this is the reason 
why we exist and it is central to 
all of our activity at Calvary Mater 
Newcastle. Mission provides us 
with the focus and direction so that 
we are able to provide the range of 
services that meet the needs of the 
community. all staff are witnesses to 
mission through their engagement 
with our patients, family members 
and visitors as well as through their 
relationships with their colleagues. 
thus mission is exemplified by the 
commitment and action of each staff 
member in living out our values of 
Hospitality, Healing, stewardship and 
respect.      

venerable Mary potter was the 
foundress of little Company of 
Mary in 1877 and it is her legacy 
that lCM Health Care continues to 
emulate. to help staff appreciate the 
significance of Mary potter and her 
vision, philosophy and dedication, an 
insight into her life story is provided 
to all staff each Monday via email. 
staff appreciate the opportunity to 

learn about Mary’s extraordinary life. 
to coincide with the birthday of Mary 
potter (22 November 1847), a Mass 
was celebrated in the Mary potter 
Chapel. this was followed by a staff 
BBQ.    

since its foundation by the sisters 
of Mercy in 1921, the Hospital has 
become a significant landmark in 
the Newcastle region with a strong 
tradition of providing compassionate 
care to the community. this tradition 
has continued following the transfer 
of ownership to little Company of 
Mary Health Care in 2006. Mission 
is an integral part of who we are and 
to celebrate this, a series of projects 
have been underway, which highlight 
various aspects of the Hospital’s 
history and some of the people who 
have played an important role in it. 
the projects include: Duplicating the 
heritage display panels on level 3 on 
the wall near the hospital’s southern 
entrance on level 2; ensuring the 
regular cleaning and maintenance of 
the statues of Mary and Bernadette 
in the level 3 Garden; developing 
a list for the naming of courtyards, 
meeting rooms and gardens after 

significant people in the Hospital’s 
history and the relocation of six 
original foundation stones to the staff 
recreation area to be used as seating. 
further heritage projects are planned 
for 2013.   

Mission integration is an important 
component of life at Calvary Mater 
Newcastle. the orientation of new 
staff includes a mission and values 
session that introduces the staff 
to little Company of Mary Health 
Care and our values. the session 
includes a short DvD presentation 
and an interactive segment which 
provides staff with the opportunity 
to discuss the values and to ask 
questions. over 90% of staff found 
the session to be educational and 
informative. as respect is one of 
the cornerstone values of little 
Company of Mary Health Care, a 
number of workshops have been held 
with staff on Respectful Behaviours 
in the Workplace. the objective of 
the workshops was to assist staff 
to develop a range of practical 
strategies which encourage them 
to demonstrate our values to their 
colleagues in their work areas.

it has been a challenging but 
rewarding year for our volunteers 
who have worked extremely hard 
throughout the hospital and in the 
hospice. volunteers hours including 
Cancer Council volunteers, CMN 
auxiliary and CMN volunteers totalled 
16,500 this year! some of our long 
serving volunteers retired while others 
needed to take lengthy leave due to 
illness. However, others have stepped 
into the breech. 

recruitment commenced in 
february for some new volunteers. 
after a period of intensive training, 
particularly in the areas of grief, 
bereavement, communication and 
boundaries, interviews were held 
and an additional fifteen volunteers 
have been chosen to work across 
the hospital. How fortunate we are 

that for the first time we have some 
volunteers with particular skills 
providing assistance in areas that 
have previously not had this type 
of support. for example we now 
have a volunteer with a ‘mechanical’ 
background who will be able to keep 
our ot equipment in tip top condition. 
also, for the first time under new 
regulations all of our volunteers are 
now required to attend mandatory 
training every twelve months in fire 
and evacuation, Manual Handling and 
Cpr. 

it is always important that we 
demonstrate to our volunteers just 
how much we appreciate their efforts. 
they give up many hours of their time 
each week to care for our patients. 
a common motivation for people 
wishing to volunteer is that many 

have had an earlier experience of our 
hospital through an illness to a family 
member. so they just “want to give 
back” because they had witnessed 
the care given to their loved one by 
hospital staff.

During volunteer week each of 
our volunteers was presented 
with a Certificate of appreciation 
for contribution at Calvary Mater 
Newcastle. 

our annual volunteer Christmas 
party held on 9 December was an 
occasion for us to say thank you to 
all our volunteers for the wonderful 
contribution they make to our hospital 
through their compassion and love 
for our patients, families, carers and 
staff.

Mission

Volunteers
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over the past 12 months, the 
support services team (group three 
maintenance) has been responsible 
for the following:

test, tag, repair and maintain all 
Calvary Mater group three electrical 
appliances

General repairs to patient oxygen, air 
and suction equipment

removal, relocation and disposal 
of all Calvary Mater Newcastle 
redundant equipment

Going off site to test, tag and repair 
palliative care outreach beds at 
farragher’s removalists Cardiff and in 
patient’s homes. we pride ourselves 
on this aspect of our personal home 
care support for our patients and 
staff.

the maintenance team enjoys great 
relationships with the hospital’s 
auxiliary and staff, and assists the 
efforts involved in holding events.  we 
set up for various hospital functions  
throughout the year including  
Celebration of service, auxiliary lollies 
and craft promotions, staff events, 
Daffodil Day, and off site events such 

as the Hair Ball and the volunteer 
Christmas party.  we also enjoy 
setting up, cooking and serving at 
staff BBQs.

support services is responsible for 
the hospital car fleet.  we attend to 
the administration and management 
duties of the fleet, general car 
care, flat batteries, transportation, 
punctures and pick up and deliveries.

a highlight this year has been our 
involvement in halving the cost 
associated with replacing hospital 
bed mattresses by organising 
purchasing of new covers instead 
of purchasing new mattresses.  our 
team has been responsible for 
fitting the new covers to the existing 
mattresses that can be re-covered.

our team has been kept very busy 
this year and they are an important 
part of the day to day running of 
Calvary Mater Newcastle. we enjoy 
the interaction with staff and patients 
and the team takes great pride in the 
work we do for the hospital, its staff, 
visitors and patients.

Support Services

Community 
Benefit

as our mission is to bring the 
healing ministry of Jesus to those 
who are sick, dying and in need 
through ‘Being for others’. thus, 
our Community Benefit program 
is closely tied to the work begun 
by our founder Mary potter in 
supporting those in the community 
who are identified as disadvantaged 
or most in need. some of our 
activities this year included: 

provided wigs to our patients who 
had lost their hair as a result of their 
cancer treatment. the wigs help 
to raise the patients’ self-esteem 
and self-confidence and allows 
patients freedom to be able to do 
many of the things that we take for 
granted including shopping, visiting 
friends and once more feeling part 
of society.

provided subsidised 
accommodation in Mcauley lodge 
and NBN telethon villas for patients 
from remote rural and regional 
areas who are required to come to 
the hospital for prolonged cancer 
treatment. without this assistance 
many would be unable to make the 
journey and their health would suffer 
further.

we established a relationship with 
penola House which is a drop-in 
centre for newly arrived somali and 
sudanese refugees. penola House 
is run by a sister of Mercy and a 
Dominican sister. it is staffed by 
volunteers who provide lessons 
in english, computer literacy and 
living skills to assist the refugees 
to gain some kind of employment. 
Calvary Mater Newcastle applied 
for an optus Grant on behalf 
of penola House to assist the 
children of the refugees deal with 
issues that they face in making 
the transition to life in australia. 
we hope to assist the refugees in 
2013 by providing volunteer/work 
experience opportunities in areas of 
the hospital.

in respect of our patients who die 
in poverty we provided a number of 
funerals for those patients who died 
in our hospital.
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Year in Review
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 2011/12 2010/11

ADMITTED PATIENTS

total admissions (includes same Day) 15456 14123 

same Day admissions 5028 4298

average length of stay of admitted patients 3.9 4.4

Bed occupancy rate 94% 93%

Number of Operations 3193 3206

EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT

Number of attendances (includes admits) 32095 30627

Number of admissions via emergency 10416 9309

OUTPATIENT SERVICES 291431 275241

Major Categories 

Medicine 14946 13728

surgery 18927 15726 

Medical oncology 37142 34385

radiation oncology 64608 64039 

Haematology 16652 16658

palliative Care 14801 14058 

allied Health 40930 41601

other services 83425 75046

 

Total Staff Employed 30 June  930 871

Activity & Statistical Information
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Research

donations from family and friends 
of our patients, as well as specific 
fundraising through the hospital’s 
‘wig week’, local support from the 
Coalfields Cancer support Group, 
and ongoing bequests established 
in the memory of Margaret Mitchell, 
Jane reid Harle and James lawrie. 
this has resulted in the awarding of 
$140,634 in research and equipment 
grants for 2012. 

the Committee would like to thank 
the following members whose 
valuable and much appreciated 
contributions came to an end during 
2011/2012:

Professor Maree Gleeson, 
Director of HMri.

Dr Krystyna Cholowski,  
school of Midwifery and Nursing, 
academic Nursing representative

Calvary Mater Newcastle (CMN) 
research Committee acts as 
a representative of all CMN 
researchers, providing a means of 
disseminating information and offering 
support for research activities.  one 
of the goals of the committee is to 
showcase and promote the vast 
array of outstanding research being 
conducted by CMN staff. to this 
end the committee has successfully 
introduced a list of current research 
projects and researcher biographies 
on the hospital intranet, and is 
negotiating to do the same on the 
lCM internet website. 

the main responsibility of the 
Committee is to oversee the annual 
awarding of research funding 
through the various CMN funding 
schemes. these programs continue 
to be supported by generous 

A Message from the Research Committee

the Committee would also like to 
welcome the following new members 
and recognise their important 
contributions to the committee:

Prof Michael Nilsson, 
Director of HMri.

Dr Jane Maguire,  
school of Midwifery and Nursing, 
academic Nursing representative

Ms Susan Goode, 
Hunter translational Cancer research 
Unit (HtCrU) representative  
(newly created position)

Dr Lisa Lincz 
Chairperson
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RESEARCH GRANTS
Calvary Mater Newcastle research Committee 
(CMNrC) received 11 applications for funding in 
2012. ten of these were requests for project grant 
funding (requesting a total of $256,912 from a pool 
of $147,000), and 2 were eligible for equipment 
funding (requesting a total of $15,108 from a pool of 
$43,000 from the Coalfields Cancer support Group 
fund).  a total of $125,562 in project and $15,108 in 
equipment grants were awarded.  three projects were 
eligible for the James lawrie Grant ($68,000); 1 was 
recommended for full funding, 2 for partial funding. 

overall, only 2 applications received full funding, while 
6 received partial funding as they were considered 
to be either over budgeted or requests to fund items 
that were not considered appropriate according to the 
terms of reference for the granting schemes. only 
one Margaret Mitchell grant of $8,500 was awarded, 
and one grant that addressed all cancer types was 
funded equally from three separate schemes. 

three applications were deemed unsuitable for 
funding, thus there remains $27,892 in the Coalfields 
equipment fund, $2,211 in the wig week, $11,516 in 
the Jane reid Harle, and $6211 in the James lawrie 
fund that was not awarded and will be held over for 
allocation in a future year for a suitable grant. 

all grants were independently reviewed and ranked 
by three assessors, all of whom were external from 
the CMN research Committee. in addition, the three 
James lawrie grant applications were also assessed 
by a Head and Neck Cancer specialist. None of the 
assessors were listed as investigators on any of the 
grant applications. all assessors agreed on the final 
rankings and determined the allocation of funds 
against the individual bequest criteria. 

The Research Committee would like to acknowledge 
and thank the assessors for their time and 
commitment to providing expert scientific reviews 
and invaluable advice for funding distribution.

SUCCESSFUL PROJECT AND EQUIPMENT 
GRANTS AWARDED FOR FUNDING BY CMNRC 
IN 2012

Coalfields Cancer Support Group (CCS) 
Madhu Garg, Dr Jayne Gilbert, Dr Jennette 
Sakoff - Medical Oncology

“Cold storage equipment essential for smooth and 
reliable operation of oncology laboratory research 
projects” 

Cathie Milton - Haematology Nursing

“Development, implementation and evaluation of 
a nurse led intervention model where peripherally 
inserted Central Catheters (piCC) devices are used 
instead of Central venous Catheters in haematology 
patients in both the inpatient and outpatient setting at 
Calvary Mater Newcastle” 

Wig Week Grant Fund (WW) 
Judy Holland, Pauline Chiarelli – Physiotherapy

“testing a new intervention to reduce bladder and 
bowel problems following radiation therapy and 
hormone treatments for early prostate cancer” 

Jennette Sakoff, Dr Jayne Gilbert - Medical 
Oncology 

“Development of a novel targeted therapy for the 
treatment of breast cancer” 

Dr Kerrie Clover, Conjoint Prof Gregory Carter, 
Dr Ben Britton Psycho-Oncology 

“Calibrating commonly used questionnaires for 
depression and anxiety in oncology to enhance 
comparability and communication of outcomes” 

Margaret Mitchell Grant Fund (MM)  
Katherine Clark, Ian Whyte, Naomi Byfieldt - 
Palliative Care

“a pilot study of pyridostigmine in cancer patients with 
constipation and high anticholinergic loads”.

Jane Reid Harle Memorial Grant Scheme (JRH) 
Cathie Milton - Haematology Nursing

“Development, implementation and evaluation of 
a nurse led intervention model where peripherally 
inserted Central Catheters (piCC) devices are used 
instead of Central venous Catheters in haematology 
patients in both the inpatient and outpatient setting at 
Calvary Mater Newcastle” 

Dr Kerrie Clover, Conjoint Prof Gregory Carter, 
Dr Ben Britton - Psycho-Oncology

“Calibrating commonly used questionnaires for 
depression and anxiety in oncology to enhance 
comparability and communication of outcomes” 

James Lawrie Grant Fund (JL) 
Joel Parker Radiation - Oncology 

“Does a specific radiotherapy Mri reduce the amount 
of normal tissues receiving unnecessary and harmful 
doses of radiation through improved identification of 
target volumes + organs at risk for radical head and 
neck radiotherapy planning ?” 

Dr Kerrie Clover, Conjoint Prof Gregory Carter, 
Dr Ben Britton – “Psycho-Oncology Calibrating 
commonly used questionnaires for depression and 
anxiety in oncology to enhance comparability and 
communication of outcomes” 

Allison Fraser, Cathy Odelli - Nutrition and 
Dietetics

“retrospective review of prophylactic percutaneous 
endoscopic Gastrostomy (peG) placement in patients 
undergoing chemoradiation for head and neck 
cancer”. 

DEPARTMENTAL RESEARCH 
RADIATION ONCOLOGY AND  
MEDICAL PHYSICS

Journal Articles

1. Chandra s, Dowling J, shen K, pluim J, Greer p, 
salvado o and fripp J, automatic segmentation 
of the prostate in 3D Magnetic resonance 
images using Case specific Deformable 
Models, IEEE Transactions on Medical Imaging 
(accepted), 2012

2. Chandra, s., Dowling, J., Kaikai shen, pluim, 
J., Greer, p., salvado, o., fripp, J., “automatic 
segmentation of the prostate in 3D Magnetic 
resonance images Using Case specific 
Deformable Models,” Digital Image Computing 
Techniques and Applications (DICTA), 2011 
International Conference on , vol., no., pp.7-12, 
6-8 Dec. 2011

3. D’amico, a.v., Chen, M.-H., Crook, J., 
armstrong, J.G., Malone, s., steigler, a., Dunne, 
M., Kantoff, p.w., Denham, J.w., Duration of 
short-course androgen suppression therapy and 
the risk of death as a result of prostate cancer, 
(2011) Journal of Clinical Oncology, 29 (35), pp. 
4682-4687. 

4. D’amico, a.v., Chen, M.-H., de Castro, M., 
loffredo, M., lamb, D.s., steigler, a., Kantoff, 
p.w., Denham, J.w., surrogate endpoints 
for prostate cancer-specific mortality after 
radiotherapy and androgen suppression therapy 
in men with localised or locally advanced prostate 
cancer: an analysis of two randomised trials, 
(2012) The Lancet Oncology, 13 (2), pp. 189-
195. 

5. Denham, J.w., lamb, D.s., Joseph, D., 
Matthews, J., atkinson, C., spry, N.a., 
Duchesne, G., ebert, M., steigler, a., D’este, 
C., another form of subgroup to beware, (2011) 
Radiotherapy and Oncology, 101 (3), pp. 525-
526. 

6. Denham, J.w., targeted therapies: an important 
piece of the localized prostate cancer puzzle?, 
(2011) Nature Reviews Clinical Oncology, 8 (10), 
pp. 573-574. 

7. Dowling J, lambert J, parker J, salvado o, 
fripp J, Capp a, wratten C, Denham Jw., Greer 
pB, an atlas-Based electron Density Mapping 
Method for Magnetic resonance imaging (Mri)-
alone treatment planning and adaptive Mri-
Based prostate radiation therapy, Int. J .Radiat. 
Oncol. Biol. Phys. 83(1): e5-e11, 2012

8. Dowling Ja, fripp J, Chandra s, pluim 
Jpw, lambert J, parker J, Denham J, Greer 
pB, salvado o, fast automatic multi-atlas 
segmentation of the prostate from 3D Mr image 
lecture Notes in Computer science (including 
subseries Lecture Notes in Artificial Intelligence 
and Lecture Notes in Bioinformatics) 6963 
lNCs, pp. 10-21, 2011

9. ebert Ma, Harrison KM, Howlett sJ, Cornes D, 
Bulsara M, Hamiton Cs, Kron t, Joseph DJ, 
Denham Jw, Dosimetric intercomparison for 
multicenter clinical trials using a patient-based 
anatomic pelvic phantom, Medical Physics, 
38(9), 5167-5175, 2011.

10. fuangrod t, o’Connor DJ, McCurdy BMC, Greer 
pB, Development of epiD-based real-time dose 
dose verification for dynamic iMrt, Proceedings 
of World Academy of Science, Engineering and 
Technology 80: 609-612, 2011

11. Galvão, D.a., taaffe, D.r., Cormie, p., spry, 
N., Chambers, s.K., peddle-Mcintyre, C., 
Baker, M., Denham, J., Joseph, D., Groom, G., 
Newton, r.U., efficacy and safety of a modular 
multi-modal exercise program in prostate cancer 
patients with bone metastases: a randomized 
controlled trial, (2011) BMC Cancer, 11, art. no. 
517, 

12. Grand M, o’Brien p. obstacles to participation 
in randomised cancer clinical trials: a systematic 
review of the literature. J Med Imag Radiat 
Oncol. 56:31-39, 2012

13. Gustafsson H, vial p, Kuncic Z, Baldock C, 
Denham Jw, Greer pB,  Direct dose to water 
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dosimetry for pre-treatment iMrt verification 
using a modified epiD, Medical Physics, 38(11): 
6257-6264, 2011

14. Harrison K, ebert Ma, Kron t, Howlett 
sJ, Corned D, Hamilton Cs, Denham Jw, 
Design, manufacture, and evaluation of an 
anthropomorphic pelvic phantom purpose-built 
for radiotherapy dosimetric intercomparison, 
Medical Physics. 38, 5330 (2011)

15. Herschtal a, Kron t, faroudi f, eade t, Greer 
pB,  finding the optimal statistical model to 
describe target motion during radiotherapy 
delivery - a Bayesian approach Phys Med Biol, 
57(9): 2743-2755, 2012

16. King Bw, Clews l, Greer pB, long-term two-
dimensional stability of epiDs used as part of 
regular linac quality assurance, Australas. Phys. 
Eng. Sci. Med., 34(4): 459-466, 2011

17. King B, Morf D, Greer pB, Development and 
testing of an improved dosimetry system using 
a backscatter shielded electronic portal imaging 
device, Medical Physics, 39(5): 2839-2847, 
2012.

18. Quon H, loblaw Da, Cheung pC, Holden l, tang 
C, et al: intra-fraction Motion during extreme 
Hypofractionated radiotherapy of the prostate 
using pre- and post-treatment imaging.  
Clin Oncol (R Coll Radiol), 2012 doi:10.1016/j.
clon.2011.12.001

19. rowshanfarzad p, sabet M, o’Connor DJ, Greer 
pB, impact of the backscattered radiation from 
the bunker structure on epiD dosimetry during 
arc-iMrt, Journal of Applied Clinical Medical 
Physics, (in press) 2012

20. rowshanfarzad p, sabet M, o’Connor DJ, 
McCowan pM, McCurdy BMC, Greer pB. Gantry 
angle determination during arc-iMrt: evaluation 
of a simple epiD-based technique and two 
commercial inclinometers. Journal of Applied 
Clinical Medical Physics, (in press) 2012

21. rowshanfarzad p, sabet M, o’Connor DJ, Greer 
pB, investigation of the sag in linac secondary 
collimator and MlC carriage during arc deliveries, 
Phys. Med. Biol. 57: N209-N224, 2012

22. rowshanfarzad p, sabet M, o’Connor DJ, 
McCowan p, McCurdy BMC, Greer pB, 
Detection and correction for epiD and gantry 
sag during arc delivery using cine epiD imaging, 
Medical Physics, 39(2): 623-635, 2012

23. rowshanfarzad p, sabet M, o’Connor DJ, Greer 
pB, improvement of varian a-si epiD dosimetry 
measurements using a lead-shielded support-
arm, Med. Dosim., 37: 145-151, 2012.

24. rowshanfarzad p, sabet M, o’Connor DJ, 
Greer pB, isocentre verification for stereotactic 
radiosurgery/radiotherapy: review of principles 
and techniques, J. Appl. Clin. Med. Phys. 12 (4): 
185-195, 2011

25. rowshanfarzad p, sabet M, Barnes M, o’Connor 
DJ, Greer pB. epiD based verification of the 
MlC performance for dynamic iMrt and vMat, 
Medical Physics, (accepted), 2012

26. sabet M, rowshanfarzad p, vial p, Menk f, 
Greer pB, transit dosimetry in iMrt with an a-si 

epiD in direct detection configuration, Phys.Med.
Biol., 57: N295–N306, 2012

27. sethukavalan p, Cheung p, tang Ci, et al: patient 
costs associated with external beam radiotherapy 
treatment for localized prostate cancer: the 
benefits of hypofractionated over conventionally 
fractionated radiotherapy. Can J Urol 19:6165-9, 
2012

28. singh J, Greer pB, white Ma, parker J,  tang 
C, Capp a,, wratten C, Denham Jw, treatment 
related morbidity in prostate cancer: a 
comparison of 3DCrt with and without image 
guidance using implanted fiducial markers, Int. J 
.Radiat. Oncol. Biol. Phys. (accepted), 2012

29. tang Ci, sethukavalan p, Cheung p, et 
al: a prospective study on pain score with 
transperineal prostatic gold seed fiducial 
implantation under local anesthetic alone. Can 
Urol Assoc J, 2012. http://dx.doi.org/10.5489/
cuaj.11225

30. wilcox, C., Kautto, a., steigler, a., Denham, 
J.w., androgen deprivation therapy for prostate 
cancer does not increase cardiovascular mortality 
in the long term , (2012) Oncology, 82 (1), pp. 
56-58. 

RESEARCH GRANTS 
NEW GRANTS

NHMrC project Grant 
f faroudi, a Herschtal, t eade, t Kron, D Ball, pB 
Greer 
optimising radiation therapy delivery for cancer 
patients using daily image guidance to maximize cure 
and reduce normal tissue side effects 
$494,436, (2012-2014)

NHMrC project Grant 
Baker a, Carter G, wolfenden l, wratten C, Britton B. 
eating as treatment (eat):a stepped wedge, 
randomised control trial of a health behaviour 
change intervention provided by dietitians to improve 
nutrition in head and neck cancer patient undergoing 
radiotherapy.  
($1,117,558)

NHMrC project Grant 
ebert Ma, Denham Jw 
assessment of rectal and urinary toxicity from the 
raDar prostate radiotherapy trial – dosimetric 
constraints for novel symptom clustering, derivation of 
radiobiological parameters and assessment of patient 
localisation effects.  
$315,224 (2011-2013)

arC lief Grant 
pJ  Keall, M Jackson, a rozenfeld, M Barton, pB 
Greer, pJ vial, C Baldock, p Metcalfe, D thwaites, Z 
Kuncic, l Holloway, s Bose, e eslick, s Downes.  
an adaptable and dedicated linear accelerator for 
medical radiation research 
$600,000, (2012)

prostate Cancer foundation australia young 
investigator Grant  
J Dowling, pB Greer, o salvado, p stanwell 
Development of high precision Mri based prostate 
cancer radiation therapy 
$300,000, (2012-2014)

Calvary Mater Newcastle - James laurie research 
Grant.  
parker J, wratten C, tang C, Kumar M. 
Does a specific radiotherapy Mri reduce the amount 
of normal tissues receiving unnecessary and harmful 
doses of radiation through improved identification of 
target volumes + organs at risk for radical head and 
neck radiotherapy planning?  
($50,000)

CONTINUING GRANTS

NHMrC project Grant 
Jw Denham, a steigler 
optimal duration of neo-adjuvant androgen 
deprivation therapy in localised prostate cancer 
2007-2011, $399,565

NHMrC project Grant 
Jw Denham, D Joseph, G Duchesne, J Ball 
value of androgen deprivation and bisphosphonate 
therapy in patients treated by radiotherapy for limited 
prostate cancer 
2007-2011, $2,403,440 

NHMrC project Grant 
p. Greer, J. Denham, C. Baldock and Z. Kuncic 
investigation of a new imaging device for radiation 
therapy dose delivery verification 
2009-2011, $393,411

NHMrC project Grant 
a. fielding, B. Burmeister, p. Metcalfe, p. Greer, p. 
evans and J. trapp 
improving patient outcomes of radiotherapy 
treatments 
2009-2011, $356,375

NHMrC enabling Grant  
D. Ball, p. o’Brien, B. Burmeister, G. Duchesne, D. 
Joseph, J. Denham 
Clinical trials resources: trans-tasman radiation 
oncology Group  
2006-2012 $1,765,000

Cancer australia priority Driven Collaborative Cancer 
research Grant 
ebert Ma, Joseph DJ, Haworth a, Denham Jw, spry 
N, Bydder s, 
enhanced development of generic digital tools for 
support of clinical trials and education in radiotherapy 
2009-2011, $585,750

prostate Cancer foundation of australia 
Galvão Di; Newton r, spry N, taaffe D, Denham Jw 
population-based exercise intervention for prostate 
cancer patients 
2009-2012, $476,024

Cancer Council Nsw project Grant 
l. ashman, N. verills, J. Denham 
tetraspanin proteins in prostate cancer progression 
and prognosis 
2009-2011, $341,000

Cancer Council Nsw project Grant 
pB Greer, BMC McCurdy, C. Baldock, Z Kuncic, Jw 
Denham 
real-time dose monitoring for patient safety in 
radiotherapy 
2010-2012, $360,000

Cancer Council Nsw project Grant 
pB Greer, J Dowling, Jw Denham, o salvado,  
Does the initial treatment plan predict doses delivered 
to normal tissues during prostate radiation therapy, 
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Cancer Council Nsw,  
2011-2013, $349,794

Cancer Council Nsw project Grant 
p vial, Z Kuncic, pB Greer, C Baldock, l Holloway, 
M Barton,  
a next generation detector for radiotherapy treatment 
verification with dual capability for simultaneous 
imaging and dosimetry, Cancer Council Nsw,  
2011-2013, $336,125

CONFERENCE PRESENTATIONS

1. Blake s, vial p, Holloway l, Greer pB, Kuncic 
Z, Monte-Carlo modeling of optical photon 
transport effects on electronic portal imaging 
device dosimetric response, 12th international 
workshop on electronic patient imaging, sydney, 
australia, 12-14 March, 2012.

2. Denham J, 2011 european Multidisciplinary 
Cancer Congress – oral presentation in proferred 
paper session – “variations in androgen 
dependent clinical progression kinetics in locally 
advanced prostate cancer.

3. t fuangrod, H woodruff, e vanUytven, B 
McCurdy, D o’Connor, p Greer, simulations of 
real-time Geometric and Dosimetic verification 
system Using epiD, american association of 
physicists in Medicine, Charlotte, Usa, July 28, 
2012 [oral presentation], Medical physics 39 (6), 
3879

4. fuangrod t, o’Connor DJ, Greer pB, 
synchronization of epiD and predicted images 
for a real-time treatment verification system for 
radiation therapy, 12th international workshop 
on electronic patient imaging, sydney, australia, 
12-14 March, 2012.

5. Greer pB, King B, rowshanfarzad p, epiD based 
linac Qa for iMrt and vMat, world Congress 
on Medical physics and Biomedical engineering, 
Beijing, China, 20-26 May, 2012

6. B King and p Greer, a method for removing 
arm backscatter from epiD images, american 
association of physicists in Medicine, Charlotte, 
Usa, July 28, 2012 [oral presentation], Medical 
physics 39 (6), 3911

7. King B and Greer pB, Dosimetry with new epiD-
linac Designs, 12th international workshop on 
electronic patient imaging, sydney, australia, 
12-14 March, 2012.

8. Kron t, Babington s, Dixon J, ebert M, faroudi 
f, frantzis J, Grand M, Greer p, Hall M, Haworth 
a, Hilder B, lin C, Martin a, rolfo a, verry H, 
assessment of cost/utility of image guided 
radiation therapy (iGrt) in intermediate risk 
prostate cancer: the aNrotat project, 12th 
international workshop on electronic patient 
imaging, sydney, australia, 12-14 March, 2012.

9. McCowan pM, rickey Dw, rowshanfarzad p, 
Greer pB, McCurdy BMC, iMat gantry angle 
correction for cine-mode epiD images, 12th 
international workshop on electronic patient 
imaging, sydney, australia, 12-14 March, 2012.

10. parker J, australian institute of radiography, 
tasmanian winter education weekend 
presentation (29th June 2012), High precision 
Mri Based prostate radiotherapy’  

11. rowshanfarzad p, sabet M, o’Connor DJ, 
McCowan pM, McCurdy BMC, Greer pB, 
Detection and correction for epiD and gantry 
sag during arc delivery using cine epiD imaging, 
12th international workshop on electronic patient 
imaging, sydney, australia, 12-14 March, 2012.

12. sabet M, rowshanfarzad p, Menk f, Greer 
pB, a simple method for epiD transit dosimetry 
measurements, 12th international workshop on 
electronic patient imaging, sydney, australia, 
12-14 March, 2012. 

13. van eytven e, McCurdy BMC, van Beek, t, 
Chytyk K, Greer p, accurate patient dose 
reconstruction from on-treatment epiD images, 
12th international workshop on electronic patient 
imaging, sydney, australia, 12-14 March, 2012.

14. p vial, s Deshpande, s Blake, a McNamara, l 
Holloway, p Greer, Z Kuncic, first experiments of 
a prototype device for simultaneous imaging and 
dose verification during radiotherapy, american 
association of physicists in Medicine Charlotte, 
Usa, July 28, 2012 [oral presentation], Medical 
physics 39 (6), 4002

CONFERENCE POSTERS

15. McNamara a, Blake s, Kuncic Z, vial p, Holloway 
l, Greer pB, evaluation of the performance of 
electronic portal imaging devices using Monte-
Carlo simulations, 12th international workshop 
on electronic patient imaging, sydney, australia, 
12-14 March, 2012.

16. Monville Me, Kuncic Z, Greer pB, epiD 
dose prediction for real-time dosimetry, 12th 
international workshop on electronic patient 
imaging, sydney, australia, 12-14 March, 2012.

17. s Blake, p vial, l Holloway, a McNamara, 
p Greer, Z Kuncic, sensitivity analysis of 
an electronic portal imaging Device Monte 
Carlo Model to variations in optical transport 
parameters, american association of physicists 
in Medicine Charlotte, Usa, July 28, 2012, 
[poster] Medical physics 39 (6), 3650

18. B whelan, s Kumar, J Dowling, J lambert, K 
lim, o salvado, J Begg, p Greer, s vinod, l 
Holloway, requirements for the accuracy of 
electron Density Data planning for Mri Based 
Cervix Cancer treatment planning., american 
association of physicists in Medicine Charlotte, 
Usa, July 28, 2012 [poster], Medical physics 39 
(6), 3694

 
MEDICAL ONCOLOGY
Chief Hospital Scientist: Dr Jennette Sakoff, 
Hospital Scientists: Dr Jayne Gilbert  
and Madhu Garg 
Technical Officer: Ms Alesia Ogrodnik

the research efforts of the experimental therapeutics 
Group in Medical oncology spans two main areas 
of oncology research (i) the development of small 
molecules for the treatment of cancer and (ii) 
management of clinical toxicity. our drug development 
program has focussed on targeting brain and breast 
cancers. targeting brain tumours is a collaborative 
project including researchers from the University 
of Newcastle (prof adam McCluskey), Children’s 
Medical research Centre (Dr Megan Chircop) and 

the University of Melbourne (prof terry o’Brien). the 
focus of this team has been the development of novel 
dynamin and clathrin inhibitors for the treatment 
of glioblastoma. this project has secured funding 
from the Cancer Council Nsw and of this year 
the NHMrC. Numerous small molecules are now 
undergoing animal orthotopic xenograft studies to 
determine efficacy. we have also recently discovered 
a group of small molecules that selectively kill er+ve 
breast cancer cell lines while having little to no effect 
on er-ve breast cancer cell lines or on normal non-
cancerous breast cells. the mechanism controlling 
this effect is not known. research funding was 
recently secured from the HMri to investigate this 
phenomenon. these molecules are now undergoing 
animal xenograft studies in order to determine their in 
vivo efficacy. 

in a recently completed a pharmacokinetic clinical 
trial in colorectal cancer patients at the Calvary Mater 
Newcastle our team has identified telomere length as 
a strong predictor of chemotherapy induced blood 
toxicity. this biomarker discovery has now formed 
the basis of a new clinical research project with 
the University of Newcastle (prof Manohar Garg), 
to examine the role of nutraceuticals on telomere 
biology in colorectal cancer patients. we have also 
established ourselves as the only research group 
in australia to conduct therapeutic drug monitoring 
(tDM) of the chemotherapeutic drug Mitotane used 
in the treatment of adrenocorticol Carcinoma. we are 
also the only research group in australia to conduct 
a surrogate measure test for dihydropyrimidine 
dehydrogenase (DpD) deficiency as a predictor of 5fU 
toxicity.  

the recent establishment of the University of 
Newcastle Cancer priority research Centre and the 
Cancer institute translational Cancer research Unit 
has facilitated the expansion of our research efforts. 
as a result Dr Matt Dun has now joined our team 
and will proved expertise in the field of chemical 
proteomics.  

PUBLICATIONS

1. de Bock Ce, Garg MB, scott N, sakoff Ja, 
scorgie fe, ackland sp, lincz lf.  association 
of thymidylate synthase enhancer region 
polymorphisms with thymidylate synthase activity 
in vivo. pharmacogenomics J. 2011. 11:307-314. 
if 5.435 

2. Garg MB and ackland sp. pyridoxine to protect 
from oxaliplatin-induced neurotoxicity without 
compromising antitumour effect. Cancer 
Chemother. pharmacol. (2011) 67:963-966. if 
2.759

3. Garg MB, sakoff Ja, ackland sp. a simple HplC 
method for plasma level monitoring of mitotane 
and its two main metabolites in adrenocortical 
cancer patients. J. Chromotography B. (2011) 
879:2201-2205. if 2.971

4. agrez Mv, Garg MB, Dorahy DJ, ackland sp. 
synergistic anti-tumor effect of cisplatin when 
combined with an anti-src kinase integrin-based 
peptide. J Cancer therapy, (2011) 2: 295-301.

5. agrez Mv, Garg MB, ackland sp. (2012) Novel 
anti-cancer peptides comprising three amino 
acids. J Cancer therapy (2012), in press.

6. tarleton M, Gilbert J, sakoff Ja and McCluskey 
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a. synthesis and anticancer activity of a series 
of norcantharidin analogues. eur. J. Med. Chem. 
(2012). if = 3.35 in press.

7. Garg MB, lincz lf, adler K, scorgie fe, ackland 
sp, and sakoff Ja. predicting 5-fluorouracil 
toxicity in colorectal cancer patients from 
peripheral blood cell telomere length – a 
multivariate analysis. Br. J. Cancer. 2012. if = 
4.9, accepted.

8. tarleton M, Gilbert J, sakoff Ja and McCluskey 
a. Cytotoxic 2-phenyacrylnitriles, the importance 
of the cyanide moiety and discovery of potent 
broad spectrum cytotoxic agents. eur. J. Med. 
Chem. 2012. if = 3.35, accepted.

9. tarleton M, Dyson l, Gilbert J,  sakoff 
Ja and McCluskey a. focused library of 
2-phenylacrylamides as broad spectrum 
cytotoxic agents. Bioorgan. Med. Chem.  2012. 
if = 3.1, accepted.

GRANTS

1. Chircop M, sakoff J, Jones N, McCluskey. 
Dynamin as a new drug target for the treatment 
of glioblastoma. Nsw Cancer Council rG-11-03, 
(2011-2013). $360,000

2. McCluskey a, robinson p, o’Brien t, Chircop 
M, sakoff J. Development of pthaladyn-based 
dynamin i-selective inhibitors for treatment of 
epilepsy. NHMrC Dp1017063. (2011-2013)   
$544,682

3. Chircop M, robinson p, McCluskey a, sakoff 
Ja. the role of clathrin in cell division. NHMrC 
app1022218. (2012-2014). $629,685.

4. sakoff J, Gilbert J, McCluskey a. Development 
of a novel targeted therapy for the treatment of 
breast cancer. wig week Grant. Calvary Mater 
Newcastle, (2012) $6,000.

5. Garg M, Gilbert J, sakoff Ja (2012) refrigeration 
equipment. Coalfields equipment Grant Calvary 
Mater Newcastle $8,383.

6. ackland sp, sakoff J, Garg M, tacon l (2012). 
Mitotane pharmacodynamics in adrenocortical 
carcinoma. HMri, $25,000.

7. sakoff J, Gilbert J, McCluskey. identification of a 
novel target for the treatment of hormone positive 
breast cancer. (2012) HMri, $30,000.

CONFERENCE PRESENTATIONS 

1. sakoff Ja, Gilbert J, tarleton M, robertson MJ, 
and McCluskey a. therapeutics Development 
of a novel targeted therapy for the treatment of 
(er+ve) breast cancer. aaCr/eortC/NCi san 
francisco, Usa, Nov 2011. abstract 127.

2. sakoff Ja, Garg MB, lincz lf, adler K, scorgie 
fe and ackland sp. predicting chemotherapy-
induced toxicity in cancer patients from peripheral 
blood telomere length. eaCr. european 
association for Cancer research. Barcelona, 
spain, July 7-10th, 2012.

3. Garg, MB, sakoff Ja, ackland sp.  Mitotane 
pharmacodynamics in adrenocortical Cancer . 
HMri Cancer research symposium (2011)

ARTICLES:

Day f, Bull J, lombard J, stewart J: Changes in 

medical oncology admissions for the management 
of breast cancer complications: an australian 
institution’s experience. 
asia-pacific Journal of Clinical oncology 2011;7:146-
153.

Zdenkowski N, Chen s, van der westhuizen a, 
ackland s: Curative strategies for liver metastases 
from colorectal cancer: a review. 
the oncologist 2012;17(2):201-211.

CLINICAL TRIALS:

piCNiC: a randomised, placebo controlled trial of 
creon in the treatment of pancreatic unsufficiency 
in patients with locally advanced or metastatic 
pancreatic cancer. Chief investigators: N Zdenkowski, 
a Bonaventura, G radvan.

CONFERENCE POSTERS:

Hovey e, De souza p, Marx G, parente p, rapke 
t, Hill a, Bonaventura a, Michele a, Craft p, abdi 
e, lloyd a: Modafinil for fatigue associated with 
docetaxel-based chemotherapy: randomized 
controlled trial.

Upanal N, ackland s, Bonaventura a, Mcelduff 
p: early rise in blood pressure to predict clinical 
outcomes in metastatic colorectal cancer (mCrC) 
patients treated with first-line Bevacizumab.

rachakonda K, George M, Janda M, Blanchard G: 
supportive care needs in advanced cancer patients 
undergoing palliative treatment in rural and remove 
Nsw, australia.

 
SURGICAL ONCOLOGY 
Professor John F Forbes

JOURNAL ARTICLES

2012

Barrios C, forbes Jf, Jonat w, Conte p, Gradishar 
w, Buzdar a, Gelmon K, Gnant M, Bonneterre J, 
toi M, Hudis C, robertson Jfr. the sequential use 
of endocrine treatment for advanced breast cancer: 
where are we? (review). ann oncol 2012; 23(6): 
1378-1386.

Bliss JM, Kilburn ls, Coleman re, forbes Jf, Coates 
as, Jones se, Jassem J, Delozier t, andersen J, 
paridaens r, van de velde CJH, lonning pe, Morden 
J, reise J, Cisar l, Menschik t, Coombes rC. 
Disease-related outcomes with long-term follow-up: 
an updated analysis of the intergroup exemestane 
study. J Clin oncol 2012; 30(7): 709-717.

sestak i, Harvie M, Howell a, forbes Jf, Dowsett M, 
Cuzick. weight change associated with anastrozole 
and tamoxifen treatment in postmenopausal women 
with or at high risk of developing breast cancer.  
Breast Cancer res treat 2012; 134:727-734.

sestak i, Kealy r, Nikoloff M, fontecha M, forbes Jf, 
Howell a, Cuzick J. relationships between Cyp2D6 
phenotype, breast cancer and hot flushes in women 
at high risk of breast cancer receiving prophylactic 
tamoxifen: results from the iBis-i trial. Brit.Jnl Ca 
2012; 107(2): 230-233.

2011

Cuzick J, Dowsett M, pineda s, wale C, salter J, 
Quinn e, Zabaglo l, Mallon e, Green ar, ellis io, 
Howell a, Buzdar aU, forbes Jf. prognostic value 
of a combined estrogen receptor, progesterone 
receptor, Ki-67, and human epidermal growth 
factor receptor 2 immunohistochemical score and 
comparison with the genomic health recurrence score 
in early breast cancer. J Clin oncol 2011; 29(32); 
4273-4278.

Cuzick J, sestak i, Baum M, Buzdar a, Howell 
a, Dowsett M, forbes Jf. 10-year analysis of the 
ataC trial: wrong conclusion? reply. lancet oncol. 
2011;12(3): 217 (letter).

Dowsett M, salter J, Zabaglo l, Mallon e, Howell a, 
Buzdar aU, forbes Jf, pineda s, Cuzick J. predictive 
algorithms for adjuvant therapy: transataC. steroids 
2011; 76(8) s1: 777-780.

Goldhirsch a, wood wC, Coates as, Gelber rD, 
thürlimann B, senn H-J & panel Members (forbes 
Jf- panellist). strategies for subtypes – dealing with 
the diversity of breast cancer: highlights of the st 
Gallen international expert Consensus on the primary 
therapy of early Breast Cancer 2011. ann oncol 
2011; 22(8): 1736-1747.

regan MM, Neven p, Giobbie-Hurder a, Goldhirsch 
a, ejlertsen B, Mauriac l, forbes Jf, smith i, láng i, 
wardley a, rabaglio M, price KN, Gelber rD, Coates 
as, thürlimann B for the BiG 1-98 Collaborative 
Group and the iBCsG. assessment of letrozole and 
tamoxifen alone and in sequence for postmenopausal 
women with steroid hormone receptor-positive breast 
cancer: the BiG 1-98 randomised clinical trial at 8.1 
years median follow-up. lancet oncol. 2011; 12(12); 
1101-1108.

ring a, sestak i, Baum M, Howell a, Buzdar a, 
Dowsett M, forbes Jf, Cuzick J. influence of 
comorbidities and age on risk of death without 
recurrence: a retrospective analysis of the arimidex, 
tamoxifen alone or in combination trial. J Clin oncol 
2011; 29(32); 4266-4272.

stockler Mr, Harvey vJ, francis pa, Byrne MJ, 
ackland sp, fitzharris B, van Hazel G, wilcken NrC, 
Grimison ps, Nowak aK, Gainford MC, fong a, 
paksec l, sourjina t, Zannino D, Gebski v, simes rJ, 
forbes Jf, Coates a. Capecitabine versus Classical 
Cyclophosphamide, Methotrexate, and fluorauracil as 
first-line Chemotherapy for advanced Breast Cancer. 
J Natl Cancer inst 2011; 29(34): 4498-4504.

tang G, Cuzick J, Costantino Jp, Dowsett M, forbes 
Jf, Crager M, Mamounas ep, shak s, wolmark N. 
risk of recurrence and chemotherapy benefit for 
patients with node-negative, estrogen receptor-
positive breast cancer: recurrence score alone and 
integrated with pathologic and clinical factors. J Clin 
oncol 2011; 29(33): 4365-4372.

toi M, winer ep, inamoto t, Benson Jr, forbes 
Jf, Mitsumori M, robertson Jfr, sasano H, von 
Minckwitz G, yamauchi a, Klimberg vs. identifying 
gaps in the locoregional management of early 
breast cancer: highlights from the Kyoto Consensus 
Conference. ann. oncol. 2011;18(10): 2885-2892. 
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CONFERENCE PRESENTATIONS

1 July to 31 December 2011
lecture tour of China  
3 x presentations: “optimizing endocrine treatment in 
early breast cancer” 
1-3 July – Guangzhou, Beijing and shanghai, China

australia and New Zealand Breast Cancer trials 
Group annual scientific Meeting  
presentation: “iBis-ii prevention, DCis and Bone 
substudy status report” 
presentation: “ataC 0501 later status report” 
20-23 July – Gold Coast, Qld

Hunter Medical research institute Cancer research 
program symposium  
presentation: “aNZ Breast Cancer trials Group: 
Current research program” 
4 November – Newcastle, Nsw

1 January to 30 June 2012
annual women’s Health Update Meeting  
2 x presentations: “Breast Cancer preventive 
therapy” 
3 March – Melbourne, victoria

1st international Congress of association of Breast 
surgeons in india (aBsiCoN 2012)  
presentation: “Do specialist breast centres improve 
breast healthcare” 
presentation: “endocrine therapies for breast cancer – 
best practice guidelines” 
18-20 May – Hyderabad, india

RESEARCH GRANTS
Competitive Research Grant funding supporting 
Australian New Zealand Breast Cancer Trials Group 
projects (University of Newcastle -  CIA Professor 
John Forbes)

NHMrC project Grant 569213 (iBis 2): a randomised 
phase iii trial of anastrozole for breast cancer 
prevention in postmenopausal women at high risk. 
Chief investigators: forbes Jf, Coates a, Boyle f, 
Mann G, saunders C, Cuzick J. 
total awarded: 2009 – 2013 $1,635,000

NHMrC project Grant 510787 (later): prevention 
of late breast cancer (BC) events in postmenopausal 
women with endocrine responsive BC. 
Chief investigators: forbes Jf, Mann G, Boyle f, 
Green M, Coates a, Cuzick J. 
total awarded: 2008 – 2012 $4,430,875

NHMrC equipment Grant: Medilink array digitising 
system. 
Chief investigator: prof John forbes. 
total awarded: 2012 $35,000

Cancer institute Nsw infrastructure 
Ci: forbes Jf, Boyle f, ackland s, Coates a.
total awarded: 2009 – 2012 $640,000

Competitive Research Grant funding supporting 
Australian New Zealand Breast Cancer Trials Group 
projects (other administering institutions or other 
CIA’s)

BCrf research Grant: aNZBCtG High risk Bio-bank 
Ci: forbes Jf, Cuzick J.
2011 – 2012 Us$225,000

Cancer australia infrastructure 
Ci: forbes Jf
2010 - 2013: $1,401,490

Cancer institute Nsw (research scholar Judy Jobling) 
Mammographic density as a biomarker for the efficacy 
of treatment of endocrine therapies used to prevent 
breast cancer events in randomised controlled clinical 
trials. 
Ci: forbes Jf
2010 - 2013: $55,016

NBCf Collaborative Breast Cancer research Grant 
a single arm phase ii study using magnetic resonance 
imaging (Mri) to assess postoperative radiotherapy 
omission in selected patients with early breast cancer 
(prospeCt). 
Cis - forbes Jf, Mann GB (Cia), skandarajah a, rose 
a, Chua B. 
2011 – 2013 $200,000

University of Melbourne
NHMrC project Grant 
Cognitive effects of adding ovarian function 
suppression to adjuvant hormonal therapy in 
premenopausal breast cancer. 
Ci’s – forbes Jf, phillips K (Cia), francis p, Boyle f, 
Bernhard J, Maruff p. 
2007-2011:  $286,750

University of Queensland
NBCf Collaborative Breast Cancer research Grant 
Novel strategies for prediction and control of 
advanced breast cancer via nanoscaled epigenetic-
based biosensors. 
Cis – forbes Jf, trau M (Cia), Clark s, Brown M, 
francis G, Dobrovic a, scott r. 
2008-2012: $5,000,000 (University of Newcastle 
component - $1,200,000)

HAEMATOLOGY
the Haematology Unit engages in both clinical and 
laboratory based research. Clinicians and nurses are 
actively involved in research directed at improving 
patient care, while the department also supports 
dedicated laboratory and clinical trials teams. the 
staff specialists are committed to providing quality 
training to haematology registrars. Many of the staff 
hold conjoint appointments with the University of 
Newcastle and engage in teaching undergraduate 
medical students and supervising biomedical 
student projects. the Unit is fortunate to have strong 
community support and is grateful for all the generous 
donations received in 2011-12.

HAEMATOLOGY CLINICAL TRIALS

Clinical Trial Co-ordinators:  Michele Gambrill, 
Tara Novak, Marguerite Hughes William 
Whitbread-Brown 
Administrative Officer:  Patricia Rozanski

over the past year the Haematology clinical trials 
office has screened 344 patients (a 30% increase 
from last year) of which we have recruited 84 new 
participants to 13 currently enrolling trials. this 
equates to a total of 121 participants currently entered 
onto trials with 38 participants in active treatment and 
a further 83 participants in follow up. the open trials 
cover a wide range of haematological conditions both 
in acute and chronic diseases. 

there were 23 open trials (including those open to 
recruitment and those closed to recruitment but 
with participants either on treatment or in follow up) 
being managed in 2011/12, 13 administered by 
the australasian leukaemia and lymphoma Group 

(allG), 10 sponsored by pharmaceutical companies 
and/or investigator initiated.  

in addition to meeting requirements for the laboratory 
components for the majority of the trials, the 
department also coordinates and actively contributes 
tissue samples to the allG tissue bank. in 2011 – 
2012, the team was responsible for donating 186 
samples from 28 tissue collections. this important 
initiative ensures that researchers have access to 
quality tissue samples and treatment data from 
patients enrolled in trials all around australia and New 
Zealand.

BONE MARROW STEM CELL TRANSPLANT 
RESEARCH

Philip Rowlings, Hong Zhang, Linda Bissett, 
Geordie Zaunders

the Hunter Haematology Unit continues to be a 
contributing member of the Centre for international 
Blood and Marrow transplant research (CiBMtr) 
based in wisconsin Usa. patient transplant data 
are also reported to the australian Bone Marrow 
transplant recipients registry (aBMtrr) as part of 
australian BMt research and development.  professor 
rowlings is a member of the scientific advisory 
Committee of asia pacific BMt Group (apBMt) as 
well as serving on a number of research working 
Committees of the CiBMtr.

LABORATORY RESEARCH - THE HUNTER 
HAEMATOLOGY RESEARCH GROUP

Lisa Lincz, Fiona Scorgie, Linda Bissett, Angel 
D’Crus and Anoop Enjeti

the Haematology research laboratory conducts 
studies into haematological cancers and disorders 
of coagulation, with a primary interest in circulating 
microparticles. the laboratory is linked to the 
University of Newcastle and offers tuition and 
scholarships to encourage students to enter this area 
of research. there are presently 3 phD and 1 Master’s 
student associated with the lab, and the welcome 
addition of a new research assistant to the team this 
year. in addition, researchers are responsible for the 
processing of blood samples from CMN patients 
who participate in clinical trials and donate tissue to 
the allG tissue Bank. the group maintains strong 
collaborations with researchers both nationally (school 
of Human life sciences, University of tasmania) and 
locally with the departments of Neurology (JHH), 
endocrinology (JHH), Molecular and Cytogenetics 
(HNeH), toxicology (CMN), Medical oncology (CMN), 
and the school of Biomedical sciences and pharmacy 
(UoN).

RESEARCH FUNDING

2012. Maitland Cancer appeal, Grant for leukaemia 
research for Hunter Haematology research Group. P 
Rowlings, L Lincz  $100,000

2012. U of Newcastle Near Miss Grant (for highly 
ranked but unsuccessful NHMrC project grant 
applications) the genetic determinants of brain 
haemorrhage associated with stroke thrombolysis. C 
levi, J attia, e Holliday, s Koblar, r scott, J sturm, J 
rosand, L Lincz (CIH) $20,000

2012. CMN Jane reid Harle and Coalfield’s Cancer 
support group grant schemes. Development, 
implementation and evaluation of a nurse led 
intervention model where peripherally inserted Central 
Catheters (piCC) devices are used instead of Central 
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venous Catheters in haematology patients in both 
the inpatient and outpatient setting at Calvary Mater 
Newcastle. Cathie Milton ($34,420)

CONFERENCE PROCEEDINGS 

sanghee Hong, Chris Barker, John p Klein, peter 
shaw, Christopher Bredeson, adla angelina, 
Philip Rowlings, Jean-yves Cahn, Mohamed 
Kharfan-Dabaja, Mahmoud aljurf, Jeffrey szer, 
william a wood, ibrahim ahmed, David Gomez-
almaguer, yoshiko atsuta and Marcelo C pasquini.  
Trends in Utilization of Total Body Irradiation 
(TBI) Prior to Hematopoietic Cell Transplantation 
(HCT) Worldwide. Biology of Blood and Marrow 
transplantation, volume 18, issue 2, supplement , 
pages s336-s337, february 2012

Christopher a Barker, sanghee Hong, John p Klein, 
peter shaw, Christopher Bredeson, adla angelina, 
Philip Rowlings, Jean-yves Cahn, Mohamed 
Kharfan-Dabaja, Mahmoud aljurf, Jeffrey szer, william 
a wood, ibrahim ahmed, David Gomez almaguer, 
yoshiko atsuta, Miguel sanz, Gregory Hale, Mark 
litzow, Marcelo C pasquini Radiotherapeutic 
Techniques in Allogeneic Hematopoietic Cell 
Transplant (HCT), Biology of Blood and Marrow 
transplantation, volume 18, issue 2, supplement , 
page s351, february 2012

Nadine Berry, Philip Rowlings, Anoop Enjeti, 
victoria Cawich, Caitlin valentin, Nicole Bain, Kerry 
fagan. Myeloma – Karyotype v’s iFISH and the 
Future. Haa sydney, october 30th - November 2nd 
2011 (poster presentation)

Nadine Berry, Philip Rowlings, Anoop Enjeti, 
Kerry fagan. The use of aCGH for the study of 
plasma cell dyscrasia – The technical aspects. 
australian society of Cytogeneticists (asoC), port 
stephens, March 23 -25. (oral presentation)

Nadine Berry, Philip Rowlings, Anoop Enjeti, 
Kerry fagan. evaluation of myeloma by 
oligonucleotide-based microarray analysis uncovers 
aberrations not detected by fisH analysis. australian 
society of Cytogeneticists (asoC), port stephens, 
March 23 -25. (oral presentation and winner of the 
Ed Krumins Young Scientist of the Year Award’)

Mohammad alkhatatbeh,  Lisa Lincz, rick thorne.  
in vitro Modeling of Microparticle production 
occurring in Diabetic Nephropathy.  Haa, oct 30 – 
Nov 2, 2011.  sydney, australia.  (Awarded ASTH 
best Poster Presentation)

Philip Rowlings, Michele Gambrill, Hong Zhang, 
Sandra Deveridge, Arno Enno, Anoop Enjeti, 
Sam Yuen, Mark Walsh, Jillian De Malmanche, 
Kerry fagan.  Chronic Myeloid leukaemia in Chronic 
phase in the real world – ten years experience in 
the Hunter.  Haa, oct 30 – Nov 2, 2011.  sydney, 
australia.  Poster Presentation

Claudine Ho, Claire weatherburn, Sam Yuen, Craig 
sullivan, ilona Cunningham.  Bone Marrow aspiration 
and trephine with Methoxyflurane.  Haa, oct 30 – 
Nov 2, 2011.  sydney, australia.  Poster Presentation

anita Chittaranjan-shetty, robert lindeman, Joy 
Ho, emily allen, Clare waite, stephen Matthews, 
Karl Jobburn, Juliana teo, samantha Day, Michael 
Seldon, David rosenfeld, ian Kerridge, Helen 
Crowther.  Quality of life in parents of Children living 
with a Clinically significant Haemoglobinopathy in 
Nsw, australia.  Haa, oct 30 – Nov 2, 2011.  sydney, 

australia.  Poster Presentation

t King, De Joshua, M Seldon.  Carfilzomib and 
Dexamethasone therapy in a patient with relapsed 
refractory Multiple Myeloma: a single Case study.  
Haa, oct 30 – Nov 2, 2011.  sydney, australia.  
Poster Presentation

alireza ardjmand, Charles e de Bock, timothy 
J Molloy, simon Bone, Daniel Johnstone, Daniel 
Campbell, Kristy shipman, Lisa F Lincz, Mark D 
spanevllo, andrew Boyd, Gordon f Burns, rick f 
thorne.  fat1 Cadherin as a Novel Minimal residual 
Disease Marker in acute lymphoblastic leukemia.  
Haa, oct 30 – Nov 2, 2011.  sydney, australia.  Oral 
Presentation

Helen Crowther, robert lindeman, Joy Ho, emily 
allen, Clare waite, stephen Matthews, Karl Jobburn, 
Juliana teo, samantha Day, Michael Seldon, David 
rosenfeld, ian Kerridge.  the Health of adults living 
with a Clinically significant Haemoglobinopathy in 
Nsw, australia.  the Haemoglobinopathy project.  
Haa, oct 30 – Nov 2, 2011.  sydney, australia.  Oral 
Presentation

Victoria Milliken,  plerixafor- CMN’s experience. 
aBC symposium, July 2011 

Victoria Milliken, plerixafor - a single units 
experience with plerixafor – a CXCr-4 inhibitor- in the 
hard to mobilise patient. Haa, oct 30 – Nov 2, 2011.  
sydney, australia.  (Awarded Nursing Travel Grant 
for best poster)

INVITED PRESENTATIONS/LECTURES

Lisa Lincz (invited speaker), 34th annual Meeting of 
the australasian flow Cytometry Group, ‘Microparticle 
detection and enumeration’. Hobart, tasmania, aug 
23 – 26, 2011

Michael Seldon (invited speaker), single Centre 
experience of six years of Massive transfusion 
protocol.  aNZsBt/astH Combined symposium: 
Haa, oct 30 – Nov 2, 2011.  sydney, australia.

Michael Seldon, pathology forum, “New 
Coagulation and New anticoagulants”  NBN telethon 
telehealth Centre, JHH, 4 april 2012

ADVISORY BOARD MEMBERSHIP

Cathie Milton, National advisory board on the 
development of guidelines for the admisistration of 
vidaza

Debbie Carr,  National advisory board on the 
development of guidelines for the administration of 
vidaza;  National MDs advisory board             

philip rowlings, scientific advisory Board of the asia 
pacific Bone Marrow transplant Group (apBMt) 

PUBLICATIONS

1. Charles e. de Bock, alireza ardjmand, timothy 
J. Molloy, simon M. Bone, Daniel Johnstone, 
Daniel M. Campbell, Kristy l. shipman, trina 
M. yeadon, Jeff Holst, Mark D. spanevello, Guy 
Nelmes, Daniel r. Catchpoole, lisa f. lincz, 
andrew w. Boyd, Gordon f. Burns, rick f. 
thorne . the fat1 cadherin is over expressed 
and an independent prognostic factor for 
survival in paired diagnosis-relapse samples of 
precursor B-cell acute lymphoblastic leukemia. 
leukemia 2012 May;26(5):918-26. doi: 10.1038/
leu.2011.319. epub 2011 Nov 25. ( if = 6.9)

2. yu-Ching Cheng, phD1; Christopher D. anderson, 
MD2,3,4; silvia Bione, phD5; Keith Keene, phD6,7; 
Jane M. Maguire phD, rN8, 9; Michael Nalls, 
phD10; asif rasheed, MBBs11; Marion Zeginigg, 
Msc12; John attia, phD, MD, frCpC, fraCp8; 
ross Baker, fraCp, frCpa13,14; simona Barlera, 
Msc15; alessandro Biffi, MD2,3,4; ebony Bookman, 
phD16; thomas G. Brott, MD17; robert D. Brown 
Jr., MD18; fang Chen, phD7; wei-Min Chen, 
phD7,19; emilio Ciusani, phD20; John w. Cole, 
MD21,22; lynelle Cortellini, Msc2,3,4; John Danesh, 
phD23; Kimberly Doheny, phD24; luigi ferrucci, 
MD, phD25; Maria Grazia franzosi, phD15; 
philippe frossard, phD, Dsc11; Karen l. furie, 
MD, MpH3; Jonathan Golledge, MChir, fraCs26; 
Graeme J. Hankey, MD, fraCp, frCp, 
frCpe27, 28; Dena Hernandez, Ms10; elizabeth 
G. Holliday, phD8; fang-Chi Hsu, phD29,30; Jim 
Jannes, phD, BMBs BMBs fraCp31; ayeesha 
Kamal, MD, faHa, aBvN32; Muhammad saleem 
Khan, Msc33; steven J. Kittner, MD21,22; simon 
a. Koblar, phD, BMBs fraCp31; Martin lewis, 
phD31; Lisa Lincz, PhD8; antonella lisa, phD5; 
Mar Matarin, phD34; pablo Moscato, phD35; 
Josyf C. Mychaleckyj, Dphil 7,19; eugenio a. 
parati, MD20; silvia parolo5; elizabeth pugh, 
phD24; Natalia s. rost, MD2,3,4; Michael schallert 
Msc 12; Helena schmidt, MD,phD12; rodney J. 
scott, phD, pD, frCpath, fHGsa8; Jonathan 
w. sturm, phD, MD36; sunaina yadav, Msc33; 
Moazzam Zaidi, MBBs11; GarNet Collaborative 
research Group37; Giorgio B. Boncoraglio, MD20; 
Christopher royce levi, MD, fraCp, raCp8; 
James f. Meschia, MD17; Jonathan rosand, 
MD, Msc2,3,4; Michele sale, phD6,7,38; Danish 
saleheen, MBBs, phD11,23,39; reinhold schmidt, 
MD12; pankaj sharma, MD phD frCp33; Bradford 
worrall, MD, Msc19,40;  Braxton D. Mitchell, phD1; 
on behalf of the international stroke Genetics 
Consortium. are myocardial infarction-associated 
single nucleotide polymorphisms associated with 
ischemic stroke? stroke. 2012 apr;43(4):980-6. 
epub feb 23.(if=5.85)

3. elizabeth G. Holliday1,2, Jane M. Maguire3,4,5, 
tiffany-Jane evans2,6, simon Koblar7,8, Jim 
Jannes7,8, Jonathan w. sturm5,9,10, Graeme 
J. Hankey11,12, ross Baker11,13, Jonathan 
Golledge14,15, Mark w. parsons4, rainer 
Malik16, Mark Mcevoy1,17, erik Biros14, Martin D. 
lewis7,18, Lisa F. Lincz 6,17,19, roseanne peel1,17, 
Christopher oldmeadow17, wayne smith17, pablo 
Moscato20, simona Barlera21, steve Bevan22, 
Joshua C. Bis23, eric Boerwinkle24, Giorgio 
B. Boncoraglio25, thomas G. Brott26, robert 
D. Brown, Jr27, yu-Ching Cheng28, John w. 
Cole29, ioana Cotlarciuc30, william J. Devan31,32, 
Myriam fornage24, Karen l. furie32, sólveig 
Grétarsdóttir33, andreas Gschwendtner 16, 
Mohammad arfan ikram34,35,36, w. t. longstreth, 
Jr37,38,39, James f. Meschia26, Braxton D. 
Mitchell28, thomas H. Mosley40, Michael a. Nalls 
41, eugenio a. parati25, Bruce M. psaty23,37,42,43, 
pankaj sharma30, Kari stefansson33,44, Gudmar 
thorleifsson33, Unnur thorsteinsdottir33,44, 
Matthew traylor 22, Benjamin f.J. verhaaren34,36, 
Kerri l. wiggins23, Bradford B. worrall45, the 
australian stroke Genetics Collaborative46, the 
international stroke Genetics Consortium46, 
the wellcome trust Case Control Consortium2 

46, Cathie sudlow47, peter M. rothwell48, 
Martin farrall49,50, Martin Dichgans16, Jonathan 
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rosand31,32, Hugh s. Markus22, rodney J. 
scott2,6,51*, Christopher levi4*, John attia1,2* 
Common variants at 6p21.1 are associated 
with large artery atherosclerotic stroke. Nature 
Genetics. accepted June 2012.

4. Enjeti, AE and Seldon, M. “Microparticles: role 
in Haemostasis and venous thromboembolism” 
in  Pathophysiology and Clinical Aspects of 
Venous Thromboembolism in Neonates, Renal 
Disease and Cancer Patients, isBN 978-953-
51-0616-6, edited by Mohamed a. abdelaal, 
2012

5. Chapman, K., M. Seldon, and r. richards, 
thrombotic microangiopathies, thrombotic 
thrombocytopenic purpura, and ADAMTS-13. 
Semin Thromb Hemost, 2012. 38(1): p. 47-54.

6. freytes, C.o., M.J. Zhang, J. Carreras, l.J. 
Burns, r.p. Gale, l. isola, M.a. perales, M. 
seftel, J.M. vose, a.M. Miller, J. Gibson, 
t.G. Gross, P.A. Rowlings, D.J. inwards, s. 
pavlovsky, r. Martino, D.i. Marks, G.a. Hale, 
s.M. smith, H.C. schouten, s. slavin, t.r. 
Klumpp, H.M. lazarus, K. van Besien, and p.N. 
Hari, Outcome of Lower-Intensity Allogeneic 
Transplantation in Non-Hodgkin Lymphoma 
after Autologous Transplantation Failure. Biol 
Blood Marrow transplant, 2011.

7. iland, H., K. Bradstock, J. seymour, M. 
Hertzberg, a. Grigg, K. taylor, J. Catalano, 
p. Cannell, N. Horvath, S. Deveridge, p. 
Browett, t. Brighton, l. Chong, f. springall, J. 
ayling, a. Catalano, s. supple, M. Collins, J. Di 
iulio, and J. reynolds, Results of the APML3 
trial incorporating all-trans-retinoic acid and 
idarubicin in both induction and consolidation 
as initial therapy for patients with acute 
promyelocytic leukemia. Haematologica, 2012. 
97(2): p. 227-34.

8. iland, H.J., K. Bradstock, s.G. supple, a. 
Catalano, M. Collins, M. Hertzberg, p. Browett, 
a. Grigg, f. firkin, a. Hugman, J. reynolds, J. Di 
iulio, C. tiley, K. taylor, r. filshie, M. Seldon, J. 
taper, J. szer, J. Moore, J. Bashford, and J.f. 
seymour, All-trans-retinoic acid, idarubicin, and 
intravenous arsenic trioxide as initial therapy in 
acute promyelocytic leukemia (APML4). Blood, 
2012.

9. waller, a., a. Girgis, C. Johnson, C. 
lecathelinais, D. sibbritt, M. Seldon, t. 
Bonaventura, and D. Currow, Implications of 
a needs assessment intervention for people 
with progressive cancer: impact on clinical 
assessment, response and service utilisation. 
psychooncology, 2012. 21(5): p. 550-7.

PALLIATIVE CARE
PUBLICATIONS

PUBLISHED ARTICLES

• Good p, Sneesby L, Higgins i, van Der riet p. 
Medical officers in acute care settings: their views 
on medically assisted nutrition and hydration at 
the end of life. Journal of Palliative Care. 2011, 
vol 27(4): 303-9

• Sneesby,L, Satchell, R, Good,p, & van Der 
riet, p. Death and dying in australia: perceptions 
of a sudanese community. - Journal of 
Advanced Nursing. 2011, vol 67(12): 2696-2702

• Clark K, Hipwell A, Byfieldt N. timing of 
Cessation laxatives before Death. International 
Journal of Palliative Nursing. 2012;18(7): 326 - 
330

• Clark K, smith J, Currow DC. the prevalence of 
bowel disturbances reported in a palliative Care 
population. The Journal of Pain and Symptom 
Management. 2012;43(6):993-1000

• Clark K, Byfieldt N, Dawe M, Currow DC. 
treating Constipation in palliative Care: the 
impact of  other factors aside from opioids. 
Am J Hosp Palliat Care. 2012; 29(2) :118 - 121 
[epub ahead of print]

• sheehan C, Clark K, lam l, Chye r. a 
retrospective analysis of primary diagnosis, co 
morbidities, anticholinergic load and other factors 
on treatment for noisy respiratory secretions at 
the end of life. Journal of Palliative Medicine. 
2011 Nov;14(11):1211-6

• Clark K, Currow DC. assessing Constipation in 
palliative Care in a Gastroenterology framework. 
Palliative Medicine, published on line, July 2011 
[epub ahead of print]

ACCEPTED ARTICLES

• Clark K, smith J, lovell M, Currow DC. 
longitudinal pain reports in a palliative care 
population. accepted Journal of Palliative 
Medicine april 2012

• Currow DC, fazekas B, Doogue M, Clark 
K, rowett D pharmacovigilance in hospice / 
palliative care. rapid report of net clinical effect of 
metoclopramide. accepted Journal of Palliative 
Medicine, June 2012 

• Clark K, Currow DC.  Constipation in palliative 
care: what do we use as definitions and outcome 
measures? accepted Journal of Pain and 
Symptom Management, March 2012 

• toh t, Clark K, lam l, shelby-James t. Currow 
DC. the role of ondansetron in the management 
of cholestatic or uraemic pruritus - a systematic 
review. accepted Journal of Pain and Symptom 
Management, october 2012

INVITED CONTRIBUTIONS 

• Clark K, Bensley K. end of life discussions 
around death and dying for aboriginal and 
torres strait islanders. Check program for GPs. 
september 2011

• Clark K, Gurigus a, Currow DC. the palliative 
management of people with advanced 
oesophageal cancer. Cancer Forum  2012;35 
(3):175-179

PUBLISHED ABSTRACTS

• Currow DC, Clark K, Cartmill J, pather  s, 
agar M, Craig s, fazekas B, Quinn s, Hardy J. 
a randomised double-blind placebo controlled 
trial in infusional subcutaneous octreotide in the 
management of malignant bowel obstructions 

in people with advanced cancer. Palliative 
Medicine 2012

• Clark K, smith J, Currow DC. Do the trajectories 
of disturbed bowel habits differ over time in 
palliative care? a consecutive cohort study. 
European Journal of Palliative Care, 2011

CONFERENCE PRESENTATIONS

International

• Clark K, smith J, Currow D. Do the trajectories 
of disturbed bowel habits differ over time in 
a palliative Care population? 12th Annual 
Congress of the European Association of 
Palliative Care, May 2011

• Sneesby, L. ethical and moral dilemmas in 
end-of-life decision making: is advanced care 
planning the answer? International Society of 
Advanced care Planning and End of Life care 
conference, 22nd – 23rd  June 2011

National

• 11th australian palliative Care Conference 2011, 
Cairns, australia – 30th august – 2nd september 
2011:

- Poster: Cameron-Taylor E, Byfieldt N. 
anti-emetic prescribing in the Mercy Hospice – 
Mechanism or Habit?

- Poster: Clark K, Gurigis a, Byfieldt N. the 
impact of Constipation on Health related Quality 
of life for people with advanced Cancer

- Sneesby L. Death & Dying: views of a sudanese 
community living in australia

- Clark K, Currow DC, talley NJ, lam l Dinning 
p, shelby-James t, agar M, Davidson p, 
phillips J. a multi-site randomised controlled trial 
comparing the severity of constipation symptoms 
experienced by palliative care patients receiving 
usual care compared to those diagnosed 
and managed according to the underlying 
pathophysiology

Invited presentations

• PaCCSC Annual Meeting, sydney, March 2012:

- Byfieldt N. an audit of the cessation of laxatives 
to time of death

- Clark K. preliminary Data presentation: a 
multi-site cluster randomised controlled trial 
comparing the severity of constipation symptoms 
experienced by palliative care patients receiving 
usual care compared to those diagnosed 
and managed according to the underlying 
pathophysiology

• Clark K. evidence-based management 
of constipation. Queensland University of 
Technology Palliative Care Research Forum, 
april 2012

CONFERENCE ATTENDANCE

• International Society of Advanced care Planning 
and End of Life care conference – london, 22nd 
– 23rd June 2011 – l. sneesby

• 7th World Research Congress of the European 



44 •  Calvary Mater NewCastle  •  review of operatioNs  • 2011/2012 

Association of Palliative Care (EAPC) – 
trondheim, Norway. 7th – 9th June 2012 – 
N.Byfieldt

GRANTS

• Clark K, whyte i, Byfieldt N.  a pilot study 
to explore the use of pyridostigmine in the 
management of constipation associated with 
high anticholinergic load in palliative care. 
CMN Margaret Mitchell grant for $10,000 to 
commence in 2012 

• Clark K. establishment of a funding agreement 
between Department of palliative Care, CMN, 
and the University of Newcastle to improve 
capacity of palliative Care to support medical 
student education in palliative care. established 
July 2011 for $250,000 over 2.5years

• Clark K, Cameron-Taylor E, Gray J, foster 
M.  Cancer institute Nsw primary health care for 
$40,000 over 12 months

CLINICAL TRIALS

• a multi-site cluster randomised controlled trial 
comparing the severity of constipation symptoms 
experienced by palliative care patients receiving 
usual care compared to those diagnosed 
and managed according to the underlying 
pathophysiology

• single patient Multiple Cross-over trials to 
Determine the efficacy of pilocarpine in relieving 
Dry Mouth in patients with Cancer

• randomised control trial of megestrol acetate, 
dexamethasone and placebo in the management 
of anorexia in patients with cancer

• a randomised, Double-Blind Multi-site 
parallel arm Controlled trial to assess relief 
of refractory Breathlessness Comparing fixed 
Doses of Morphine, oxycodone and placebo

• a randomised double blind placebo controlled 
trial of infusional subcutaneous octreotide in the 
management of malignant bowel obstruction in 
people with advanced cancer

• randomised double blind control trial of oral 
risperidone versus oral haloperidol versus oral 
placebo with rescue subcutaneous midazolam 
in the management of delirium in palliative care 
inpatients

• a randomised double-blind multi-site parallel 
arm controlled trial to assess relief of refractory 
breathlessness comparing oral sertraline and 
placebo

• a two-stage trial of antiemetic therapy in patients 
with cancer and nausea not related to anticancer 
therapy 

 study 1: a randomised open label study of 
guideline–driven targeted antiemetic therapy 
versus single agent antiemetic therapy 

 study 2: a randomised controlled double blind 
study of levomepromazine or ondansetron versus 
placebo with rescue antiemetics (best supportive 
care) in patients with refractory nausea

• Methylphenidate as a treatment for fatigue in 
advanced cancer patients

• a pilot study of pyridostigmine in constipated 

palliative care patients receiving medications that 
deliver an anticholinergic load and documented 
slow transit constipation

RESEARCH PROJECTS

• the impact of constipation on Health related 
Quality of life (Hr-Qol) for advanced cancer 
patients (Hr-Qol study)

• self-reported evaluation of the adverse effects of 
Dexamethasone (seeD study)

• a needs assessment survey of patients and their 
primary Carers after being registered with the 
Calvary Mater Newcastle palliative Care service 
(Nat project)

• Dyspnoea assessment tool review

• peritron validation study

• rapid pharmacovigilance in palliative care: a 
prospective observational study - understanding 
the burden of adverse drug reactions and their 
impact on symptoms at end of life

GENERAL INTERNAL 
MEDICINE
MACCS - MATER ACUTE CARE SERVICE

CONFERENCE PRESENTATIONS

australian ambulatory Care Conference Melbourne, 
australia. July 2004

Greenham J, Johnson w, stokes B and McGettigan. 
Use of a warfarinised protocol enhances hospital in 
the home anti-coagulation outcomes.

practice Development Conference. terrigal, Nsw, 
australia. september 2004.

Johnson w and Carr D. Hospital in the home care 
following autologous stem cell transplantation for 
lymphoma and multiple myeloma.

Greenham J, Johnson w, stokes B and McGettigan. 
Use of a warfarinised protocol enhances hospital in 
the home anti-coagulation outcomes.

National Medication safety Breakthrough 
Collaboration sydney.  16th february 2005.

Use of a warfarinised protocol enhances hospital in 
the home anti-coagulation outcomes.

CLINICAL TOxICOLOGY  
AND PHARMACOLOGY
JOURNAL ARTICLES/ PUBLICATIONS

Kumar vv, isbister GK, Duffull sB. the effect of 
decontamination procedures on pharmacodynamics 
of venlafaxine in overdose. Br J Clin pharm 2011 
Jul;72(1):125-32.

Maduwage K., Hodgson wC, Konstantakopoulos N, 
o’leary Ma, Gawarammana i, isbister GK. the in vitro 
toxicity of venoms from south asian Hump-nosed pit 
vipers (viperidae: Hypnale). J venom res. 2011;2:17-
23.

Joy Jp, Coulter Cv, Duffull sB, isbister GK. prediction 
of torsades de pointes from the Qt interval: analysis 
of a case series of amisulpride overdoses. Clin 

pharmacol ther. 2011 aug;90(2):243-5.

Clunas s, Berling i, whyte i. paracetamol in patents 
with pre-existing liver disease. aust fam physician. 
2011 aug;40(8):565

Berling i, isbister GK, Calver l, Clunas s. Digital 
holter measurement of Qt prolongation in ziprasidone 
overdose. Clin toxicol (phila). 2011 aug;49(7):694-6.

shen f, Coulter Cv, isbister GK, Duffull sB. a dosing 
regimen for immediate N-acetylcysteine treatment for 
acute paracetamol overdose. Clin toxicol (phila). 2011 
aug;49(7):643-7.

lane J, o’leary Ma, isbister GK. Coagulant effects 
of black snake (pseudechis spp.) venoms and in vitro 
efficacy of commercial antivenom. toxicon. 2011 sep 
1;58(3):239-46.

Casamento a, isbister GK. thrombotic 
microangiopathy in two tiger snake envenomations. 
anaesth intensive Care. 2011 Nov;39(6):1124-7.

Coulter Cv, farquhar s, Mcsherry C, isbister GK, 
Duffull sB.  Methanol and ethylene Glycol acute 
poisonings – predictors of Mortality. Clin toxicol 
(phila). 2011 Dec;49(10):900-6.

isbister GK, white J, Currie BJ, o’leary Ma, Brown 
sG; for the asp investigators. Clinical effects and 
treatment of envenoming by Hoplocephalus spp. 
snakes in australia: australian snakebite project (asp-
12). toxicon. 2011 Dec 1;58(8):634-40.

Calver l, isbister GK. the sedation assessment 
tool to score acute behavioural disturbance in the 
emergency department. emerg Med australas 2011 
Dec;23(6):732-4011)

Gulati a, faed JM, isbister GK, Duffull sB. 
Development and evaluation of a prototype of a novel 
clotting time test to monitor enoxaparin. pharm res. 
2012 Jan;29(1):225-35.

Berling i, anscombe M, isbister GK. intravenous 
paracetamol toxicity in a malnourished child. Clin 
toxicol (phila). 2012 Jan;50(1):74-6.

isbister GK, prior f, Kilham Ha. restricting cough and 
cold medicines in children. J paediatr Child Health. 
2012 feb;48(2):91-8.

Calver l, Dunlop a, isbister GK. individual patient 
assessment of methadone induced Qt prolongation 
with digital holter recording. J addict Med. 2012 
Mar;6(1):92-3.

Dassanayake tl, Jones al, Michie pt, Carter Gl, 
Mcelduff p, stokes BJ, whyte iM. risk of road traffic 
accidents in patients discharged following treatment 
for psychotropic drug overdose: a self-controlled 
case series study in australia. CNs Drugs. 2012 Mar 
1;26(3):269-76.

van Gorp f, Duffull sB, Hackett lp, isbister GK. 
population pharmacokinetics and pharmacodynamics 
of escitalopram in overdose and the effect of activated 
charcoal. Br J Clin pharmacol. 2012 Mar;73(3):402-
10.

isbister GK, shahmy s, Mohamed f, abeysinghe 
C, Karunathilake H, ariaratnam a. a randomised 
controlled trial of two infusion rates to decrease 
reactions to antivenom. plos one 2012;7(6):e38739. 
epub 2012 Jun 18

isbister GK, fan Hw. spider bite. lancet. 2011 Dec 
10;378(9808):2039-47.
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isbister GK, Kumar vv. indications for single-dose 
activated charcoal administration in acute overdose. 
Curr opin Crit Care. 2011 aug;17(4):351-7 

isbister GK, page CB. early endoscopy or Ct in 
caustic injuries: a re-evaluation of clinical practice. Clin 
toxicol (phila). 2011 aug;49(7):641-2.

CONFERENCE PRESENTATIONS

isbister G. international Congress on animal, plant 
and Microbial toxins, vladivostok 2011: invited 
speaker: “Understanding the effectiveness of 
antivenom therapy”.

isbister G. australasian College for emergency 
Medicine: annual scientific Meeting 2011, sydney: 
invited speaker: “toxinology Update”

isbister G. european association of poisons Centres 
and Clinical toxicologists (eapCCt) XXXii international 
Congress, london, 2012: invited lecture: “spider 
Bite”

isbister G. envenomation. paediatric acute Care 
Conference, Coolum QlD, 2011

allen Ge, o’leary Ma, Brown sGa Buckley Na, 
isbister GK for the asp investigators Clinical effects 
and antivenom Dosing in Brown snake (pseudonaja 
spp.) envenoming - australian snakebite project 
(asp-14): european association of poisons Centres 
and Clinical toxicologists (eapCCt) XXXii international 
Congress, london, 2012

allen Ge, o’leary Ma, Brown sGa Buckley Na, 
isbister GK for the asp investigators Clinical effects 
and antivenom Dosing in Brown snake (pseudonaja 
spp.) envenoming - australian snakebite project 
(asp-14): australasian College for emergency 
Medicine: annual scientific Meeting 2011, sydney

whyte iM. australian society of Clinical toxicology 
and pharmacology.Clinical weekend, sydney, 
australia, april 28–9, 2012 “too much insulin!” (invited 
lecture)

isbister GK. australian society of Clinical toxicology 
and pharmacology.Clinical weekend, sydney, 
australia, april 28–9, 2012 snake envenoming. 
(invited lecture)

CONFERENCE POSTERS

Berling i, whyte iM, isbister GK. oxycodone 
overdose: a case series. european association of 
poisons Centres and Clinical toxicologists (eapCCt) 
XXXii international Congress, london, 2012

isbister GK, Brown sGa for the asp investigators. 
Bites in australian snake handlers - australian 
snakebite project (asp-15). european association of 
poisons Centres and Clinical toxicologists (eapCCt) 
XXXii international Congress, london, 2012

Calver la, Downes Ma, page CB, Chan B, isbister 
GK. Droperidol for sedation of acute Behavioural 
Disturbance. society of academic emergency 
Medicine annual Meeting, Chicago, 2012

Calver la, Downes Ma, page CB, Chan B, isbister 
GK. safety of droperidol for sedation of acute 
Behavioural Disturbance. society of academic 
emergency Medicine annual Meeting, Chicago, 2012

o’leary Ma, isbister GK. venom-antivenom 
immunocomplex measurement in vitro and in 
envenomed patients. international Congress on 

animal, plant and Microbial toxins, vladivostok 2011

RESEARCH FUNDING/ GRANTS

NHMrC project Grant “snakebite first aid” van 
Helden D, isbister GK. 2012-2013. $192,450 
(University of Newcastle).

Hunter Medical research institute “first aid for 
cytotoxic snakebite” van Helden D, isbister GK. 2012 
$25,000

Nsw Health Drug and alcohol research Grants 
program “the DorM ii study: a post-implementation 
safety study of droperidol for acute behavioural 
disturbance in the emergency department” isbister 
GK, Calver l, Miller M. 2011-2012 $18,190

NHMrC project Grant: “Neurotoxicity after 
acute anticholinesterase pesticide poisoning and 
envenomation.” Buckley Na, senanayake N, isbister 
G, Dawson a, Karalliedde l, de silva J. 2012-2015. 
$970,970. (UNsw)

Margaret Mitchell research Grant scheme – Calvary 
Mater Newcastle: $10,000 Clark K, whyte i, Byfieldt 
N. a pilot study of pyridostigmine in cancer patients 
with constipation and high anticholinergic loads. 
2011–2012

CLINICAL TRIALS

randomised controlled trial of intravenous antivenom 
versus placebo in the treatment of redback spider bite

a randomised controlled trial of factor replacement 
therapy in snake bite coagulopathy.

Does fresh frozen plasma in russells viper bite 
coagulopathy reduce the dose and duration of 
antivenom therapy?

a randomised controlled trial of sedation of acute 
behavioural disturbance in the psychiatric setting: the 
Haloperidol or Droperidol trial (HorD).

CONSULTATION-LIAISON 
PSYCHIATRY
PUBLICATIONS IN PEER REVIEWED JOURNALS

1. Carter Gl, lewin tJ, Gianacas l, Clover K, 
adams C. Caregiver satisfaction with out-patient 
oncology services: Utility of the faMCare 
instrument and development of the faMCare-6. 
Supportive Care in Cancer 2011; 19 (4): 565-
572.

2. Britton B, Clover K, Bateman l, odelli C, 
wenham K,  Zeman a,  Carter G. Baseline 
Depression predicts Malnutrition in Head and 
Neck Cancer patients Undergoing radiotherapy  
Supportive Care in Cancer 2012, 20(2):  335-
342.

3. Dassanayake t, Michie p, Carter G, Jones a. 
effects of benzodiazepines, antidepressants 
and opioids on driving: a systematic review of 
epidemiological and experimental evidence. Drug 
Safety 2011 34 (2): 125-156. 

4. Jayasekera, Himali , Carter, Gregory and 
Clover, Kerrie. Comparison of the Composite 
international Diagnostic interview (CiDi-auto) 
with Clinical Diagnosis in a suicidal population, 
Archives of Suicide Research, 2011. 15: 1, 43 – 
55. Doi: 10.1080/13811118.2011.540208

5. Hossein Hassanian-Moghaddam, saeedeh 
sarjami, ali-asghar Kolahi, Gregory Carter. 
postcards in persia: 12 month outcomes of a 
randomised controlled trial to reduce suicidal 
behaviours after hospital treated deliberate 
self-poisoning British Journal of psychiatry 2011 
198(4): 309-316. http://bjp.rcpsych.org/cgi/
content/abstract/198/4/309

6. Carter G, Britton B, Clover K, rogers K, adams 
C, Mcelduff p. effectiveness of QUiCatoUCH: 
a computerised touch screen evaluation for pain 
and distress in ambulatory oncology patients 
in Newcastle, australia. psycho-oncology first 
published online: 21 July 2011, Doi: 10.1002/
pon.2020.

7. page a, taylor r, Gunnell D, Carter G, Morrell 
s, Martin G. effectiveness of australian youth 
suicide prevention initiatives. B J Psychiatry 
November 2011 199:423-429; doi:10.1192/bjp.
bp.111.093856

8. saha s, scott J, Johnston a, slade t, varghese 
D, Carter G, McGrath J. the association between 
delusional-like experiences and suicidal thoughts 
and behavior: a large population-based study. 
Schizophrenia Research 132 (2011) 197–202.

9. Hassanian-Moghaddam H, Carter G. role of 
postcards in reducing suicidal behaviour. authors 
reply. (letter) Br J Psychiatry 2011; 199(4):342-
343.

10. white JH,  Magin p,  attia J, sturm J,  Carter G,  
pollack M. trajectories of psychological distress 
after stroke (accepted Annals of Family Medicine 
october 2011) 

11. white J, Gray K, Magin p, attia J, sturm J. 
Carter G. exploring the experience of post stroke 
fatigue in community dwelling stroke survivors: a 
prospective qualitative study (accepted Disability 
and Rehabilitation November 2011).

12. turner a, Hambridge J, white J, Carter G, Clover 
K, Nelson l, Hackett M. Depression screening 
in stroke: a comparison of alternative measures 
with the sCiD (Major Depressive episode) as 
criterion standard.  Stroke  2012;43:1000-1005, 
(published online before print february 23 2012) 

13. alex J Mitchell, Nick Meader, evan Davies, Kerrie 
Clover, Gregory Carter, Matthew J. loscalzo, 
wolfgang linden, luigi Grassi, Christoffer 
Johansen, linda Carlson, James Zabora. 
Meta-analysis of screening and Case finding 
tools for Depression in Cancer: evidence based 
recommendations for Clinical practice for the 
DCC Consensus Group. Journal of Affective 
Disorders 2012 140: 149–160 (online May 2012, 
doi:10.1016/j.jad.2011.12.043)

14. Dassanayake t, Jones al, Michie pt, Carter, 
Mcelduff p, stokes BJ,  whyte i . risk of road 
traffic accidents in patients discharged following 
treatment for psychotropic drug overdose: a 
self-controlled case series study in australia. 
(accepted CNS Drugs January 2012)

15. Dassanayake t, Michie pt, Jones al, Mallard 
t, whyte iM, Carter Gl. Cognitive impairment in 
patients clinically recovered from central nervous 
system depressant drug overdose.  Journal of 
Clinical Psychopharmacology 32 (4): 503-510
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16. Maddock G r, startup M, Carter G. who do Gps 
refer to the Better outcomes in Mental Health 
Care ataps program?  ANZJP 2012; 46(5): 
435-444. (ANZJP february online first 2012).

17. Dassanayake tl, Carter Gl,  Jones al,  Mallard 
t, whyte i M,  Michie pt. Cognitive skills 
underlying driving in patients discharged following 
self-poisoning with central nervous system 
depressant drugs.  (accepted Traffic Injury 
Prevention february 2012)

18. Carter G. editorial: young people, mental illness 
and suicidal behaviours. Early Intervention 
in Psychiatry 2012  6 (2): 113–114, (article 
first published online : 17 april 2012, Doi: 
10.1111/j.1751-7893.2012.00359.x)

19. Carter G. invited Commentary on “Bergen H, et 
al. How do methods of non-fatal self-harm relate 
to eventual suicide?” (accepted evidence Based 
Mental Health april 2012)

20. Maree l Hackett, Greg Carter, Denis Crimmins, 
tracy Clarke, lucy arblaster, laurent Billot, 
Jayanthi Mysore, Jonathan sturm. improving 
outcomes after stroke: results from the 
randomised clinical pilot trial (accepted Stroke 
april 2012)

21. Clover K, Kelly p, rogers K, Britton B, Carter 
G. predictors of desire for help in oncology 
outpatients reporting pain or distress. (accepted 
psycho-oncology July 2012)

22. luckett t, Britton B Clover K, rankin NM. 
evidence for interventions to improve 
psychological outcomes in people with head and 
neck cancer: a systematic review of the literature. 
supportive Care in Cancer. 2011:19 (7); 871-
881.

23. oultram s, findlay N, Clover K, Cross l, ponman 
l, adams C. a comparison between patient 
self-report and radiation therapists’ ability to 
identify anxiety and distress in head and neck 
cancer patients requiring immobilisation for 
radiation therapy. Journal of radiotherapy in 
practice. (accepted apr 2011, due for publication 
in June 2012 - volume 11 issue 2). doi:10.1017/
s1460396911000136.

CONFERENCE PRESENTATIONS

1. Maddock Gillian rebekah, Carter Gregory leigh, 
startup Michael Jonathan,  ‘Do Gps observe 
DoHa guidelines in making referrals to the 
Better outcomes in Mental Health Care, ataps 
program?’, 2011 pHC research Conference 
abstracts, Brisbane, QlD (2011) 

2. white J, Magin p, attia J, sturm J, Carter G, 
pollack M. exploring post-stroke Mood Changes 
in Community-Dwelling stroke survivors: a 
longitudinal Cohort study. stroke society of 
australasia Conference, adelaide, september 
2011.

3. turner alyna, white  J, Hambridge  J, Clover 
Kerrie, Nelson louise Jane, Mavratzakis aimee 
lee, Carter Gregory leigh, Hackett  M,  ‘impact 
of routine electronic screening and feedback 
on depression symptoms in stroke: a pilot 
randomised controlled trial’, international Journal 
of stroke, adelaide, sa (2011) 

4. turner alyna, Hambridge  J, white  J, Clover 
Kerrie, Carter Gregory leigh, Nelson louise Jane, 
alston  M, Hackett  M,  ‘Depression screening 
in stroke patients: a comparison of alternative 
measures’, international Journal of stroke, 
adelaide, sa (2011)

5. Hackett  M, Carter Gregory leigh, Crimmins  D, 
Clarke  t, arblaster  l, Billot  l, Mysore  J, sturm  
J,  ‘improving outcomes after stroke (post) 
clinical pilot trial results’, international Journal of 
stroke, adelaide, sa (2011)  

6. tharaka Dassanayake, patricia Michie, alison 
Jones, Gregory Carter, trevor Mallard and 
ian whyte. Cognitive impairment in patients 
discharged following CNs-depressant drug 
overdose, and its implications in driving. aspr 
Dunedin December 2011.

7. invited workshop: screening for distress in 
cancer: a practical and theoretical guide to what 
really works. Mitchell a, loscalzo M, Clarke K, 
Clover K. international psycho-oncology society 
academy, antalya turkey, Nov 2011.

OTHER PRESENTATIONS:

Carter Gl  
Child and adolescent psychiatry. 
invited lecture in the Masters of international public 
Health Course, University of sydney. september 
2011.

suicide and suicide attempt. 
 invited lecture in the Masters of international public 
Health Course, University of sydney. september 
2011.

Gianacas l & Nelson l 
living well with lymphoma 
invited patient presentation, leukaemia foundation. 
september, 2011.

Gianacas l  
women’s Cancers: psychological Considerations 
invited in-service presentation, Hunter postgraduate 
Medical institute. september 2011.

Gianacas l 
introduction to psycho-oncology 
invited lecture in Health psychology 3500 
Undergraduate Course, University of Newcastle. 
March 2012. 

Britton, B & Gianacas l 
Breaking Bad News, Communication skills training 
invited tutorials in Bachelor of Medicine Course (year 
5), University of Newcastle. february - June 2012. 

Britton, B 
introduction to oncology 
invited lecture and tutorials in Bachelor of Medical 
radiation science (year 1), University of Newcastle. 
september 2011

Britton, B 
Communication, Boundaries and self-Care 
invited lecture and tutorials in Bachelor of Medical 
radiation science (year 3), University of Newcastle. 
october 2011

Britton, B 
Motivating Health Behaviour Change 
invited to write a chapter in Masters of Clinical 
Medicine (MeDi6145), University of Newcastle, 
semester 1 2012

Nelson, l 
working with terminally ill patients 
invited workshop (8 hours) for Clinical psychology 
Masters students at UNe 
armidale, semester 1 2012

SUCCESSFUL GRANT APPLICATIONS

2011 Grant #w81XwH-11-2-0123. $2,500,000 
UsD over 5 years. Clinicaltrials.gov identifier: 
NCt01473771 
Caring letters for Military suicide prevention: a 
randomized Controlled trial (multicentre Usa, 
Germany). supporting agency: Us army Medical 
research and Materiel Command, U.s. army Medical 
research acquisition  
principal investigator: David D luxton, phD National 
Centre for telehealth and technology, Usa. see 
http://clinicaltrials.gov/ct2/show/NCt01473771 for 
more details.

2011 NHMrC project Grant application: (application 
iD: app1021018). $1,112,000 over 3 years. 
eating as treatment (eat): a trial of dieticians 
providing a psychological intervention to improve 
nutrition in Head and Neck cancer patients 
undergoing radiotherapy  
Chief investigator: amanda Baker Cia, Gregory Carter 
CiB et al. 

2011 James lawrie research Grant – Calvary Mater 
Newcastle Hospital: Calibrating commonly used 
questionnaires for depression and anxiety in oncology 
to enhance comparability and communication of 
outcomes. (rasCH study)  
Cis K Clover, G Carter, B Britton. ais  M King, s 
lambert J pallant. $17,367 over 1 year.
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Directors

Key:
ARC Audit & Risk Committee
MEC Mission & Ethics Committee
PRC Performance & Remuneration Committee
SDC Strategy & Development Committee
CGC Clinical Governance Committee

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors of Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd present their report on the 
Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2012.

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd Board of Directors is comprised of the same membership as 
the National Board of the Little Company of Mary Health Care Ltd, which is the ultimate parent 
entity.

The names of Directors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are detailed below.

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless 
otherwise stated.

NAME QUALIFICATIONS AREAS OF SPECIFIC 
RESPONSIBILITY 

Hon John Watkins M.A., LLB, DipEd Chair
Member, MEC 

Michael Roche BA (Accounting), 
FCPA, MACS 

Deputy Chair 
Member, ARC 
Chair, SDC 

Hon Gregory Crafter AO LLB Director 
Chair, MEC 

Rebecca Davies BEc, LLB (Hons), 
FAICD 

Director 
Member, ARC 
Member, PRC  

John Mackay AM BA, FAIM Director 
Chair, PRC

Associate Professor Richard Matthews AM 
(Appointed 1 January 2012)

MBBS Director  
Member, CGC (Appointed 8 February 2012)

Professor Katherine McGrath MBBS, FRCPA, 
FAICD 

Director 
Member, PRC
Member, SDC 
Chair, CGC (Appointed 8 February 2012)

Professor Peter Ravenscroft AM MBBS (Qld), MD 
(Qld), FRACP, 
FFPMANZCA, 
FaChPM 

Director 
Member, MEC 
Member, SDC 
Member, CGC (Appointed 8 February 2012

Jane Tongs MBA, BBus, FCA, 
FCPA, MAICD 

Director 
Chair, ARC 

Brigid Tracey AM BN (Bachelor of 
Nursing), Grad Dip 
Nursing 
Administration 

Director 
Member, ARC
Member, MEC 
Member, CGC (Appointed 8 February 2012)

Philip Maloney 
(Appointed 12 March 2012)

B Com, LLB, Grad 
Dip CSP, ACIS, 
MAICD 

Company Secretary 

David Bergman BCom, MEc, ACA, 
FFin 

Alternate Company Secretary 

Margaret Scott (formerly McGowen) 
(Resigned 25 September 2011)

BEc, FCA, FFin, 
ACIS  

Company Secretary 

1
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Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The principal activities of the Company remain the ownership and operation of the Calvary Mater 
Newcastle hospital.

Management is actively reviewing operational performance to further improve this result.

A deficit of $0.004M was incurred for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 (2011: surplus 
$92.491M).

Review of operations

Significant changes in the state of affairs
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company during the financial year.

Future developments 

(a) Revenues
The Company's revenue from operating activities totalled $151.003M (2011: $243.951M).  Grants 
and subsidies from Government for hospital operations totalled $115.475M (2011: $210.456M). 
Grants and subsidies represent 76% (2011: 86%) of revenue from operating activities.

Revenue from operations for the year ended 30 June 2011 included $100.040M resources 
received free of charge - capital and revenue relating to the Public Private Partnership (PPP) 
arrangements and recognition of the NSW government funding of superannuation contributions for 
employees who are members of the defined benefit contribution schemes SASS and SSS.

(b) Expenses
The Company's expense from operating activities totalled $157.921M (2011: $156.939M).  
Expenses on personnel costs represent 63% (2011: 58%) of total operating expense.

Staffing levels for clinical services have increased during the reporting period with total staff of 928 
full time equivalents as at 30 June 2012 (2011: 871).

(c) Hospital activities
The overall inpatient activity for the year was 15,442 separations, an increase of 9% on the year 
ended 30 June 2011.  Non-inpatient activity for the hospital during the year was 313,048 occasions 
of service, an increase of 2% on the year ended 30 June 2011.

The Company plans to continue the integration and expansion of its current range of services in 
accordance with the mission, vision and values of the organisation.

Significant events after year end
Set out below are the details of matters or circumstances which have arisen since the end of the 
financial year which significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the 
Company.

The Company continued to provide quality services in accordance with the mission vision and 
values of the organisation. 

Principal activities 

Results

2
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Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

DIRECTORS' REPORT

No person has applied for leave of the Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or 
intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking 
responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those proceedings.

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Proceedings on behalf of the Company

Company details
The Company is incorporated as a company limited by guarantee. If the Company is wound up, the 
constitution states that each member is required to contribute a maximum of $100 towards meeting 
any outstanding obligations of the Company.  As the Company only has one member, a total 
maximum of $100 is payable on a wind up.

There is a substantial process of regulatory and policy change impacting on the health and related 
sectors.  These changes arise from reviews undertaken by the Productivity Commission, potential 
revisions to legislation, health fund rebates eligibility changes and the impacts of the carbon tax.  
No provision has been included in the financial statements for the potential impacts of these 
changes due to the material uncertainty as to their timing and impact.

Report preparation
The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements. 

Deed of access and indemnity - Directors
Little Company of Mary Health Care Ltd has executed a Deed of Access & Indemnity which 
provides Directors with the right of access to records for seven years after they cease office and 
also indemnifies Directors (to the extent permitted by law) against liability incurred in the course of 
their duties as a Director of companies within the Little Company of Mary Health Care group.

Indemnification of officers
Little Company of Mary Health Care Ltd paid a premium during the year in relation to a Directors & 
Officers Liability policy indemnifying the Directors and Officers of the Group for losses which the 
Director or Officer may become legally obligated to pay on account of any claim made against the 
Director or Officer during the policy period for a wrongful act committed during the policy period.

Rounding off
The Company is an entity to which ASIC Class Order 98/100 applies. Accordingly, amounts in the 
financial statements and Directors' Report have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars, 
unless otherwise stated.

3
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2012 2011
$ '000 $ '000

Revenue from operations 151,003 243,951 
Other revenues 6,914 5,479 

Total revenues 2 157,917 249,430 

Employee benefits expense 3 99,212 91,521 
Depreciation expense 3 5,875 3,716 
Finance costs 3 8 8 
Supplies 20,848 27,668 
Computer expenses 113 101 
Consulting and legal costs 85 331 
Contracted services 21,440 20,442 
Insurance 208 202 
LCMHC National Office shared service contributions 1,753 1,042 
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 258 4,563 
Operating lease rental expenses 3 25 - 
Power, light and heat 101 22 
Public relations 5 3 
Repairs and maintenance 177 354 
Subscriptions 79 59 
Travel 1,009 853 
Other expenses 6,725 6,054 

Total expenses 157,921 156,939 

Net profit / (loss) for the year (4) 92,491 

Other comprehensive income - - 

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (4) 92,491 

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Note

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

The Statement of Comprehensive Income is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the 
financial statements set out on pages 12 to 28.

8
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2012 2011
$ '000 $ '000

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4/9 45,745 41,922 
Trade and other receivables 5 4,388 2,847 
Inventories 6 1,110 2,295 
Other current assets 7 160 174 
Total current assets 51,403 47,238 

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 127,910 128,925 
Total non-current assets 127,910 128,925 

Total assets 179,313 176,163 

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 10 6,790 6,331 
Provisions 12 30,576 28,062 
Total current liabilities 37,366 34,393 

Non-current liabilities
Provisions 12 1,013 832 
Total non-current liabilities 1,013 832 

Total liabilities 38,379 35,225 

NET ASSETS 140,934 140,938 

Equity
Retained earnings  140,934 140,938 

TOTAL EQUITY 140,934 140,938 

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2012

The Statement of Financial Position is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial 
statements set out on pages 12 to 28.

Note

9
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2012 2011
$ '000 $ '000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 42,150 39,632 
Payments to suppliers and employees (152,155) (143,585)
Government grants received 125,778 121,426 
GST recovered from the ATO 4,720 4,404 
GST payments to ATO (13,756) (13,229)
Interest received 2,204 2,091 

Net cash provided by operating activities 8,941 10,739 

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for property, plant and equipment (5,118) (2,739)

Net cash used in investing activities (5,118) (2,739)

Net increase in cash held 3,823 8,000 

Cash at the beginning of the financial year 41,922 33,922 

Cash at end of the financial year 45,745 41,922 

Separate disclosure of operating and other cash at the end of the financial year:
Operating cash 9,347 6,640 
Special purpose, trust and other restricted cash 9 36,398 35,282 

45,745 41,922 

Note

The Statement of Cash Flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements 
set out on pages 12 to 28.

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

10
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Retained
earnings Total

$ '000 $ '000

Balance 1 July 2010 48,447 48,447 

Surplus for the year 92,491 92,491 

Balance 30 June 2011 140,938 140,938 

Balance 1 July 2011 140,938 140,938 

Deficit for the year (4) (4)

Balance 30 June 2012 140,934 140,934 

The Statement of Changes in Equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial 
statements set out on pages 12 to 28.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

11
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Note 1:Statement of significant accounting policies

Standards affecting presentation and disclosure

Accounting policies
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d) Taxation
The Company is exempt from income tax under the current provisions of the Australian 
Income Tax Assessment Act (1997).  Accordingly, there is no income tax expense or income 
tax payable.

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd is a Public Company limited by guarantee, incorporated and 
domiciled in Australia.

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations, other 
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the 
Corporations Act 2001.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical 
costs, except for the revaluation of certain non-current assets and financial instruments.

The financial statements were authorised by the Board on 23  August 2012.

AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards ; and 
AASB 2010-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements.

The following Standards were early adopted in the 30 June 2010 year.  There has been no 
impact on the amounts disclosed in the financial statements arising from the early adoption as 
the standards related to disclosure only.

Comparative figures
Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation for the 
current financial year as a result of changes in the mapping of the general ledger accounts.

Revisions of accounting estimates
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in current and future periods 
only.

Rounding off
The Company is an entity to which ASIC Class Order 98/100 applies.  Accordingly, amounts 
in the financial statements and Directors' Report have been rounded off to the nearest 
thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated.

12
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Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

(e)

(f)

Grants received

Interest revenue
Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the 
financial asset.

Resources received free of charge
Revenue is recognised when fair value can be reliably measured.  Usage of resources is 
recognised as a corresponding expense.

Goods and services tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax 
(GST), except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian 
Taxation Office (ATO).  In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.  Receivables and payables in the 
Statement of Financial Position are shown inclusive of GST.

The GST components of cash flows arising from operating, investing and financing activities 
which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash flows.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current 
asset or liability in the Statement of Financial Position.

Non-reciprocal grants
Revenue is recognised when the grant is received or receivable.

Rendering of services
Patient fee income is recognised when the fee in respect of services provided is receivable.
Accrued patient income represents an estimate of fees due from patients not billed at 
balance date.  This estimate is calculated with reference to individual episode information 
and per diem rates.

Reciprocal grants
Grants received on the condition that specified services be delivered, or conditions fulfilled, 
are considered reciprocal.  Such grants are initially recognised as a liability and revenue is 
recognised as services are performed or conditions fulfilled.

Revenue recognition
Where applicable, revenues are recognised at the fair value of the consideration received net 
of the amount of goods and service tax (GST) payable to the ATO.

Donation revenue
Donation revenue is recognised when received, at the fair value of the asset donated.

13
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Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

(g)

(h)

Recognition and initial measurement
Financial instruments, incorporating financial assets and financial liabilities, are recognised 
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs where the 
instrument is not classified as at fair value through profit and loss.  Transaction costs related 
to instruments classified as at fair value through profit or loss are expensed to profit or loss 
immediately.  Financial instruments are classified and measured as set out below.

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows 
expires or the asset is transferred to another party whereby the Company no longer has any 
significant continuing involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset.
Financial liabilities are derecognised where the related obligations are either discharged, 
cancelled or expire.  The difference between the carrying value of consideration paid, 
including the transfer of non cash assets or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss when they are held for 
trading for the purpose of short-term profit taking, where they are derivatives not held for 
hedging purposes, or designated as such to avoid an accounting mismatch or to enable 
performance evaluation where a group of financial assets is managed by key personnel on a 
fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.
Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in 
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Patient fees receivable are generally settled from Health Funds within 30 days and are 
carried at amounts due.

Other debtors to be settled within 30 days are carried at amounts due.

Finance costs
Finance costs include interest and finance lease/hire purchase finance charges and are 
expensed as incurred.  In the case of assets which are under construction (and prior to being 
ready to use), finance costs are capitalised and form part of the total construction cost of the 
asset in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Financial instruments
If the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to maturity, then they 
are classified as held-to-maturity.  Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

14
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Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

(i)

(j) Property, plant and equipment

(k)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the financial period in which 
they are incurred.

Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Trade accounts payable are normally settled within 30 days.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Depreciation and amortisation
Assets are depreciated or amortised using the straight-line method of depreciation to their 
estimated residual values, from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed 
assets, from the time an asset is completed and held ready for use.  Leasehold 
improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or 
the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

Depreciation and amortisation rates and methods and residual values are reviewed annually 
for appropriateness.  When changes are made, adjustments are reflected prospectively in 
current and future periods only.

Property, plant and equipment are measured on a cost basis less depreciation and 
impairment losses.

The cost of manufactured products includes direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate 
portion of variable and fixed overheads.  Overheads are applied on the basis of normal 
operating capacity.  Costs are assigned on the basis of weighted average costs.

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed maturities 
and fixed or determinable payments, and it is the Company's intention to hold these 
investments to maturity.  They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either 
designated as such or that are not classified in any other categories.  They comprise 
investments in the equity of other entities where there is neither a fixed maturity nor fixed or 
determinable payments.  These assets are held at fair values with movements recorded 
directly to reserves.

15
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Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

2012 2011
Buildings 2.5% 2.5%
Plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings 10.0% 10.0%
Medical, surgical and office equipment 15.0% 15.0%
Computer equipment 33.3% 33.3%

(l)

(m)

(n)

Finance leases
Finance leases are capitalised.  A lease asset and a lease liability equal to the present value 
of the minimum lease payments are recorded at the inception of the lease.  Capitalised lease 
assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the life of the asset.  Lease liabilities are 
reduced by repayments of principal.  The interest components of the lease payments are 
expensed.

Operating leases
Payments made under operating leases are expensed in equal instalments over the 
accounting periods covered by the lease term.

Employee benefits
Provision is made for the Company's liability for employee benefits arising from services 
rendered by employees to balance date.  Employee benefits, where the Company does not 
have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months, have been classified 
as a current liability.  Employee benefits payable later than one year have been classified as 
a non-current liability.  Both the long-term current liabilities and non-current liabilities have 
been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for 
those benefits.

Leased assets
Leases of plant and equipment under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks 
and benefits of ownership are classified as finance leases.  Other leases are classified as 
operating leases.

In the case of Property, Plant and Equipment, 'Value in Use' is taken to be the depreciated 
replacement cost of the asset.

Impairment of assets
At each reporting date, the Company, a not-for-profit entity, reviews the carrying values of all 
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired.  If 
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's 
fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset's carrying value.  Any 
excess of the asset's carrying value over the recoverable amount is expensed.

The depreciation/amortisation rates used for each class of asset are as follows:

16
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Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

(o)

(p) Key estimates and judgements
The Directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements 
based on historical knowledge and best available current information.  Estimates assume a 
reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data 
obtained both externally and within the Company and LCM Health Care group. 

Superannuation plan
The Company contributes to various defined contribution and accumulation superannuation 
plans.  Contributions are charged as an expense as incurred.

For defined contribution plans, contributions are expensed when employees have rendered 
services entitling them to the contributions.

Key judgements - provision for impairment of receivables
Current trade and term receivables are non interest bearing loans and generally on 30-day 
terms. Non-current trade and term receivables are assessed for recoverability based on the 
underlying terms of contract.  A provision for impairment is recognised when there is 
objective evidence that an individual trade or term receivable is impaired.

Trade receivables
Included in accounts receivable at 30 June 2012 is an amount of $0.888M (2011: $0.931M) 
which represents the net trade receivables believed to be recoverable by the Company after 
providing for an amount of $0.035M (2011:$0.035M) which is considered to prudently 
represent those receivables considered impaired.  The Company reviews outstanding debts 
as the basis for impairment.  All impairment calculations are based on a commercial 
assessment criteria, including segmentation, ageing, billing and collections procedures and 
prevailing trends.

The Directors do not believe, however, that the entire amount of the impairment provision is 
not recoverable.   The provision represents 3.9% of trade receivables as at 30 June 2012.
The 30 June 2011 provision amounted to 3.8 % of total trade receivables.

Other debtors
Other debtors consist of related parties, government departments and the like.  The Directors 
do not believe any of the amounts warrant impairment.

Key estimates - impairment
The Company is a not-for-profit entity and assesses for asset impairment at each reporting 
date by evaluating conditions specific to the Company that may lead to the impairment of 
assets.  Where an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
determined.  The recoverable amount is defined as the higher of its fair value (less costs to 
sell), and its ‘value in use’.  As a not-for-profit entity, and where appropriate, value in use is 
calculated as the higher of the present value of future cash flows (inclusive of an appropriate 
assessment period and terminal value of the asset) or the asset's depreciated replacement 
cost.
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2012 2011
Note $ '000 $ '000

2 Revenue
Operating activities
Revenue from rendering of services 35,528 33,495 
Recurrent grants received/receivable 113,053 108,259 
Public Health Service capital grants 1,411 2,157 
Resources received free of charge - capital - 93,280 
Resources received free of charge - revenue 1,011 6,760 

151,003 243,951 

Non-operating activities
Interest revenue 2,204 2,091 
Donation revenue 1,293 1,522 
Canteen takings and meals and accommodation 185 178 
Government funded paid parental leave 156 -
Other revenue 3,076 1,688 

6,914 5,479 

Total revenue 157,917 249,430 

3 Expenses
Depreciation of:

buildings 3,240 1,627 
plant and equipment 2,635 2,089 

Total depreciation expenses 5,875 3,716 

Finance costs:
interest and bank fees 8 8

Bad and doubtful debts 97 32

Employee benefits:
Salaries and wages 88,151 81,490 
Superannuation 6,789 6,324 
Workcover 1,535 1,427 
Long-term and post-employment benefits 2,737 2,280 

99,212 91,521 

Resources received free of charge - capital and revenue
During the 30 June 2011 year the Company recognised the fair value of the buildings, plant and 
equipment and minor equipment under the Public Private Partnership (PPP) arrangements as 
resources received free of charge - capital ($93.280M) and revenue ($5.724M).  The remainder 
of the amount shown as resources received free of charge in 2011 and 2012 is recognition of 
the NSW governments funding of superannuation contributions for employees who are 
members of defined benefit contribution schemes.

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012
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2012 2011
Note $ '000 $ '000

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Operating lease rental expense:
Other parties 25 - 

Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment 258 4,563 

4 Cash
Current
Cash at bank and on hand 20,745 16,922 
Short-term term deposits 25,000 25,000 

45,745 41,922 

5 Trade and other receivables  
Current
Trade receivables
Receivables for patient fees 923 966 
Less:  Provision for impairment of receivables (35) (35)

888 931 
Other receivables
Grant receivable - Health / local Health division 374 - 
Other receivables 3,126 1,916 

3,500 1,916 
4,388 2,847 

Movement in the impairment of receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year (35) (37)
Impairment losses recognised on receivables (97) (32)
Amounts written off as uncollectable 97 34 
Balance at the end of the year (35) (35)

6 Inventories
Current - at cost
Medical and surgical 341 381 
Pharmacy 769 1,914 

1,110 2,295 

7 Other assets
Current
Prepayments 160 174 

8 Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land - at cost (a) 7,612 7,612 
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2012 2011
Note $ '000 $ '000

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Buildings - at cost (a) 130,007 129,786 
Less:  Accumulated depreciation (24,016) (20,776)

105,991 109,010 

Plant and equipment - at cost 25,595 23,574 
Less:  Accumulated depreciation (11,778) (11,778)

13,817 11,796 

Motor vehicles - at cost 490 554 
Less:  Accumulated depreciation - (47)

490 507 

127,910 128,925 

Freehold land (a)
Carrying amount at beginning of year 7,612 7,007 
Acquisitions / additions - 605 
Carrying amount at end of year 7,612 7,612 

Buildings (a)
Carrying amount at beginning of year 109,010 25,280 
Acquisitions / additions 221 89,584 
Disposals - (4,227)
Depreciation (3,240) (1,627)
Carrying amount at end of year 105,991 109,010 

Plant and equipment
Carrying amount at beginning of year 11,796 4,114 
Acquisitions / additions 4,879 5,693 
Disposals (223) (171)
Transfers in / (out) - 4,249 
Depreciation (2,635) (2,089)
Carrying amount at end of year 13,817 11,796 

Asset audit
Following a physical inspection throughout the financial year, plant and equipment with a cost of 
$0.450M (2011: $0.991M) and accumulated depreciation of $0.315M (2011: $0.856M) that 
could not be identified or located were scrapped. This resulted in a loss on disposal of $0.135M 
(2011: $0.135M).

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant & equipment are set 
out below:
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Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Motor Vehicles
Carrying amount at beginning of year 507 535 
Acquisitions / additions 532 795 
Disposals (549) (823)
Carrying amount at end of year 490 507 

Assets under construction
Carrying amount at beginning of year - 4,249 
Reallocation - (4,249)
Carrying amount at end of year - - 

(a) Land and buildings
In 2005/06 the NSW Health Administration Corporation entered into a contract with a private 
sector provider, Novacare Project Partnership, for financing, design, construction and 
commissioning of a new hospital facility, a mental health facility and refurbishment of existing 
buildings, and facilities management and delivery of ancillary non-clinical services on the 
Calvary Mater Newcastle hospital site until November 2033.

The official opening of the new facilities took place in August 2009.  The legal documentation for 
the ongoing operation of the PPP arrangement, following finalisation of the construction phase 
of the PPP, was executed on 20 May 2011.

Hunter New England Local Health District (HNELHD) transferred control of the newly 
constructed general hospital facility through a sub-lease agreement to the Company.  The terms 
and conditions of the use of the redeveloped facility are contained in a Head Lease between the 
parties to the PPP arrangement.  The recognition of the assets is based on the fact that the 
Company, being an Affiliated Health Organisation which is outside the accounting control of 
either HNELHD or the NSW Health Department, recognises its funding (recurrent or capital) as 
grant income in the year of receipt.

Review of Interpretation 12
The applicability of Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements to the activities of the 
Company in respect of the operation of the public hospital has been considered.  Interpretation 
12 mandates the accounting for certain public-to-private service concession arrangements.

The arrangements for the operation of the hospital are not within the scope of Interpretation 12 
because the overall scope for decision making and control over the daily operations and the 
management of the hospital remains within the Company’s decision making framework.  In 
addition, the Company retains significant residual value in the assets.

The Directors agree with this view and, therefore, believe it is appropriate the activities and 
assets of the Company be recorded on the Statement of Financial Position of the Company in 
order to present a true and fair set of accounts that comply with Australian Accounting 
Standards.
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Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

9 Restricted assets

Brief details of externally imposed conditions
Category / Conditions
Special Purpose / Conditions imposed by granting body 8,291 9,070 
Charitable Trust / Trust Deed 23,543 21,219 
Research grants / Conditions imposed by granting body 4,564 4,993 

36,398 35,282 
Disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position as:
Cash at bank and on hand 11,398 10,282 
Term deposits 25,000 25,000 

36,398 35,282 

10 Trade and other payables
Current
Trade payables 2,171 3,243 
Grants / income received in advance 198 174 
Deferred income 2 2 
Other payables and accruals 4,419 2,912 

6,790 6,331 

Trade payable terms vary from 7 to 30 days generally.  No interest is charged on trade 
payables.

Other payables and accruals comprise salaries and wages and goods and services expenses 
incurred.

The assets are only available for application in accordance with the terms of these restrictions.

The Company holds assets which are restricted by externally imposed conditions, for example, 
in line with the 'Accounts and Audit Determination' of NSW Health in exercising its powers 
conferred by the Health Services Act 1997 (NSW) and grant and donor requirements.

Grants and other income received in advance relate to the component of grants received from 
Hunter New England Local Health District and University of Newcastle for work agreed to be 
performed under the terms of the grant next financial year 2012/13.

Deferred income comprises patient fees prepaid.
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2012 2011
Note $ '000 $ '000

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

11 Bank overdraft and financing arrangements
The Company has access to the following lines of credit:
Group pooling facility - bank (a) 2,000 2,000 

Facilities not utilised at balance date:
Group pooling facility - bank 2,000 2,000 

(a)

12 Provisions
Current

Employee benefits:
Annual leave 10,150 9,679 
Long service leave 16,860 15,798 
Accrued salary expenses 3,436 2,469 
Other employee provisions 130 116 

30,576 28,062 
Non Current

Employee benefits:
Long service leave 1,013 832 

Funding of employee entitlements
The NSW Health Department, via the Local Health District, has committed to providing annual 
funding to meet employee entitlements that become payable in that year in the course of 
providing services.  These funds are part of the normal operating subsidies paid to the 
Company by Hunter New England Local Health District.

Employee benefit provisions
Employee benefit provisions are reported as current liabilities where the Company does not 
have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months. Consequently, the current 
portion of the employee benefit provision includes both short-term benefits measured at nominal 
values and long-term benefits, measured at present value. Employee benefit provisions that are 
reported as non-current liabilities refer to long-term benefits of non vested long service leave 
that do not qualify for recognition as a current liability, and are measured at present value.

Group pooling facility - bank
The LCM Health Care Group utilises a pooling facility with interest calculated daily and paid 
monthly on the Group balance. The security for this facility is provided jointly and severally by all 
the entities in the Group. This facility avoids the need for individual companies to have overdraft 
facilities in place.
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Note $ '000 $ '000

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Superannuation plans 
The Company contributes to employee superannuation funds for all eligible employees based 
on various percentages of their gross salary, with a minimum contribution of 9% of gross salary.
All employees are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death.

A small number of employees who commenced employment with the Company prior to 18 
December 1992 are members of the defined benefit State Authority Superannuation Scheme 
(SASS).  This scheme is managed by the State Super Authority and the Company has neither 
control nor responsibility for the scheme. The Company's only obligations are the payment of 
any employee salary sacrificed employer contributions and employee post-tax employee 
contributions.  The NSW Treasury remits all other required employer contributions directly to the 
scheme.  The Company accounts for the liability paid by NSW Treasury as having been 
extinguished resulting in the amount assumed being shown as part of the non-monetary 
revenue item described as Resources received free of charge.

The superannuation expense for the financial year is determined by using the formulae 
specified by the NSW Department of Health.  The expense for certain superannuation schemes 
(ie Basic Benefit and First State Super) is calculated as a percentage of the employees' salary.
For other superannuation schemes (ie State Superannuation Scheme and State Authorities 
Superannuation Scheme), the expense is calculated as a multiple of the employees' 
superannuation contributions.

The Company has indemnification from the NSW Health Department for any accrued public 
hospital employee leave entitlements or any other employee entitlements such as redundancies 
payable by Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd which the Company is liable to pay at the time 
of, or becomes liable to pay as a consequence of, ceasing to conduct a public hospital in whole 
or part, as a public hospital listed in the Third Schedule of the Health Services Act or any 
successor Act subject to:
- the Company being specified in the Third Schedule of the Health Services Act 1997 or any 
successor Act as the operator of the public hospital;
- a transparent system being established to provide annual verification to the Area Health 
Service of the accrued recreation and long service leave entitlement in respect of each named 
public hospital employee as at 30 June each year;
- real property and other substantial assets used to conduct the public hospital not being 
disposed of at any time without the full knowledge and agreement of the NSW Health 
Department;
- the completion of a due diligence process should it be required in the event of wind up or 
cessation of operations whereby assets, or parts thereof, used to conduct the hospital are to be 
applied to offset liabilities properly incurred in operating the public hospital; and
- the Company using its best endeavours to transfer all relevant employees together with the 
liability for the accrued entitlements for those employees as part of such transfer of operations, 
if at some future time the Company enters into an agreement to transfer part or all of the 
operations of the public hospital to a public health organisation (as defined in the Health 
Services Act) or to the State.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

13 Commitments
Operating lease commitments
Future operating lease rentals not provided for in the financial statements and payable:
Not later than one year 35 - 
Later than one year but not later than five years 64 - 

99 - 

Public private partnership (PPP) 
In 2005/06, the NSW Health Administration Corporation entered into a contract with a private 
sector provider, Novacare Project Partnership for financing, design, construction and 
commissioning of a new hospital facility, a mental health facility and refurbishment of existing 
buildings, and facilities management and delivery of ancillary non-clinical services on the site 
until November 2033.

The Company leases assets under operating leases.  Leases generally provide the Company 
with a right of renewal at which time all terms are renegotiated.

Other expenditure commitments, totalling $7.247M (2011: $6.771M), for the provision of 
facilities management and delivery of other non-clinical services on the Calvary Mater 
Newcastle hospital site, were expended for the year ended 30 June 2012.  As the Company is 
not contractually committed to the agreement, the expenditure commitment over the life of the 
service provision is contingent upon recurrent funding continuing to be received from the NSW 
Health Department, via Hunter New England Local Health District.
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2012 2011
$ $ 

14 Related parties
(a) Key management personnel

Compensation of executives
Executives (aggregate) 781,656 845,340 

Other related parties
(b) Transactions

Supplier rebate income 1,095 -
Recovery of salaries and wages (incl on-costs) - 1,231
Palliative care education - 3,875
Recovery for goods and services 1,000 210

National Office shared service contribution 1,302,310 635,594 
National IT shared service contribution - non-recurrent 169,565 178,692 
National IT shared service contribution - recurrent 280,739 227,303 
Payments for goods and services 14,132 109,397 
Insurance premiums 65,467 71,977 
Training costs 3,050 -

Amounts included in expenditure during the year to LCM Health Care group 
companies:

Amounts included in income received during the year from LCM Health Care group 
companies:

A payment, the details of which are confidential and not disclosed, was made by the Parent 
Entity, Little Company of Mary Health Care Ltd, in respect of a contract of insurance indemnifying 
all Officers against liability for any claims brought against a Director or Officer.

Non-Executive Directors' fees and National executive salaries are paid and are reported 
separately by the Parent Entity, Little Company of Mary Health Care Ltd.  Remuneration for the 
Company's Executives is detailed below.

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

From time to time Directors, executives and other key management personnel of the Company 
may be treated as patients.  This service is provided on the same terms and conditions as those 
entered into by other employees or customers and are trivial or domestic in nature.
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15 Financial risk management

Carrying Amounts 2012 2011
$ '000 $ '000

Financial assets 
Loans and receivables 4,548 3,021 
Available for sale 45,745 41,922 

50,293 44,943 

Financial liabilities
At amortised cost 6,790 6,331 

16 Contingent liabilities and assets

There are no other events identified and not brought to account which could be expected to 
have a material effect on the financial statements in the future.

Claims on managed fund
On 1 July 1989 the NSW Government implemented a self insurance scheme known as the 
Treasury Managed Fund (TMF).  Since that time, the Company has been a member of the 
TMF.  The TMF will pay to or on behalf of the Company all sums which it shall become legally 
liable to pay by way of compensation or legal liability except for employment related, 
discrimination and harassment claims that do not have state-wide implications.  Therefore, 
since 1 July 1989, apart from the exceptions noted above no contingent liabilities exist in 
respect of liability claims against the Company.  A Solvency Fund (now called Pre-Managed 
Fund) Reserve was established by the NSW Government to deal with the insurance matters 
incurred before 1 July 1989 that were above the limit of insurance held or for matters that were 
incurred prior to 1 July 1989 that would have become verdicts against the State.  The Pre-
Managed Fund will respond to all claims against the Company.

Workers compensation hindsight adjustment
The NSW Treasury Managed Fund normally calculates hindsight premiums each year.
However, in relation to workers compensation, adjustments are delayed.  The final hindsight 
adjustment for the 2005/06 fund year and an interim adjustment for the 2007/08 fund year were 
not calculated until 2011/12.  As a result, the 2006/07 final and 2008/09 interim hindsight 
calculations will be paid in 2012/13.

It is not possible for the Company to reliably quantify the amount outstanding.

The Company's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts 
receivable and accounts payable.

The Company does not have any derivative instruments at 30 June 2011 or 2012.

The Company's overall risk management strategy seeks to meet its financial targets whilst 
minimising potential adverse effects on financial performance.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

Interest rate risk is managed with floating rate debt.  As at 30 June 2012, the Company had no 
debt.
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17 Economic dependency and going concern

18 Events subsequent to balance date

19 Registered office and principal place of business

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

The Company derives most of its income from the NSW Health Department, via Hunter New 
England Local Health District.  A going concern basis for the preparation of the financial 
statements has been adopted as it is expected that sufficient funding from the NSW Health 
Department will continue.

An indemnification has also been obtained from the NSW Health Department in relation to 
employee entitlements refer to Note 12.

Of total revenue, 73% is derived from NSW Government funding, and 7% is derived from 
private patient revenue.  Benefits are paid in accordance with agreements between the NSW 
Department of Health and the health funds.

The Company is one of a number of subsidiaries of the Parent Entity, Little Company of Mary 
Health Care Ltd.  Whilst it is not envisaged the Company will need to rely on the Parent Entity 
for its economic dependency, the constitution of the Company has the provision required under 
s187 of the Corporations Act which expressly authorises the Company to act in the best 
interests of the Parent Entity, so that it is capable of providing economic assistance to the 
Parent Entity, provided the Company will not become insolvent as a result of giving such 
economic assistance.

Calvary Health Care (Newcastle) Ltd is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated in 
Australia and operating in Waratah, NSW.

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this 
report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of 
the Directors of the Company, to affect significantly the operations of the Company, the results 
of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

The Company's registered office is Level 18 68 Pitt St Sydney NSW 2000 and the principal 
place of business of the Company is Calvary Mater Newcastle Hospital Edith St Waratah NSW 
2298.

The Parent Entity may, in turn, provide economic assistance to any of its subsidiaries including 
the Company, by withdrawing funds from any other of its subsidiaries, except for those moneys 
located in certain Special Purpose or Trust Fund Accounts, to provide such support as is 
necessary to enable the Parent Entity or subsidiary to pay its debts as and when they fall due, 
provided neither the Parent Entity or the Company will  become insolvent as a result of the 
withdrawal.

The Directors currently believe that, collectively, the Parent Entity and its subsidiaries have 
sufficient cash resources to ensure the Company, the Parent Entity, and other subsidiaries of 
the Parent Entity will continue to trade as going concerns and they are unaware of any material 
uncertainties, events or conditions, which may cast significant doubt on this belief.
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